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SECTION I: GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Letter of Offer uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies,
shall have the respective meanings given below. References to statutes, regulations, rules, guidelines and policies will be deemed
to include all amendments and modifications thereto as amended from time to time.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Letter of Offer, but not defined herein shall have, to the extent applicable, the
meaning ascribed to such terms under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, the SCRA, the Depositories Act, and the
rules and regulations made thereunder.

General Terms

TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

“Our Company”, or “Issuer”

“NHC Foods Limited”, “NHC”,
“NHC Foods”, “The Company”,

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, “NHC Foods Limited”, a public limited
company incorporated under the provision of Companies Act, 1956 and having its
Registered Office at Survey No. 777, Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, Village Umarsadi,
Taluka Pardi, Valsad - 396175, Gujarat, India

“We”, “Our”, or “uS”

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company together with
our Subsidiaries

Company

Our Promoter or Promoter of the

The promoter of our Company being Mr. Apoorva Himatlal Shah

Promoter Group

Includes such persons and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company in
terms of Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and as disclosed by
our Company to the Stock Exchange from time to time

“NHC Group” or “Our Group”

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company together with
its subsidiary.

Conventional Terms

TERMS DESCRIPTIONS
ACIT Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax.
The alternative investment funds, as defined in, and registered with SEBI under the
AlF(s) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations,
2012.
Air Act, 1981 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.
CAGR Compounded annual growth rate
Category | Foreign Portfolio | FPIs who are registered as “Category I foreign portfolio investor” under the SEBI FPI
Investor(s) Regulations.
Category Il Foreign Portfolio | FPIs who are registered as “Category Il foreign portfolio investor” under the SEBI FPI
Investor(s) Regulations.

Category |1l Foreign Portfolio
Investor(s)

FPIs who are registered as “Category III foreign portfolio investor” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations.

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956 (without reference to the provisions thereof that have ceased to have
effect upon notification of the sections of the Companies Act, 2013) along with the
relevant rules made there under.

Companies Act/Companies Act,
2013

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent in force pursuant to the notification of sections of the
Companies Act, 2013, along with the relevant rules made there under.

Competition Act

The Competition Act, 2002.

Consolidated FDI Policy

Consolidation FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020, issued by the Department of Industrial
Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India, and any
modifications thereto or substitutions thereof, issued from time to time.

CST Act

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956.

CovVID/COVID-19

A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World Health
Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020
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TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

Exchange Information

Collectively constitutes and includes, but is not limited to, a description of the nature of
our Company*s business and our Company‘s most recent balance sheet and profit and loss
account, and similar statements for preceding years together with press releases,
announcements, investor education presentations and annual reports.

FCNR Account Foreign currency non-resident account.
FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, read with rules and regulations there under.
. Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident
FEMA Regulations Outside India) Regulations 2000.
FII(s) Foreign Institutional Investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations.
Financial Year/ Fiscal/ Fiscal | Period of twelve (12) months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise

Year/F.Y.

stated.

Foreign Portfolio Investor or FPI

Foreign Portfolio Investors, as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations and registered with
SEBI under applicable laws in India.

Fugitive economic offender

“Fugitive economic offender” shall mean an individual who is declared a fugitive
economic offender under section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of
2018)

FVCI

Foreign Venture Capital Investor, registered under the FVCI Regulations.

FVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations,
2000.

Hazardous Waste Rules, 2008

Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008.

HUF

Hindu Undivided Family.

IBC

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Income Tax Act or the I.T. Act /
IT Act

The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended till date.

New Indian Accounting Standards notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February

Ind AS 16, 2015, applicable from Financial Year commencing April 1, 2016, as amended.

Ind GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

LLP Act The Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008.

Notified Sections The_ sections (_)f the Compgnies Act, 2013, th.?t have been notified by the Government as
having come into effect prior to the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

NRE Account Non-resident external account.

NRO Account Non-resident ordinary account.

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956.

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the SEBI Act.

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012
as amended thereto.

SEBI Takeover Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

SEBI VCF Regulations

The erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds)
Regulations, 1996, as repealed pursuant to the SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities Act

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

State Government

The government of a state of the Union of India.

STT

Securities Transaction Tax.

Sub-account

Sub-accounts registered with SEBI under the SEBI FIl Regulations other than sub-
accounts which are foreign corporate or foreign individuals.

VCFs

Venture Capital Funds as defined and registered with SEBI under the SEBI VCF
Regulations or the SEBI AlF Regulations, as the case may be.

Water Act, 1974

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.
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TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

“Abridged Letter of Offer” or
GAALOFQ’

Abridged letter of offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect to this
Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies
Act, 2013.

“Allot”,
“Allotted”

“Allotment” or

Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue.

“Allotment Accounts”

The accounts opened with the Bankers to this Issue, into which the Application Money
lying credit to the Escrow Account and amounts blocked by Application Supported by
Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful Applicants will be
transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40(3) of the Companies Act,
2013.

“Allotment Date” Date on which the Allotment shall be made pursuant to this Issue.

“Allottee(s)” Person(s) who shall be Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Allotment.
Application made through submission of the Application Form or plain paper Application

“Application” to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application through the

website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process.

“Application Form” or Composite
Application Form / CAF

The form used by an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of Rights Equity
Shares in the Issue.

“Applicant(s)” or “Investor(s)”

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to apply or make an
application for the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue in terms of this Draft Letter
of Offer.

Application Amount

The number of Equity Shares applied for and as indicated in the Application Form or
Composite Application Form / CAF multiplied by the price per Equity Share payable by
the Applicants on submission of the Application Form.

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to an Applicant as proof of
having accepted the Application Form.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted of
Equity Shares

Unless the context otherwise requires, allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue
of Equity Shares to the successful Applicants.

Allotment Advice

Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Applicants who have been allotted
Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the Designated Stock
Exchange.

Application Supported by | An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, to make a Bid
Blocked Amount/ASBA authorizing a SCSB to block the Bid Amount/Application money in the ASBA Account.
ASBA Account A bank account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the ASBA Form submitted by

Applicants for blocking the Bid Amount mentioned in the ASBA Form

ASBA Applicant(s)

Any prospective investors in this Issue who apply for Equity Shares of our Company
through the ASBA process in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer.

ASBA Application
Location(s)/Specified Cities

Such Branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Forms used by the
Applicants applying through the ASBA process and a list of which is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes  or at such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time

ASBA Bid

Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto as
permitted under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;

ASBA Circulars

Collectively, the SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers
SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011
dated April 29, 2011, and SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020

ASBA Forms

An application form, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Applicants, which will
be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of the Draft Letter of Offer.

Banker to the Issue/Refund
Bank/Escrow Collection Bank

Bank which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as banker to an issue/Refund
Bank and with whom the Rights Issue Account will be opened, in this case being “/e]”
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TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

Banker to the Issue Agreement

Agreement dated fe/ entered into by and amongst the Company, Lead Manager, the
Registrar and the Banker of the Issue for collection of the Application Money from
Investors making an application through the ASBA facility, transfer of funds to the
Allotment Account from the Escrow Account and SCSBs, release of funds from Allotment
Account to our Company and other persons and where applicable, refunds of the amounts
collected from Investors and providing such other facilities and services as specified in the
agreement.

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under the Issue, as described in the
Section “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 211 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Business Day

Monday to Saturday (except public holidays).

BSE

BSE Limited

CAN or Confirmation of
Allocation Note

The note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Applicant indicating the Equity
Shares which will be Allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock
Exchange.

Client ID

Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to demat
account.

Collection Centers

Centers at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms.

Collecting Depository Participant
or CDP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with SEBI
and who is eligible to procure Applications at the Designated CDP Locations in terms of
circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, issued by SEBI.

Consolidated certificate

The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio in case
of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form;

Controlling Branches of SCSBs

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate Applications under this Issue made by the
Applicants with the Lead Manager, the Registrar to the Issue and the Stock Exchange, a
list of which is provided on http://www.sebi.gov.in or at such other website as may be
prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the Applicants such as their Address, PAN, Occupation and
Bank Account details.

Depository/Depositories

A depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and Participant)
Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time, being NSDL and CDSL.

Depository Participant/DP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996.

Designated CDP Locations

Such locations of the CDPs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms to
Collecting Depository Participants.

The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept Application Forms are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange.

Designated Date

The date on which the funds are transferred by the Escrow Collection Bank from the
Escrow Account(s) or the instructions are given to the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA
Accounts including the accounts linked with UPI ID and transfer the amounts blocked by
SCSBs as the case may be, to the Rights Issue Account, as appropriate in terms of the Letter
of Offer and the aforesaid transfer and instructions shall be issued only after finalisation of
the Basis of Allotment in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.

Designated Intermediaries/

Collecting Agent

An SCSB with whom the bank account to be blocked, is maintained, a syndicate member
(or sub-syndicate member), a Registered Broker, Designated CDP Locations for CDP, a
registrar to an issue and share transfer agent (RTA) (whose names are mentioned on
website of the Stock Exchange as eligible for this activity).

Designated RTA Locations

Such locations of the RTAs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms to RTAs.
The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept Application Forms are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange.

Designated Stock Exchange

BSE Limited
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TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

DP

Depository Participant.

DP ID

Depository Participant’s Identity number.

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s)

Holder(s) of the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date. Please note that the
investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude certain overseas shareholders. For
further details, see “Notice to Investors” on page 11 of this Draft Letter of Offer

NRI(s) from such jurisdiction outside India where it is not unlawful to make an Issue or

Eligible NRI(s) invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom this Draft Letter of Offer constitutes an
invitation to subscribe for the Equity Shares Issued herein on the basis of the terms thereof.
Qualified Foreign Investors from such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful
Eligible QFls to make an offer or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Letter of Offer

constitutes an invitation to purchase the Equity Shares Issued thereby and who have opened
demat accounts with SEBI registered qualified depositary participants.

Electronic Transfer of Funds

ECS, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable.

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of our Company of face value Z1/- each.

Fll/Foreign Institutional Investors

Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors)
Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India.

First/Sole Applicant

The Applicant whose name appears first in the Application Form or Revision Form.

Foreign Venture Capital Investors

Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Venture
Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000.

FPI / Foreign Portfolio Investor

A Foreign Portfolio Investor who has been registered pursuant to the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, provided that
any FI1 who holds a valid certificate of registration shall be deemed to be a foreign portfolio
investor till the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as per the
SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended

Issue/Rights  Issue/lssue

Rights Issue

Size

Rights Issue of “feJ” Equity Shares of face value of X1/- each of our Company for cash at
a price of “feJ” per Equity Share aggregating to %4,900.00 lakhs by our Company, in terms
of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Issue Agreement

The Issue Agreement dated August 08, 2024 between our Company and Lead Manager.

Issue Closing Date

The date on which Issue Closes for Subscription.

Issue Opening Date

The date on which Issue Opens for Subscription.

Issue Period

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both
days, during which prospective Investors may submit their application.

Issue Price

The price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company being /e/ per Equity
Share.

Issue Proceeds

The proceeds of the Issue that are available to our Company.

Lead Manager/LM

Finshore Management Services Limited

Listing Agreement

Unless the context specifies otherwise, this means the Equity Listing Agreement to be
signed between our Company and BSE Limited

Mutual Fund(s)

Mutual fund (s) registered with SEBI pursuant to the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations,
1996, as amended from time to time.

NPCI

National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI), a Reserve Bank of India (RBI) initiative,
is an umbrella organization for all retail payments in India. It has been set up with the
guidance and support of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Indian Banks Association
(IBA)

“On Market Renunciation”

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them over
the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through a registered stock broker in
accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Stock
Exchange, from time to time, and other applicable laws, on or before [e].

Off Market Renunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring them
through off market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with the SEBI
Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time to time, and
other applicable laws.
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TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

Overseas Corporate Body/OCB

Overseas Corporate Body means and includes an entity defined in clause (xi) of Regulation
2 of the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas
Corporate Bodies (OCB’s) Regulations 2003 and which was in existence on the date of the
commencement of these Regulations and immediately prior to such commencement was
eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to the general permission granted under the
Regulations. OCBs are not allowed to invest in this Issue.

Other Investors

Investors other than Retail Individual Investors. These include individual Applicants other
than retail individual investors and other investors including corporate bodies or
institutions irrespective of the number of specified securities applied for.

Person/ Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated
organization, body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture, or trust, or any other entity or organization validly constituted
and/or incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context
requires.

“Record Date”

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eligible to apply
for Rights Equity Shares, being [e].

“Renouncee(s)”

Any person(s) who, not being the original recipient has/have acquired the Rights
Entitlement, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights
Issue Circulars.

“Renunciation Period”

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights Entitlements
which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period shall close on [®] in case
of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that
renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue
Closing Date.

“Rights Entitlements” / “REs”

The right to apply for the Rights Equity Shares, being offered by way of this Issue, by an
Investor, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars, in this case being [e®] Rights Equity Share for every [e®] Equity Shares of face
value Rs. 1/- each held by an Eligible Equity Shareholder, on the Record Date.

“Rights Entitlement Letter”

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.

“Rights Equity Shareholders”

A holder of the Rights Equity Shareholders, from time to time.

“Rights Equity Shares”

Equity shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue, on fully paid-up basis
on Allotment.

Rights Issue Account

The Bank Account opened with the Banker(s) to this Issue under Section 40 of the
Companies Act, 2013 to receive monies from the SCSBs from the bank accounts of the
ASBA Accounts on the Designated Date.

Qualified Institutional Buyers or
QIBs

A qualified institutional buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Registered Brokers

Stockbrokers registered with the Stock Exchange having nationwide terminals, other than
the Members of the Syndicate.

Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents or RTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, issued by SEBI.

Registrar to the Company /
Registrar to this Rights Issue /
Registrar / RTI

Registrar to the Issue in our case is “Skyline Financial Services Private Limited”.

Registrar to the Issue / RTI
Agreement

The agreement dated September 03, 2024 entered into between our Company and the
Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar
pertaining to the Issue.

Regulations

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2018 as amended from
time to time.

Reserved Category(ies)

Categories of persons eligible for making application under reservation portion.
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TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

Retail Individual Investors/ Rlls

Applicants or minors applying through their natural guardians, (including HUFs in the
name of Karta and Eligible NRIs) who have applied for an amount less than or equal to T
2 Lakh in this Issue.

Revision Form

The form used by the Applicants to modify the quantity of Equity Shares or the Application
Amount in any of their Application Forms or any previous Revision Form(s), as applicable.

Self-Certified Syndicate
Bank(s) or SCSB(s)

Banks registered with SEBI, Issuing Services in relation to ASBA, a list of which is
available on the website of SEBI at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations / ICDR
Regulation / Regulation

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 issued by SEBI
on September 11, 2018, as amended from time to time, including instructions and
clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time.

SEBI Insider Trading Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time to
time.

SEBI Takeover Regulations or
SEBI (SAST) Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time.

SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015/
SEBI Listing Regulations/ Listing
Regulations/ SEBI (LODR)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015/ Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2020 and as amended thereto,
including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time.

SEBI (Venture Capital) | The erstwhile Securities Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital) Regulations, 1996 as
Regulations amended from time to time.
Transaction Registration  Slip | The slip or document issued by a member of the Syndicate or an SCSB (only on demand),
/TRS as the case may be, to the applicants, as proof of registration of the Application

Unified Payments Interface (UPI) is an instant payment system developed by the NPCI. It
UPI enables merging several banking features, seamless fund routing & merchant payments

into one hood. UPI allows instant transfer of money between any two persons’ bank
accounts using a payment address which uniquely identifies a person's bank a/c.

U.S. Securities Act

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Working Days

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day means all days
on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Further, in respect of Issue
Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on
which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore, the time period
between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange,
working day means all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank
holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI.

Willful ~ Defaulter(s) or a
Fraudulent Borrower (s)

A person or an issuer who or which is categorized as a willful defaulter or a fraudulent
borrower by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013)
or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters or a
fraudulent borrower issued by the Reserve Bank of India, as defined under Regulation
2(1)(111) of SEBI ICDR Regulations 2018.

Company Related Terms

TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

AGM

Annual General Meeting

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association” or “AOA”

The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

Auditor / Statutory Auditor

The Statutory Auditors of our Company, being M/s. IMMK & Co. (earlier known as IMK
& Co.), Chartered Accountants, having its office at B-10, Western Edge II, Behind Metro
Cash & Carry, Off W.E. Highway, Borivali East, Mumbai — 400066, Maharashtra, India.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee of our Company constituted in accordance with the Companies Act,
2013 as disclosed by our Company to the Stock Exchange from time to time.
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TERMS DESCRIPTIONS
“Board of Director(s)” or Unless otherwise specified, The Board of Directors of our Company, as duly constituted
“the/our Board” from time to time, including any committee(s) thereof.

“CFO” or Chief Financial
Officer

The Chief Financial Officer of our Company being “Mr. Archit Wahale”.

CIN Corporate Identification Number being L15122GJ1992PL C076277.

Company Secretary & The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company being “Mrs. Alesha
Compliance Officer Hakim Khan”.

DIN Directors Identification Number.

Director/Director(s)

The directors of our Company, unless otherwise specified

Equity Shares

The Equity Shares of our Company of face value of X1/- each, fully paid-up, unless
otherwise specified in the context thereof.

Equity Shareholders

Persons/Entities holding Equity Shares of our Company.

Group Companies/Entities

Such companies with which there were related party transactions, during the period for
which financial information is disclosed in this Draft Letter of Offer, which are covered
under the applicable accounting standards and other companies as considered material by
our Board, as identified in “Our Group Companies”

Independent Director

Non-executive & Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013

JV / Joint Venture

A commercial enterprise undertaken jointly by two or more parties which otherwise retain
their distinct identities.

ISIN International Securities Identification Number, in this case being “INE141C01036”
. Key managerial personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEBI
PKe'\rAsZrﬁniley Managerial ICDR Regulations 2018, Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as disclosed in
the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 51 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
MD Managing Director of our Company

Materiality Policy

A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) for the
purpose of disclosure of the same in this Draft Letter of Offer.

Memorandum/Memorandum of
Association/MoA

The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Nomination and Remuneration committee of our Company constituted in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2013 as disclosed by our Company to the Stock Exchange from time
to time.

Non-Residents

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA Regulations, 2000

Promoters

Shall mean promoters of our Company as mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer.

Registered & Corporate Office

Registered Office of the Company is presently situated at Survey No. 777, Umarsadi
Desaiwad Road, Village Umarsadi, Taluka Pardi, Valsad — 396175, Gujarat, India and the
Corporate Office of the Company is presently situated at 419/420, C Wing, Atrium 215,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Chakala, Andheri East, J. B. Nagar, Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra,
India

RoC/Registrar of Companies

The Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat located at ROC Bhavan, Opp Rupal
Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura, Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat, India

Rights Issue Committee

The committee of our Board constituted through the Board Resolution dated May 30,
2024, for purposes of the Issue and incidental matters thereof.

Shareholders

Shareholders of our Company

Subscriber to MOA / Initial
Promoters

Initial Subscriber to MOA

WTD

Whole Time Director

Technical and Industry related terms

TERMS DESCRIPTIONS
ASSOCHAM Associated Chambers of Commerce of India
AHF Affordable Housing Fund
CPI Consumer Price Index
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EPFO Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation

ESI Employee State Insurance

EPCG Scheme Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme

EU European Union

FCNR Foreign Currency Non-Resident

FY Financial Year

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GVA Gross Value Added

GIC Government of Singapore Investment Corporation
HFC Housing Finance Company

HDFC Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
IBEF India Brand Equity Foundation

ICRA Investment Information and Credit Rating Agency
INR Indian Rupees Rate

IT Information Technology

MOCI Ministry of Commerce and Industry

MSME Micro & Small Enterprise

MT Metric Tonne

NHB National Housing Bank

NRI Non-Resident Indian

PE Investments Private Equtiy Investments

PMAY Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana

SEZ Special Economic Zone

REIT Real Estate Investment Trust

SOP Standard Operating Procedures

Abbreviations

TERMS

DESCRIPTIONS

Rs. or X or Rupees or INR

Indian Rupees.

AGM

Annual General Meeting.

AS/Accounting Standards

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

AY.

Assessment year.

BC Before Christ.

BPLR Bank Prime Lending Rate.

BSE BSE Limited

CAPEX Capital expenditures

CARO Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020.

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

CIN Corporate Identity Number.

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility.

DIN Director Identification Number.

DP ID Depository participant’s identification.

ECS Electronic Clearing System.

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax Depreciation and Amortisation.
EGM Extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company.
EPS Earnings Per Share.

ESOS Employee Stock Option Scheme.

FDI Foreign direct investment.

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board.

GIR General index register.

Gol/Government Government of India.

GST Goods & Service Tax
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TERMS DESCRIPTIONS

HNI High Net Worth Individual.

HUF Hindu Undivided Family.

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

IEPF Investor Education Protection Fund

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards.

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

ISO International Organization for Standardization.

IT Act The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended.

IT Rules The Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended.

Vv Joint Venture.

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

MoU Memorandum of Understanding.

N.A. Not Applicable.
Net asset value being paid up equity share capital plus free reserves (excluding reserves

NAV/Net Asset Value crgated out of revaluation) I_ess deferred exp_enditure not wri?ten off (including
miscellaneous expenses not written off) and debit balance of profit and loss account,
divided by number of issued Equity Shares.

NECS National Electronic Clearing Services.

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer.

NoC No Objection Certificate.

No. Number.

NR Non-Resident.

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited.

NSE The National Stock Exchange of India Limited

NTA Net Tangible Assets.

p.a. Per annum.

PAN Permanent Account Number.

PAT Profit After Tax.

PBT Profit Before Tax.

PCB Pollution Control Board.

P/E Ratio Price per Earnings Ratio.

Pvt. Private.

RBI Reserve Bank of India.

RoC Registrar of Companies.

RONW Return on Net Worth.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

SCN Show Cause Notice.

SCSB Self-Certified Syndicate Bank.

SME Small and Medium Enterprises

STT Securities Transaction Tax

Sq. ft. Square feet

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number

TIN Taxpayers Identification Number

UIN Unique Identification Number.

us United States.

VAT Value Added Tax.

w.e.f. With effect from

YoY Year on Year.

The words and expressions used but not defined in this Draft Letter of Offer will have the same meaning as assigned to such
terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations made
there-under.
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights
Entitlements Letter and any other Issue material and the issue of Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares on a rights
basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India are restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons
into whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form or the
Rights Entitlements Letter may come, are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions.

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch the Letter of
Offer/Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form, Rights Entitlements Letter and other Issue material (i) only to e-mail addresses
of the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their e-mail addresses; (ii) physical delivery only to the Indian
address of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, whose e-mail addresses are not available with our
Company or the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided the valid email address to our Company; (iii) physical delivery
only to the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have provided an
Indian address to our Company or to their email address; and (iv) to the e-mail addresses of the foreign corporate or institutional
shareholders.

The Letter of Offer will also be provided by our Company to any existing Shareholder who makes a request in this regard.
Investors can also access the Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the websites of
the Registrar, our Company, the Lead Managers, the Stock Exchange.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except
that the Draft Letter of Offer has been filed with BSE for observation. Accordingly, this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer,
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements Letter or the Application Form or any Issue materials or advertisements in
connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in or into any jurisdiction, except in accordance with the
legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction and the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares may not be offered
or sold, directly or indirectly, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction.
Receipt of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements Letter or the
Application Form (including by way of electronic means) will not constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by anyone in
any jurisdictions or in any circumstances in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation is unlawful or not authorized or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or solicitation. In those circumstances, this Draft Letter of Offer,
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements Letter or the Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and
should not be acted upon for subscription to Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or re-distributed or passed on, directly
or indirectly, to any other person or published, in whole or in part, for any purpose. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of this
Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements Letter or the Application Form should
not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send this Draft Letter of
Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements Letter or the Application Form in or into any
jurisdiction where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its
affiliates or the Lead Managers or their respective affiliates to any filing or registration requirement (other than in India). If this
Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements Letter or the Application Form is
received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity
Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlements Letter or the Application Form. Envelopes containing the CAF should not be dispatched from the jurisdiction where
it would be illegal to make an offer and all the person subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares in the Issue must provide an Indian
address.

Any person who makes an application to acquire Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares offered in the Issue will be
deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and
the Rights Equity shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in such person’s jurisdiction and India,
without requirement for our Company or our affiliates or the Lead Manager or its affiliates to make any filing or registration
(other than in India).

Our Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat

any Application Form as invalid where they believe that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form
may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or
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Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form. Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is
correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer or the
date of such information.

The contents of this Draft Letter of Offer should not be construed as business, financial, legal, tax or investment advice.
Prospective investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of the offer of
Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. As a result, each investor should consult its own counsel, business advisor
and tax advisor as to the legal, business, tax and related matters concerning the offer of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights
Entitlements. In addition, neither our Company nor the Lead Manager is making any representation to any offeree or
purchaser of the Rights Equity Shares regarding the legality of an investment in the Rights Equity Shares by such offeree
or purchaser under any applicable laws or regulations.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements have not been recommended by any U.S. federal or state securities commission
or regulatory authority. Furthermore, the foregoing authorities have not confirmed the accuracy or determined the adequacy of
the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and the CAF. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United
States. The rights and securities of the Company, including the Rights Equity Shares and Right Entitlements have not been and
will not be registered under the United States Securities Act, 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any U.S. state securities
laws and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or the territories or possessions thereof
(the “United States” or “U.S.”) or to, or for the account or benefit of, “U.S. persons” (as defined in Regulation S under the
Securities Act (“Regulation S”), except in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act.
The Rights Equity Share referred to in this Draft Letter of Offer are being offered in India, but not in the United States. The
offering to which this Draft Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any
Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the
said securities or rights. Accordingly, this Draft Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and the enclosed CAF should not be
forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation from any
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on behalf of our Company, has
reason to believe is, either a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S) or otherwise in the United States when the buy order is
made. No application form should be postmarked in the United States, electronically transmitted from the United States or
otherwise dispatched from the United States or from any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under this
Draft Letter of Offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Shares and wishing to hold such Rights Shares in registered form
must provide an address for registration of the Rights Shares in India. Our Company is making this issue of Rights Equity Shares
on a rights basis to the eligible equity shareholders and the Letter of Offer/Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF will be dispatched
to (i) only to e-mail addresses of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their e-mail addresses; (ii) physical
delivery only to the Indian addresses of the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, whose e-mail
addresses are not available with our Company or the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided the valid e-mail address to
our Company; (iii) physical delivery only to the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable
effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company or to their email address; and (iv) to the e-mail addresses of
foreign corporate or institutional shareholders.

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented,
warranted and agreed, (i) that it is not and that at the time of subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements,
it will not be, in the United States when the buy order is made, (ii) it is not a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S), and does
not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States, and (iii) is authorized to acquire the Rights
Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company and the Lead Manager are not making, and will not make, and will not participate or otherwise be involved in any

offers or sales of the Rights Entitlements, the Rights Equity Shares or any other security with respect to this Issue in the United
States.
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Our Company, in consultation with the Lead Manager, reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i)
appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not
include the relevant certification set out in the Application Form headed “Overseas Shareholders” to the effect that the person
accepting and/or renouncing the Application Form does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United
States of America, and such person is complying with laws of the jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with the
Issue, among others; or (iii) where our Company believes that the Application Form is incomplete or the acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (iv) where a registered Indian address is not
provided, and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any such Application
Form. Rights Entitlement may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States of America.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Lead Manager are not liable
for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares
applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR COMPANY

FROM THE LEAD MANAGER FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR
DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INDUSTRY & MARKET DATA, AND CURRENCY
PRESENTATION
Certain Conventions
Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references to “India” in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the
Republic of India.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this Draft Letter
of Offer.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”, “our Company”, “Issuer”, “Issuer Company”, “NHC”
and “NHC Foods” unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to “NHC Foods Limited”.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers to another gender and
the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”, the word “million (mn)” means “Ten Lacs / Lakhs”, the word “Crore”
means “ten millions” and the word “billion (bn)” means “one hundred crores”. In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in
any table between total and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise, the financial information in this Draft Letter of Offer is extracted from Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended 31 March 2024, Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial Year ended 31 March 2023 and
Limited Reviewed Unaudited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 and comparative
financials for June 30, 2023 which have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS).

Our fiscal year commences on 1%t April of each year and ends on 31 March of the next year. All references to a particular fiscal
year are to the 12 months period ended 31 March of that year. In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table
between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off. All decimals have been rounded off to two decimal
points.

Unless otherwise indicated, any percentage amounts, as set forth in this Draft Letter of Offer, including in the Sections titled
“Risk Factors”; “Our Business”; “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
beginning on page no. 20, 70, and 195 respectively, have been calculated on the basis of the Audited Financial Statements of our
Company included in this Draft Letter of Offer.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to “Rupees”, “Rs.”, “INR” or “X” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. All references
to “$”, “US$”, “USD”, “U.S. $” or “U.S. Dollars” are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of
America

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Draft Letter of Offer in “Lakh” units. One lakh represents
1,00,000. In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed therein
are due to rounding-off,

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used throughout this Draft Letter of Offer has been derived from India Brand
Equity Foundation (IBEF) and other publicly available sources. Industry publications generally state that the information
contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness
are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured. Although, we believe that the industry and market data used in this
Draft Letter of Offer is reliable, neither we nor the Lead Manager nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have prepared
or verified it independently. The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is meaningful
depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data.

Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including

those discussed in the Section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment
decisions should not be based on such information.
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Exchange Rates

NHC

This Draft Letter of Offer may contain conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been presented
solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a representation that these
currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee
and other foreign currencies:

1USD

83.37

82.23

1 EUR

90.22

89.61

(In case March 31 of any of the respective years is a public holiday, the previous working day has been considered.)

Source: RBI reference rate and https://www.fbil.org.in/
*Data for March 29, 30 and 31, 2024 is not available.

Draft Letter of Offer
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

The Company has included statements in this Draft Letter of Offer which contain words or phrases such as “may”, “will”, “aim”,
“believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “seek to”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”,
“should”, “potential” and similar expressions or variations of such expressions, that are or may be deemed to be forward looking

statements.

All statements regarding the expected financial condition and results of operations, business, plans and prospects are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to the business strategy, the revenue, profitability,
planned initiatives. These forward-looking statements and any other projections contained in this Draft Letter of Offer (whether
made by us or any third party) are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may
cause the actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections. Important factors that could cause
actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially include, but are not limited to, those discussed under the Section
titled “Risk Factors”; “Industry Overview”; “Our Business”; and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”; beginning on page no. 20, 53 and 195, respectively, of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer are based on the beliefs of our management, as well as the
assumptions made by and information currently available to our management. Although we believe that the expectations reflected
in such forward-looking statements are reasonable at this time, we cannot assure investors that such expectations will prove to be
correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any
of these risks and uncertainties materializes, or if any of the underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, the actual results of
operations or financial condition could differ materially from that described herein as anticipated, believed, estimated or expected.
All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by reference
to these cautionary statements.

Certain important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company’s expectations include, but are

not limited to, the following:
e Adequate availability of key raw materials at the right prices is crucial for the Company;

Intense competition from unorganized sector offering products in loose unbranded form.

Occurrences of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which we have operations;

Any disruption in our sources of funding or increase in costs of funding;

Our ability to obtain certain approval and licenses;

Our ability to manage our operations at our current size or to manage any future growth effectively;

The spices industry faces challenges related to price volatility, primarily driven by fluctuations in raw material costs and

global market dynamics;

e Our inability to effectively manage our rapid growth, which could place significant demands on our management
personnel, systems and resources; and

e Exchange rate fluctuations and exchange controls and policies.

By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in
the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated. Our Company,
the Lead Manager, or their respective affiliates do not have any obligation to, and do not intend to, update or otherwise revise
any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the
underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with SEBI requirements, our Company and the Lead Manager
will ensure that investors are informed of material developments until the time of the grant of final listing and trading permissions
with respect to Equity Shares being issued in this Issue, by the Stock Exchange. Our Company will ensure that investors are
informed of material developments in relation to statements about our Company in this Draft Letter of Offer until the Equity
Shares are allotted to the investors.
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SECTION II: SUMMARY OF DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Draft Letter of Offer and is not exhaustive, nor does it
purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Draft Letter of Offer or all details relevant to prospective Investors.

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

PRIMARY BUSINESS OF OUR COMPANY:

Founded in 1992 under the visionary leadership of Mr. Apoorva Himatlal Shah, our company has established itself as a
prominent exporter of spices and agricultural commodities. With a focus on quality and sustainability, we have
positioned ourselves as a fast-growing entity in the spice and agro-commaodities sector. Our commitment to excellence
begins with the careful selection of raw materials from diverse regions across the country.

Our Company, NHC Foods Limited is primarily engaged in the business of Trading of diverse array of food products
including Spices, Food Grains, Oil Seeds, Pulses, dry fruits and other agro-commodities. Our company is recognized
for its commitment to supplying bulk quantities of these carefully selected products to our esteemed customers, catering
to their diverse needs in both domestic and international markets. With a robust export network, NHC Foods Limited
proudly serves clients in more than 30 countries around the globe, establishing us as a key player in the international
food trade industry. Our export sales accounts for 82.88% and 83.74% of total revenue from operations for the period
ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

For further detailed information, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Business” beginning from page no. 70 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE:
Our Company proposes to utilize the funds which are being raised through this Issue towards the below mentioned
objects:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount In % of Gross
(R in Lakhs) Proceeds
A To meet the Working Capital Requirements 2500.00 [®]
B To make the repayment of Secured Loan 1500.00 [®]
C General corporate purposes [®] [®]
D Issue related expenses [o] [®]
Total Issue Proceeds [o] [®]
F Less: Issue Related Expenses [o] [®]
Net Issue Proceeds [o] [®]

For further details, please refer chapter “Objects of the Issue” beginning from page no. 47 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
INTENTION AND EXTENT OF PARTICIPATION IN THE ISSUE BY THE PROMOTER:

Our Promoter and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, vide their letters dated July 29, 2024 (the
“Subscription Letters”) undertaken that the Rights Issue is only for the Public Shareholders and there will be no Rights
Entitlement to the Promoter and entities forming part of the Promoter Group. In the eventuality of an under-subscription
in the Issue the Promoter and entities forming part of the Promoter Group will not purchase any additional Rights
Entitlements either on-market or off-market and will not subscribe to the unsubscribed portion of the Issue, if any.

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to comply with
the minimum public shareholding requirements under applicable law, pursuant to this Issue. For further details, please
see “General Information - Minimum Subscription” on page 33.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS:
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Sr No. Outstanding Litigation Number of Financial Implications to the
Matter Extent Quantifiable In INR

1. Filed against the Company

Criminal & Civil Cases

Direct Tax & Indirect Tax 3 29,25,987

2. Filed against Promoters & Directors
Criminal & Civil Cases - -
Direct Tax & Indirect Tax 1 53,167
TOTAL 4 29,79,154

For further details, please refer chapter “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” beginning from page
102 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

CROSS REFERENCE TO THE SECTION TITLED “RISK FACTORS”:

Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in
this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors
carefully before taking an investment decision in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely
on their own examination of our Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The Equity Shares offered in the
Issue have neither been recommended nor approved by Securities and Exchange Board of India nor does Securities and
Exchange Board of India guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of Offer. For the details pertaining to
the internal and external risk factors relating to the Company, kindly refer to the chapter titled “Risk Factors” beginning
on page no. 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS DISCLOSED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
For details pertaining to Related Party Transactions, kindly refer to the chapter titled “Financial Information” beginning
on page no. 83 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS DISCLOSED IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS:

For details pertaining to Related Party Transactions, kindly refer to the chapter titled “Financial Information” beginning
on page no. 83 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

DETAILS OF ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST
ONE YEAR PRECEDING THE DATE OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER:

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the last one (1) year preceding the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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SECTION III: RISK FACTORS

RISK FACTOR

Any investment in equity securities involves a high degree of risk. Investor should carefully consider all the information in this
Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in our Equity Shares.
To obtain a more complete understanding, you should read this section together with Sections titled, Our Business, and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations beginning on page no. 70 and 195
respectively, as well as the other financial and statistical information contained in this Draft Letter of Offer.

Any of the following risks, as well as the other risks and uncertainties discussed in this Draft Letter of Offer, could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects and could cause the trading price of our
Equity Shares to decline, which could result in the loss of all or a part of your investment. The risks and uncertainties described
in this section are not the only risks that we may face. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or that we currently
believe to be immaterial may also have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

This Draft Letter of Offer contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements because of certain factors, including the considerations
described below and elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors
mentioned below. However, there are certain risk factors where the effect is not quantifiable and hence has not been disclosed
in such risk factors. You should not invest in this Issuing unless you are prepared to accept the risk of losing all or part of your
investment, and you should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the consequences to you of an investment in the
Equity Shares.

The financial information in this section is, unless otherwise stated, derived from our Audited Financial Statements for the period
ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 prepared in accordance with Indian AS, as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,
and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for
determining the materiality.

1. Some risks may not be material individually but may be material when considered collectively.
2. Some risks may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively.

3. Some risks may not be material at present but may have a material impact in the future.

INTERNAL RISK FACTOR:

1. Our Company, Promoter and Director is party to certain legal proceedings. Any adverse decision in such proceedings
may have a material adverse effect on our business, result of operations and financial conditions.

Our Company, Promoter and Director is party to certain legal proceedings which are pending at different levels of adjudication
before competent authority. We cannot assure you that these proceedings will be decided in favor of our Company. Further,
there is no assurance that similar proceedings will not be initiated against us in the future. Any adverse outcome in any of the
below mentioned proceedings could have an adverse effect on our reputation and may affect our future business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations. It further may divert the attention of our management and promoters and waste
our corporate resources. For details of these proceedings, see “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on
beginning from page 103 of this Draft Letter of Offer. A classification of these legal and other proceedings is given below:
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Sr No. Outstanding Litigation Number of | Financial Implications to the Extent
Matter Quantifiable In INR

1. Filed against the Company
Criminal & Civil Cases -
Direct Tax & Indirect Tax 3 29,25,987

2. Filed against Promoters & Directors
Criminal & Civil Cases - -
Direct Tax & Indirect Tax 1 53,167
TOTAL 4 29,79,154

Note: The amount mentioned above may be subject to additional interest, rates or Penalties being levied by the concerned
authorities for delay in making payment or otherwise. In the absence of Order copy of the Income Tax Department, the
nature, extents and status of the Cases cannot be ascertained.

Trading of the Company was suspended in the past.

The Trading of the Company was suspended in the Past on the Platform of the BSE Limited. The Stock Exchange vide its
notice dated 20100120-19 dated 20" January, 2010 revoked the above suspension with effect from 27" January, 2010. We
cannot assure you that, the trading of the Company will not be suspended in future for any non-compliances. Such a
situation may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Certain aspects of our business, including procurement of materials are seasonal in nature.

We are largely dependent on the agricultural industry for almost all of our materials. The agricultural industry is largely
dependent on various factors including monsoon and weather conditions. Meteorologically, our country has diversified
and different weather conditions that prevail at different places. Any vagaries of weather and abnormal monsoon may
affect crop production, destroy crops and subsequently increase the prices of our raw materials which can have an adverse
effect on our results of operations. Although the demand for our products is continuous throughout the year, we are affected
by seasonality in procurement of raw materials. Therefore, our results of operations and cash flows across quarters in a
Fiscal may not be comparable and any such comparisons may not be meaningful, or may not be indicative of our annual
financial results or our results in any future quarters or periods.

The company’s business is dependent on certain suppliers and the loss of one or more of them would have a material
adverse effect on the business.

A substantial portion of the company’s purchases has been dependent upon a few suppliers. Our inability to obtain raw
material in a timely manner, in sufficient quantities could adversely affect our operations, financial condition and/or
profitability. We depend on a number of suppliers, for procurement of raw materials required for processing and trading
of our products. For the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, top ten suppliers accounted for 58.62%
and 40.66% of our total purchases respectively. We have not entered into long term contracts with our suppliers and prices
for raw materials are normally based on the quotes we receive from various suppliers. Inadequate and unavailability /
substandard quality of the raw materials used in the processing of our products, could have a material adverse effect our
business. Further, any discontinuation of production by these suppliers or a failure of these suppliers to adhere to the
delivery schedule or the required quality and quantity could hamper our delivery schedule. There can be no assurance that
strong demand, capacity limitations or other problems experienced by our suppliers will not result in occasional shortages
or delays in their supply of raw materials to us. Further, we cannot assure you that our suppliers will continue to be
associated with us on reasonable terms, or at all. Since our suppliers are not contractually bound to deal with us exclusively,
we may face the risk of our competitors offering better terms to such suppliers, which may cause them to cater to our
competitors alongside. In the event that we fail to secure sufficient quantities of such raw materials from our suppliers at
acceptable quality and prices in a timely manner, our business, financial performance and cash flows may be adversely
affected.
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Substantial portion of our revenues has been dependent upon few customers. The loss of any one or more of our major
customers would have a material effect on our business operations and profitability.

A portion of the Company’s revenues has been dependent upon a few customers. For the financial year ended March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023, our top ten customers accounted for approximately 51.85% and 33.08 % of our revenue from
operations. However, the loss of any significant customer would have a material effect on our financial results.

Our business from customers is dependent on our continuing relationship with such customers, the quality of our products
and our ability to deliver on their orders, and there can be no assurance that such customers will continue to do business
with us in the future on commercially acceptable terms or at all. However, in case of any change in the buying pattern of
our end users or disassociation of major customers can adversely affect our business or if our customers do not continue
to purchase products from us, or reduce the volume of products purchased from us, our business prospects, results of
operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. Further, loss of or interruption of work by, a significant
customer or a number of significant customers or the inability to procure new orders on a regular basis or at all may have
an adverse effect on our revenues, cash flows and operations.

While we are constantly striving to increase our customer base and reduce dependence on any particular customer, there
is no assurance that we will be able to broaden our customer base in any future periods or that our business or results of
operations will not be adversely affected by a reduction in demand or cessation of our relationship with any of our major
customers.

The improper handling, processing or storage of our products or raw materials, or spoilage of and damage to such
products or raw materials, or any real or perceived contamination in our products or raw materials, could subject us to
regulatory action, damage our reputation and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Our products and raw materials are subject to risks such as contamination, adulteration etc. during their processing,
transport or storage. Any actual or alleged contamination of our products or raw materials could damage our reputation,
adversely affect our sales and result in legal proceedings being initiated against us, irrespective of whether such allegations
have any factual basis. However, our Company has not faced any instance of spoilage of and damage to such products or
raw materials, or any real or perceived contamination in our products or raw materials which had material impact on the
financial and result of operations of our Company. Any allegation relating to, or the discovery of, unauthorized
contaminants in our products or raw materials processed by us, which causes or is alleged to cause injury or illness,
allegations that our products were not produced in accordance with our customer’s specifications and/or have not
performed adequately, even where food safety or other product safety is not a concern could damage our reputation,
adversely affect our sales and may cause product liability or other legal proceedings being initiated against us by our
customers, irrespective of whether such allegations have any factual basis. We may also be subject to regulatory action
and mandatory product recalls. We cannot assure you that we will not be subject to such product liability claims in the
future, whether or not legitimate, or product recalls, whether voluntary or mandatory. Defending such claims or regulatory
action could be time-consuming and may also result in unexpected expenditures, and our reputation, business, financial
condition, cash flows and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Our Company maintains high level of inventory for uninterrupted production activities.

Our inventory for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 were % 4,287.99 lakhs and  2,885.59
lakhs respectively. While our Revenue from Operations during the Fiscal 2023-24 was ¥ 20,924.40 Lakhs. Our requirement
of maintaining inventory is high when compared to other companies in the same industry. Maintaining such high level of
inventory requires extensive investments in working capital and strains our financial resources. Further, stocking high
inventory may also lead to risks of scrapping of raw material, decay due to time, wear and tear. While we believe, we do
maintain optimum level of inventory in consideration to our production level, our major portion of inventory is towards
stocking of Raw Material. We continue to assess and maintain inventory level strategically giving importance to both
operational and financial performance.
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The results of operations of our business are also dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory and stocks.
To effectively manage our inventory, we must be able to accurately estimate customer demand and supply requirements
accordingly. If our management has miscalculated expected customer demand it could adversely impact the results by
causing either a shortage of products or an accumulation of excess inventory. Further, if we fail to sell the inventory, we
may be required to write-down our inventory or pay our suppliers without new purchases or create additional vendor
financing, which could have an adverse impact on our income and cash flows.

Any increase in the cost of our raw material or other purchases or a shortfall in the supply of our raw materials, may
adversely affect the pricing and supply of our products and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

The success of our operations depends on a variety of factors, including our ability to source raw materials at competitive
prices. Raw material supply and pricing can be volatile due to a number of factors beyond our control, including demand
and supply, general economic and political conditions, transportation and labour costs, natural disasters, pandemic,
competition and there are inherent uncertainties in estimating such variables, regardless of the methodologies and
assumptions that we may use.

We seek to source our raw materials from our suppliers and typically seek quotations from multiple suppliers. We may be
required to track the supply demand dynamics and regularly negotiate prices with our suppliers in case of significant
fluctuations in raw material prices or foreign currency fluctuations. Further, we procure a large portion of our raw materials
from a few suppliers, any disruption of supply of raw materials from such suppliers could adversely impact our operations
and business if we are unable to replace such suppliers in a timely manner. However, we have not entered into any
definitive agreements with any of our suppliers. We cannot assure you that we will be able to enter into new arrangements
with suppliers on terms acceptable to us, which could have an adverse effect on our ability to source raw materials in a
commercially viable and timely manner, if at all, which may impact our business and profitability. We are also subject to
the risk that one or more of our existing suppliers may discontinue their operations, which may adversely affect our ability
to source raw materials at a competitive price. Additionally, there can be no assurance that demand, capacity limitations
or other problems experienced by our suppliers will not result in occasional shortages or delays in their supply of raw
materials.

If we were to experience a significant or prolonged shortage of raw materials from any of our suppliers, and we cannot
procure the raw materials from other sources, we would be unable to deliver such products to our customers in a timely
manner, which would adversely affect our sales, margins and customer relations. Therefore, we cannot assure you that we
will be able to procure adequate supplies of raw materials in the future, as and when we need them and on commercially
acceptable terms.

For further details about business of our Company, please refer chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on Page 70 of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our inability to manage our inventory and foresee accurate demand for our products for a future period may adversely
affect our reputation, business, results of operation and our financial performance.

The estimations on demands of our products are typically based on our projections, inventory levels, our understanding of
the anticipation of consumption and spending by our consumers. If we overestimate demand for our products, we may face
difficulty on storage of such products due to lower shelf life and complications with respect to storage of perishable
products. Further, if we are unable to provide our products to our consumers due to shortage of raw materials, we may
incur the risk of customers choosing other products over our products. While we closely monitor our inventory
requirements for our product, we may be exposed to various risks including the aforementioned risks. All of these factors
could adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operation and our financial performance.
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Our operations are subject to high working capital requirements. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows to
allow us to make required payments, there may be an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business requires significant amount of working capital and major portion of our working capital is utilized towards
debtors and inventories. Our Trade Receivables for the financial year March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 were X 2,769.42
lakhs and X 1,981.69 lakhs respectively and our inventories for the financial year March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
were X 4,287.99 lakhs and X 2,885.59 lakhs respectively.

The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory and trade
receivables. To effectively manage our trade receivables, we must be able to accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of
our customers and ensure that suitable terms and conditions are given to them in order to ensure our continued relationship
with them. However, if our management fails to accurately evaluate the terms and conditions with our customers, it may
lead to write-offs bad debts and/ or delay in recoveries which could lead to a liquidity crunch, thereby adversely affecting
our business and results of operations. A liquidity crunch may also result in increased working capital borrowings and,
consequently, higher finance cost which will adversely impact our profitability.

Our inability to maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sourcing of funding, in a timely manner, or at all, to
meet the requirement of working capital or pay out debts, could adversely affect our financial condition and result of our
operations. In the event we are not able to recover our dues from our trade receivables or sell our inventory, we may not
be able to maintain our Sales level and thus adversely affecting our financial health.

For further details of working capital requirements, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 47 of
the Draft Letter of Offer.

We do not own certain premises which we use for the purpose of our business operations.

Our Corporate Office is situated at 419/420, C Wing, Atrium 215, Andheri-Kurla Road, Chakala, Andheri East, J. B.
Nagar, Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra, India, and our warehouse is situated at D-22/8, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC,
Turbhe, Navi Mumbai — 400705 is not owned by us. We have entered into rent agreements with the owner of the said
premises. For further details, see section “Our Business” on page 70 of this Draft Letter of Offer. If we are required to
vacate the current premises, we would be required to make alternative arrangements for new offices and other
infrastructure, and we cannot assure that the new arrangements will be on commercially acceptable/favourable terms. If
we are required to relocate our business operations during this period, we may suffer a disruption in our operations or have
to pay higher charges, which could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition.

We have not entered into any long-term contracts with any of our customer.

We do not have any long-term contracts with our customer and any change in the business pattern of our existing customers
could adversely affect the business of our Company. As a result, our customers can terminate their relationships with us
due to a change in preference or any other reason on immediate basis, which could materially and adversely impact our
business. Consequently, our revenue may be subject to variability because of fluctuations in demand for our products. Our
Company's customers have no obligation to work with us and may either cancel, reduce, or delay the business. The business
by our Company's customers is dependent on factors such as the customer satisfaction with the level of service that our
Company provides, fluctuation in demand for our Company's products, customer’s inventory management, amongst
others. Although we have satisfactory business relations with our customers and have received continued business from
them in the past, there is no certainty that the same will continue in the years to come and may affect our profitability.
Although, we have a strong emphasis on quality, timely delivery of our products and raw materials and personal interaction
by the management with the customers and suppliers, any change in the buying pattern of buyers and preferences of
suppliers can adversely affect the business and the profitability of our Company.
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Our business requires us to obtain and renew certain licenses and permits from government, regulatory authorities and
the failure to obtain or renew them in a timely manner may adversely affect our business operations.

Our business requires us to obtain and renew from time to time, certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permits. In
addition, we require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions under various regulations, guidelines,
circulars and statutes regulated by authorities such as the Government of India, the State Governments and certain other
regulatory and government authorities, for operating our business. In particular, we are required to obtain certificate of
registrations for carrying on certain of our business activities from the Government of India, the State Governments and
other such regulatory authorities that are subject to numerous conditions. If we fail to maintain such registrations and
licenses or comply with applicable conditions, our certificate of registration for carrying on a particular activity may be
suspended and/or cancelled and we will not then be able to carry on such activity. This could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may require various regulatory approvals, sanctions, licenses, registrations and permissions including environmental
clearances in connection with our operations and the various development activities involved in such orders. We may face
significant uncertainties due to various factors in obtaining or maintaining such approvals. If such approvals are not
obtained in a timely manner or at all, there may be a material adverse effect on various development activities, including
our operations, thereby adversely affecting our results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, our government
approvals and licenses are subject to humerous conditions, some of which are onerous and require us to incur substantial
expenditures. If we fail to comply or a regulator alleges that we have not complied with these conditions, our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected. While we typically apply for the renewal
of any existing regulatory approvals prior to their expiry dates, there can be no assurance that we will receive such renewal
in time or at all.

Our Company had negative cash flow in recent fiscals, details of which are given below. Sustained negative cash flow
could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The detailed break up of cash flows is summarized in below mentioned table and our Company has reported negative cash
flow in certain financial years:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Net cash from operating activities -222.08 -165.17
Net Cash (used in) / from investing activities -596.46 109.38
Net Cash used in financing activities 652.63 48.96
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent -165.92 -6.83

There can be no assurance that our net cash flows shall be positive in the future. Any negative cash flows in the future over
extended periods, or significant negative cash flows in the short term, could materially impact our ability to operate our
business and implement our growth plans. As a result, our cash flows, business, future financial performance and results
of operations could be materially and adversely affected. For further details, see “Financial Information” beginning on
page 54 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

An inability to renew quality accreditations in a timely manner or at all, or any deficiencies in the quality of our products
may adversely affect our business prospects and financial performance.

We obtain and maintain quality certifications and accreditations from independent certification entities and also comply
with prescribed specifications and standards of quality approved by the Government in connection with the products we
sell. Such specifications and standards of quality is an important factor in the success and wide acceptability of our
products. If we fail to comply with applicable quality standards or if the relevant accreditation institute or agency declines
to certify our products, or if we are otherwise unable to obtain such quality accreditations in the future, in a timely manner
or at all, our business prospects and financial performance will be materially and adversely affected.

Page | 25



16.

17.

18.

19.

@NHC

Orders placed by customers may be delayed, modified, cancelled or not fully paid for by our customers, which may have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may encounter problems in executing the orders in relation to our products, or executing it on a timely basis. Moreover,
factors beyond our control or the control of our customers may postpone the delivery of such products or cause its
cancellation, including delays or failure to obtain necessary permits, authorizations, permissions and other types of
difficulties or obstructions. Due to the possibility of cancellations or changes in scope and schedule of delivery of such
products, resulting from our customer’s discretion or problems we encounter in the delivery of such products or reasons
outside our control or the control of our customers, we cannot predict with certainty when, if or to what extent we may be
able to deliver the orders placed. Additionally, delays in the delivery of such products can lead to customers delaying or
refusing to pay the amount, in part or full, that we expect to be paid in respect of such products. In addition, even where a
delivery proceeds as scheduled, it is possible that the contracting parties may default or otherwise fail to pay amounts
owed. While we have not yet experienced any material delay, reduction in order, cancellation, execution difficulty,
payment postponement or payment default with regard to the orders placed with us, or disputes with customers in respect
of any of the foregoing, any such adverse event in the future could materially harm our cash flow position and income.
Further, we operate in highly competitive markets in relation to our products where it is difficult to predict whether and
when we will receive such orders. As a result, our results of operations can fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to
year depending on whether and when such orders are awarded to us. For further details of our business, please refer chapter
titled “Our Business” beginning on Page 70 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Certain relevant copies of educational qualification and experience certificates of our promoters/Directors are not
traceable.

Some of our Directors/Promoter i.e. Karan Hareshlal Nagdev have been unable to trace copies of documents pertaining to
their educational qualifications and prior professional experiences. Accordingly, reliance has been placed on signed
resume, declarations, undertakings and affidavits furnished by these Directors/Promoters to the Lead Manager to disclose
details of their educational qualifications and professional experience in this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, the Lead
Manager has been unable to independently verify these details prior to inclusion in this Draft Letter of Offer. Further, there
can be no assurances that our Directors/Promoters will be able to trace the relevant documents or provide accurate and
complete details pertaining to the above information in the future, or at all.

Non-traceability of certain secretarial and statutory records of the company since incorporation

Since the company was incorporated on August 04, 1992, our Company is unable to trace certain corporate and other
documents such as copies of certain prescribed forms filed with the RoC from the date of our incorporation up to 2006.
While we believe that we had filed these forms with the RoC in a timely matter, we have not been able to obtain copies of
these forms. While there is no outstanding litigation or regulatory proceeding on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer
which requires these forms, there can be no assurance that these forms will not be required in the legal proceedings in the
future. We cannot assure you that we will be able to locate or obtain access to the documentation pertaining to such
historical, legal and secretarial data or information or that we will not be subject to any penalty imposed by any relevant
regulatory authority due to our inability to locate or obtain access to such documentation.

We operate in an industry with several competitors and we may fail to compete successfully against existing or new
competitors, which may reduce the demand for our products and services which may lead to reduced prices, operating
margins, profits and further result in loss of market share across product categories.

We operate in an industry with several competitors, and face competition from domestic and international competitors in
the markets in which we operate. It is possible that some of our existing and potential competitors may have greater brand
recognition in India or globally, longer operating histories, greater financial, research, distribution and technological
resources, product development, sales and marketing, more experienced management, access to a cheaper cost of capital
and other resources than we do. Some of our competitors may have lower costs, or be able to offer lower prices and a
larger variety of products in order to gain market share. If market prices are substantially reduced by our competitors in
the respective markets, our business in those markets could be adversely affected. Our competitors may also make
acquisitions or establish cooperative or other strategic relationships, among themselves or with third parties, thereby
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increasing their ability to address the needs of our targeted customers and offering lower cost products and services than
we do which may have a negative effect on our sales. Further, new competitors may emerge at any time. Further, some of
our competitors may have the ability to devote greater resources to the marketing, advertising and product endorsement.
As a result, these competitors may be better equipped to influence consumer preferences or otherwise increase their market
share. Increased competition could result in, among other things, a slowdown in the growth of our corporate customers, a
loss of our market share, price reductions, reduced demand for our products, reductions in revenues and reduced margins
and profitability.

The success of our business strategy depends on our ability to enhance our own brands and product portfolio. If we fail
to maintain and enhance our brand and reputation, consumers’ recognition of our brands, and trust in us, our business
may be materially and adversely affected.

Our brand and reputation are among our most important assets and we believe our brands serve in attracting consumers to
our products in preference over those of our competitors. Enhancing our own brands, including various schemes, direct
marketing is one of our most important business strategies. Consumers in existing or new markets may be unfamiliar with
our brand and products and we may need to build or increase brand awareness in the relevant markets by increasing
investments in advertising and promotional activities than we originally planned. We face, and will continue to face,
competition with established brands in the new markets we intend to enter. Our success in marketing our products also
depend on our ability to adapt to a rapidly changing market environment. If we do not successfully maintain, extend and
expand our reputation and brand image, then our brands, product sales, financial condition, future cash flows and results
of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Our Company has entered into certain related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.

We have entered into and may in the ordinary course of our business continue to enter into transactions with related parties
that include certain of our Promoter, Promoter Group, Directors and Group Companies. For further details in relation to
our related party transactions, see “Financial Statements - Related Party Transaction” beginning on page 83 of the Draft
Letter of Offer. While we have entered into such transactions on an arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable law, there is no assurance that we could not have
achieved more favorable terms had such transactions not been entered into with related parties. There can be no assurance
that such transactions, will not have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition. In addition, our business and growth prospects may decline if we cannot benefit from our relationships with
them in the future.

In addition to our existing indebtedness for our operations, we may be required to obtain further loan during the course
of business. There can be no assurance that we would be able to service our existing and/or additional indebtedness.

In addition to our existing indebtedness for our existing operations we may be required to raise further debt in the form of
term loans and working capital loans in the course of business. Increased borrowings, if any, would adversely affect our
debt-equity ratio and our ability to further borrow at competitive rates. Any failure to service our indebtedness or otherwise
perform our obligations under our financing agreements could lead to a termination of one or more of our credit facilities,
trigger cross default provisions, penalties and acceleration of amounts due under such facilities which may adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our debt financing agreements contain certain restrictive covenants that may adversely affect our Company’s business,
credit ratings, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Certain debt financing agreements that our Company has entered into contain restrictive covenants that limit our ability

to undertake certain types of transactions. Under our debt financing agreements our Company is required to maintain
certain financial covenants.

There can be no assurance that our Company has complied with all such restrictive covenants in a timely manner or at all
or that we will be able to observe compliance with all such restrictive covenants in the future. A failure to observe the
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restrictive covenants under our debt financing agreements may result in termination of our financing agreements, levy of
default interest, acceleration of all amounts due under such facilities and the enforcement of any security provided in
relation thereto. Any acceleration of amounts due under such debt financing agreements may trigger cross-default or cross-
acceleration provisions under other debt financing agreements, which may compel us to dedicate a substantial portion of
our cash flow from operations or sell certain assets to make such payments thereby reducing the availability of cash for
our working capital requirements and other general corporate purposes. Further, in the event of any of the circumstances
coming into effect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Our ability to protect or use intellectual property right may adversely affect our business.

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has several registered trademarks in India. For details of
intellectual properties, see “Our Business” on page 70 of this Draft Letter of Offer. If we are unable to renew or register
our trademark for various reasons or used by a third party in India or abroad, we may not be able to claim registered
ownership of such trademark and consequently, we may not be able to seek remedies for infringement of those trademarks
by third parties other than relief against passing off by other entities, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation
and goodwill in India and abroad. Apart from this, any failure to register or renew registration of our registered trademark
may affect our right to use such trademark in future. Further, our efforts to protect our intellectual property in India and
abroad may not be adequate and any third-party claim on any of our unprotected intellectual property may lead to erosion
of our business value and our reputation, which could adversely affect our operations. Third parties may also infringe or
copy our registered brand name in India and abroad which has been registered by us in India. We may not be able to detect
any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect our trademarks in India and abroad.

Our Company has availed certain unsecured loan which can be recalled at any time.

Our Company has availed certain unsecured loan amounting to X 58.74 lakhs as on March 31, 2024. The unsecured loan
taken by our Company from Related Parties may be recalled at any time. Though our Company intends to repay the loan
amount in near future, sudden recall may disrupt our operations and also may force us to find alternative sources of
financing, which may not be available on commercial reasonable terms or at all. opt for funding at higher interest rates,
resulting in higher financial burden. We may not have adequate working capital to meet business requirements of our
Company, and, as a result, any such demand by the lenders may affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and
results of operations. Further, in respect of such unsecured loan, no proper agreement has been executed between the
parties.

Our lenders have charge over our Machinery, book debts, stocks in respect of finance availed by us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a charge over our Immovable Property, Inventory, Receivables, Building etc. in
respect of loans / facilities availed by us from banks. The total amounts outstanding and payable by us as secured loans
were X 3,260.90 Lakhs as on March 31, 2024. In the event we default in repayment of the loans / facilities availed by us
and any interest thereof, our assets may be forfeited by lenders, which in turn could have significant adverse effect on
business, financial condition or results of operations.

We are dependent on third party transportation providers for procuring raw material from our suppliers and delivery
of products to our clients. Any failure on the part of such service providers to meet their obligations could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

We are dependent on third party transportation for raw material and supply of our products. Our success depends on the
smooth supply and transportation of the Raw Material and trading materials from our suppliers to us/ or to our
buyers/clients, both of which are subject to various uncertainties and risks. Though our business has not experienced any
disruptions due to transportation strikes in the past, any future transportation strikes may have an adverse effect on our
business.

In addition, materials may be lost or damaged in transit for various reasons including occurrence of accidents or natural

disasters. There may also be delay in delivery of materials which may also affect our business and our results of operation
negatively. A failure to maintain a continuous supply of materials to us as well as to our clients in an efficient and reliable
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manner could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Promoter & Promoter Group have provided personal guarantees for loans availed by our Company. Our business,
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects may be adversely affected by the invocation of all
or any personal guarantees provided by our Promoter.

Our Promoter & Promoter Group have provided personal guarantees to secure a significant portion of our existing
borrowings, and may post listing continue to provide such guarantees and other security. In case of a default under our
loan agreements, any of the personal guarantees provided by our Promoter may be invoked, which could negatively impact
the reputation of our Company. Also, we may face certain impediments in taking decisions in relation to our Company,
which in turn would result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition, business, results of operations and
prospects and would negatively impact our reputation. In addition, our Promoters may be required to liquidate their
shareholding in our Company to settle the claims of the lenders, thereby diluting their shareholding in our Company. Also,
if our Promoters revoke their personal guarantees and we may not be successful in procuring alternate guarantees and
property satisfactory to the lenders, as a result we may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek
additional sources of capital, which could affect our financial condition and cash flows.

Our success depends largely on our Directors, Promoters and other key managerial personnel and the loss of or our
inability to attract or retain such persons with specialized technical know-how could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our performance depends largely on the efforts and abilities of our Directors, Promoters and other key personnels. We
believe that the inputs and experience of our Directors, Promoters and key managerial personnel are valuable for the
development of business and operations and the strategic directions taken by our Company. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to retain these employees or find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. We may require a long
period of time to hire and train replacement personnel when qualified personnel terminate their employment with our
Company. We may also be required to increase our levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to
remain competitive in attracting employees that our business requires. The loss of the services of such persons may have
an adverse effect on our business and our results of operations. The continued operations and growth of our business is
dependent upon our ability to attract and retain personnel who have the necessary and required experience and expertise.
Competition for qualified personnel with relevant industry expertise in India is intense. A loss of the services of our key
personnel may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our success depends heavily upon our Promoters and Directors for their continuing services, strategic guidance and
financial support.

Our success depends heavily upon the continuing services of Promoters & Directors who are the natural person in control
of our Company. Our Promoters have a vast experience in the field of Agriculture Industry. They have established cordial
relations with various customers over the past several years, which have immensely benefitted our Company’s current
customer relations. We believe that our relation with our Promoters, who have rich experience the industry, managing
customers and handling overall businesses, has enabled us to experience growth and profitability. We benefit from our
relationship with our Promoters and our success depends upon the continuing services of our Promoters who have been
responsible for the growth of our business and are closely involved in the overall strategy, direction and management of
our business. Further, our Promoters are also part of certain other ventures and may continue to do so. If they divert their
attention to such other concerns, we may not be able to function as efficiently and profitably as before. We may have to
incur additional costs to replace the services of our Promoters or we may not be able to do so at all, which could adversely
affect our business operations and affect our ability to continue to manage and expand our business.

We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences could
adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and cause serious

harm to our reputation and goodwill of our Company. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter
such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective in all cases.
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Our employees may also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as
regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial condition, results of operations and goodwill could be
adversely affected.

The future operating results are difficult to predict and may fluctuate or adversely vary from the past performance.

The company’s operating results may fluctuate or adversely vary from past performances in the future due to a number of
factors, many of which are beyond the company’s control. The results of operations during any financial year or from
period to period may differ from one another or from the expected results of operation. Its business, results of operations
and financial conditions may be adversely affected by, inter alia, a decrease in the growth and demand for the products
and services offered by us or any strategic alliances which may subsequently become a liability or non-profitable. Due to
various reasons including the above, the future performance may fluctuate or adversely vary from our past performances
and may not be predictable. For further details of our operating results, section titled “Financial Information” beginning
on Page 83 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

We have not entered into any long-term contracts with any of our clients.

We do not have any long-term contracts with our clients and any change in the business pattern of our existing clients
could adversely affect the business of our Company. As a result, our customers can terminate their relationships with us
due to a change in preference or any other reason on immediate basis, which could materially and adversely impact our
business. Consequently, our revenue may be subject to variability because of fluctuations in demand for our products and
services. Our Company's customers have no obligation to work with us and may either cancel, reduce, or delay the business.
The business by our Company's customers is dependent on factors such as the customer satisfaction with the level of
service that our Company provides, fluctuation in demand for our Company's products, customer’s inventory management,
amongst others. Although we have satisfactory business relations with our clients and have received continued business
from them in the past, there is no certainty that the same will continue in the years to come and may affect our profitability.
Although, we have a strong emphasis on quality, timely delivery of our products and raw materials and personal interaction
by the senior management with the customers and suppliers, any change in the buying pattern of buyers and preferences
of suppliers can adversely affect the business and the profitability of our Company.

Our Company has significant portion of Property Plant and Equipment. Any destruction, breakdown, theft of our major
plants or equipment or failures to repair or maintain the same may adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

We own a number of equipment and machinery used in our operations. To maintain our capability to undertake projects,
we may have to purchase additional machines and equipment built with the latest technologies and knowhow. We cannot
assure you that we will be immune from the associated operational risks such as the obsolescence of our plants or
equipment, destruction, theft or major equipment breakdowns or failures to repair our major plants or equipment, which
may result in their unavailability, project delays, cost overruns and even defaults in our order book.

The latest technologies used in newer models of equipment may improve productivity significantly and render our older
equipment obsolete. Obsolescence, destruction, theft or breakdowns of our major plants or equipment may significantly
increase our equipment purchase cost and the depreciation of our plants and equipment, as well as change the way our
management estimates the useful life of our plants and equipment. We may have to incur high cost when our plants or
equipment are not readily available from the market or requires services from original equipment manufacturers. We may
experience significant price increases due to supply shortages, inflation, transportation difficulties or unavailability of bulk
discounts. Such replacement, repair or maintenance failures or price increases may not be adequately covered by the
insurance policies availed by our Company and may have an adverse effect on our business, cash flows, financial condition
and results of operations.

Delays or defaults in customer payments could adversely affect our financial condition.

We are exposed to payment delays and/or defaults by our customers and our financial position and financial performance
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are dependent on the creditworthiness of our customers. Further, we may not receive advance payment from our customers
after signing the purchase orders. Delays in customers’ payments may require us to make a working capital investment. If
a customer defaults in making payments where we have devoted significant resources or where we have invested
significant resources is delayed, cancelled, or does not proceed to completion, it could have an adverse effect on our
operating results. For the period ending March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, our trade receivables were X 2,769.42 lakhs
and T 1,981.69 lakhs, respectively. However, in the past, our Company has not faced any such instance of default but there
is no guarantee that the timeliness of all or any part of our customers’ payments and whether they will be able to fulfil their
obligations, which may arise from their financial difficulties, cash flow difficulties, deterioration in their business
performance, or a downturn in the global economy. If such events or circumstances occur, our financial performance and
our operating cash flows may be adversely affected.

General economic and market conditions in India and globally could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, cash flows, results of operations and prospects.

Our business is highly dependent on economic and market conditions in India and overseas jurisdictions where we operate.
General economic and political conditions in India and abroad, such as macroeconomic and monetary policies, industry-
specific trends, mergers and acquisitions activity, legislation and regulations relating to the financial and securities
industries, household savings rate, investment in alternative financial instruments, upward and downward trends in the
market, business and financial sectors, volatility in security prices, perceived lack of attractiveness of the Indian capital
markets, inflation, foreign direct investment, consumer confidence, currency and interest rate fluctuations, availability of
short-term and long-term market funding sources and cost of funding, could affect our business. Global economic and
political conditions may also adversely affect the Indian economic conditions. Market conditions may change rapidly and
the Indian capital markets have experienced significant volatility in the past. The Indian economy has had sustained periods
of high inflation in the recent past. If inflation or real interest rates were to rise significantly, the trends towards increased
financial savings might slow down or reverse, our employee costs may increase and the sales of many of our products and
services may decline.

We are subject to risks resulting from foreign exchange rate fluctuations, which could adversely affect our results of
operations.

Our revenue from international operations during the period ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 as a percentage
of total revenue was 82.88% and 83.74%, respectively. Our Company also imports certain of its raw materials and for the
period March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, our imports accounted for 0.80% and 0.00% of total purchases respectively.
Changes in currency exchange rates influence our results of operations.

Over dependence on exports and imports may adversely affect our profitability in case the trade relations of India with any
of these countries get strained in the future or these countries face any sort of problems due to internal issues of their
countries. Also, the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and currencies of the export countries as well as import
countries may fluctuate and adversely affect our results of operations. The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and
foreign currencies has fluctuated significantly in recent years and may continue to fluctuate in the future. Volatility in the
exchange rate and/or sustained appreciation of the Indian Rupee will negatively impact our revenue and operating results.
We presently do not enter into hedging contracts for hedging our foreign exchange risks.

We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies.

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies effectively. Even
though we have successfully executed our business strategies in the past, there is no guarantee that we can implement the
same on time and within the estimated budget going forward, or that we will be able to meet the expectations of our
targeted clients. Changes in regulations applicable to us may also make it difficult to implement our business strategies.
Failure to implement our business strategies would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us against certain operating hazards and this may have a
material adverse effect on our business.
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We maintain several insurance policies, including Marine Export Import Insurance Open Policy, Burglary Insurance
Policy, Car Policy etc. For further information on the “Our Business” please refer to page 70 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
While it is believed that the insurance coverage maintained by the company would reasonably be adequate to cover all
normal risks associated with the operation of our business, there can be no assurance that any claim under the insurance
policies maintained by the company will be honoured fully, in part or on time, nor that we have taken out sufficient
insurance to cover all material losses. If we were to suffer loss or damage resulting from not obtaining or maintaining
insurance or exceeding our insurance coverage, the loss would have to be borne by us and it could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our funding requirements and proposed deployment of the Net Proceeds are based on management estimates and have
not been independently appraised and may be subject to change based on various factors, some of which are beyond
our control. Further, we may not be able to utilise the proceeds from this Issue in a timely manner or at all.

Our funding requirements and deployment of the Net Proceeds are based on internal management estimates based on
current market conditions and have not been appraised by any bank or financial institution or other independent agency.
Furthermore, in the absence of such independent appraisal, our funding requirements may be subject to change based on
various factors which are beyond our control. For further details, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 47 of this Draft Letter
of Offer. Further, our funding requirements and the deployment of the proceeds from this Issue are based on our current
business plan and strategy and therefore we may have to reconsider our estimates or business plans due to changes in
underlying factors, some of which are beyond our control, such as fluctuations in raw material prices, changes in input
cost, and other financial and operational factors. Accordingly, we may not be able to utilize the proceeds from this Issue
in the manner set out in this Draft Letter of Offer in a timely manner or at all. As regards utilization of Net Proceeds for
repayment of loans or prepayment of loan will be based on various factors, including the factors specified in the section
“Objects of the Issue” on page 47 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Industry information included in this Draft Letter of Offer has been derived from industry reports. There can be no
assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry information is either complete or accurate.

We have relied on the reports of certain independent third party for purposes of inclusion of such information in this Draft
Letter of Offer. These reports are subject to various limitations and based upon certain assumptions that are subjective in
nature. We have not independently verified data from such industry reports and other sources. Although we believe that
the data may be considered to be reliable, their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed
and their dependability cannot be assured. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of the information,
the information has not been prepared or independently verified by us or any of our respective affiliates or advisors and,
therefore, we make no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of such facts
and statistics. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or discrepancies between published information
and market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics
produced for other economies and should not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or
compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as may be the case elsewhere. Statements from third
parties that involve estimates are subject to change, and actual amounts may differ materially from those included in this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares may dilute your shareholdings, and sale of the Equity Shares by our major
shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Any future equity issuances by our Company may lead to the dilution of investors’ shareholdings in our Company. In
addition, any sale of substantial Equity Shares in the public market after the completion of this Issue, including by our
major shareholders, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect the market price of the Equity
Shares and could significantly impair our future ability to raise capital through offerings of the Equity Shares. We cannot
predict what effect, if any, market sales of the Equity Shares held by the major shareholders of our Company or the
availability of these Equity Shares for future sale will have on the market price of our Equity Shares.
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If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the total Issue Size, the Issue may fail.

Our Promoter and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, vide their letters dated July 29, 2024 (the
“Subscription Letters”) undertaken that the Rights Issue is only for the Public Shareholders and there will be no Rights
Entitlement to the Promoter and entities forming part of the Promoter Group. In the eventuality of an under-subscription
in the Issue the Promoter and entities forming part of the Promoter Group will not purchase any additional Rights
Entitlements either on-market or off-market and will not subscribe to the unsubscribed portion of the Issue, if any.

In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum
subscription of at least 90% of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate basis, of the Issue Size,
or the subscription level falls below 90% of the Issue Size, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount
received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in accordance with SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021. If there is any delay in the refund of the subscription amount
beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period, at such rates
as prescribed under the applicable laws. For further details, please see “General Information - Minimum Subscription”
on page 33.

Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without compensation and
result in a dilution of Investor’s shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Closing Date will expire and become null and void,
and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership and voting
interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements
will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may
not be sufficient to fully compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our
Company that may be caused as a result of the Rights Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in
completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the
demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the Rights Entitlements do not get
credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be able to apply in this Rights Issue with
respect to such Rights Entitlements.

SEBI has recently, by way of Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023,
streamlined the process of rights issues. Eligible Equity Shareholders should follow the instructions carefully, as stated
in such SEBI circulars and in this Draft Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has recently been
introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market
intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated
in the SEBI Master Circular dated June 21, 2023, and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to
providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 180. In
accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular the credit of
Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue
Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity
Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our
Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares
held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in
the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of
which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements
returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court
proceedings.

There is no guarantee that the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Rights Issue will be listed on the Stock
Exchange in a timely manner.
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In accordance with Indian law and regulations and the requirements of the Stock Exchange, in principle and final approvals
for listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Rights Issue will not be applied for or granted
until after the Rights Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will require all relevant
documents authorising the issuing of Rights Equity Shares to be submitted. Accordingly, there could be a failure or delay
in listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. If there is a delay in obtaining such approvals, we may not be
able to credit the Rights Equity Shares allotted to the Investors to their depository participant accounts or assure ownership
of such Rights Equity Shares by the Investors in any manner promptly after the Closing Date. In any such event, the
ownership of the Investors over Rights Equity Shares allotted to them and their ability to dispose of any such Equity Shares
may be restricted. For further information on issue procedure, see “Issue Information” beginning on page 32.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form will have no voting rights in respect of Equity
Shares until they provide details of their demat account and Equity Shares are transferred to such demat account from
the demat suspense account thereafter.

The Equity Shares will be credited to a demat suspense account to be opened by our Company, in case of Allotment in
respect of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form and who have not provided the
details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date.
Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are required to send, amongst others, details of their demat accounts to our Company
or the Registrar to enable our Company to transfer, after verification of the details of such demat account by the Registrar,
the Equity Shares from the demat suspense account to the demat accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders. Unless
and until such Eligible Equity Shareholders provide details of their demat account and the Equity Shares are transferred
from demat suspense account to such demat accounts thereafter, they will have no voting rights in respect of Equity Shares.
For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 112.

The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form (“Physical
Shareholder”) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has recently been
introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market
intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated
in the SEBI circulars dated January 22, 2020 and May 6, 2020, read with SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated
January 19, 2021 and SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021,
and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely
manner. For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 112. In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity
Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only.

Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the
Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares to the Applicant’s demat account with
its depository participant shall be completed within such period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no
assurance, however, that material adverse changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic
conditions or other events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation or
financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s decision to invest in the Equity Shares, would not arise
between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue. Occurrence of any such events after the Issue
Closing Date could also impact the market price of our Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw
their applications in the event of any such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares
will not decline below the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price
after the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Equity Shares at a price that will be higher than
the actual market price of the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder will suffer an immediate
unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell
our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline.
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Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian law and could
thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares preemptive rights to
subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages prior to the
issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by the adoption of a special resolution
by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval
to issue without such rights. However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such
pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in such
jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing. We may elect not to file
a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to you. To the extent that you
are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would
be reduced.

Rights of shareholders under Indian law may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions.

Our Articles of Association and Indian law govern our corporate affairs. Legal principles relating to these matters and the
validity of corporate procedures, Director’s fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholders’ rights may differ from those
that would apply to a corporate entity in another jurisdiction. Shareholders’ rights under Indian law may not be as extensive
as shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more difficulty in asserting
their rights as one of our shareholders than as a shareholder of a bank or corporate entity in another jurisdiction. In
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, the voting rights of an equity shareholder in a company shall be in
proportion to the share of a person in the paid-up equity share capital of that company.

No market for the Rights Entitlements may develop and the price of the Rights Entitlements may be volatile.

No assurance can be given that an active trading market for the Rights Entitlements will develop on the Stock Exchange
during the Renunciation Period or that there will be sufficient liquidity in Rights Entitlements trading during this period.
The trading price of the Rights Entitlements will not only depend on supply and demand for the Rights Entitlements, which
may be affected by factors unrelated to the trading in the Equity Shares, but also on the quoted price of the Equity Shares,
amongst others. Factors affecting the volatility of the price of the Equity Shares, as described herein, may magnify the
volatility of the trading price of the Rights Entitlements, and a decline in the price of the Equity Shares will have an adverse
impact on the trading price of the Rights Entitlements. Since the trading of the Equity Shares will be on a separate segment
compared to the Equity Shares on the floor of the Stock Exchange, the trading of Equity Shares may not track the trading
of Equity Shares. The trading price of the Rights Entitlements may be subject to greater price fluctuations than that of the
Equity Shares.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

53.

54.

Changes in government regulations or their implementation could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

Our business and industry are regulated by different laws, rules and regulations framed by the Central and State
Government. These regulations can be amended/ changed on a short notice at the discretion of the Government. If we fail
to comply with all applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our business or their implementation change
adversely, we may incur increased costs or be subject to penalties, which could disrupt our operations and adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.
Under current Indian tax laws, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares within 12 months in an Indian company
are classified as short term capital gains and generally taxable. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a

stock exchange that are held for more than 12 months is considered as long-term capital gains and is taxable at 10%, in
excess of Rs. 1,00,000. Any long-term gain realized on the sale of equity shares, which are sold other than on a recognized
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stock exchange and on which no STT has been paid, is also subject to tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of
equity shares are exempt from taxation in India where an exemption from taxation in India is provided under a treaty
between India and the country of which the seller is resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to
impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable to pay tax in India as well as in their
own jurisdiction on a gain on the sale of equity shares.

Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously harm business and
economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.

The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of the economy.
Our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by interest rates, changes in
Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in or affecting
India. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting the sector, foreign
investment and other matters affecting investment in our securities could change as well. Any significant change in such
liberalization and deregulation policies could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India, generally, and
our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, in particular.

Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and negatively
affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect performance.
These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments, inflation,
deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, fluctuations in commodities markets, consumer debt
levels, unemployment trends and other matters that influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing
volatility in financial markets may cause these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude, which
may negatively affect our stock prices.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to attract foreign
investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfer of shares between non- residents and residents
are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements
specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing
guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the
RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India
into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate
from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government
agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

Any downgrading of India’s sovereign rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies may
adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such
additional financing may be available. This could have an adverse effect on our business and future financial performance,
our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures and the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause our Company’s business to suffer.

The current Covid-19 pandemic had brought the world to a standstill affecting all sectors and the livelihood of many are
at stake including the Indian economy. However, our Country is achieving normalcy by various measures taken by the
Government. The pandemic is still to be controlled and any major outbreak will seriously impact our business. Further,
our Country in the past has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. The extent and severity
of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other
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natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could adversely affect
the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity Shares.

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are beyond our
control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business. Incidents such as the terrorist attacks
in India, other incidents such as those in US, Indonesia, Madrid and London, and other acts of violence may adversely
affect the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will trade as well the global equity markets generally. Such acts
could negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade between countries, which could adversely affect our
Company’s business and profitability. Additionally, such events could have a material adverse effect on the market for
securities of Indian companies, including the Equity Shares.
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The present Issue of e/ Equity Shares on Rights basis in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer including terms of the Issue has been
authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board of Directors held on May 30, 2024 passed under Section 62(1)(a) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and conditions of the Issue including the Rights Entitlement, Issue
Price, Record Date, timing of the Issue and other related matters, have been approved by a resolution passed by the Board of
Directors/ Rights Issue Committee at its meeting held on [e].

The following is a summary of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified entirely by the information
detailed in “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page no. 211 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Up to [e]* Rights Equity Shares.

[e] Rights Equity Share(s) for every [e] fully paid-up Equity
Share(s) held on the Record Date

[e]
X1/- per Equity Share

X [e] per Equity Share

Issue of up to [e] Equity Shares of face value of X1 each for
cash at a price of X [e] per Rights Equity Share for an amount
aggregating upto 3I4900.00 Lakhs. (Assuming Full
Subscription)

11,85,50,000 Equity Shares

The Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to the issue shall rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares of our
Company.

[e] Equity Shares

ISIN: INE141C01036
BSE: 517554

[e]

For details, see “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 39 of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

For details, see “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 111 of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

[e]
[e]

The full amount is payable on application

*To be updated upon finalisation of the Issue Price
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated in the name of “Midpoint Software & Electro Systems Limited” on August 04, 1992, in Mumbai,
Maharashtra, as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation issued by
the Registrar of Companies — Mumbai, Maharashtra. A certificate of commencement of business was granted to our Company
on August 12, 1992 by Registrar of Companies — Mumbai, Maharashtra. Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation under Section
391-394 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, NHC Industries Private Limited has been merged with our
Company with effect from September 07, 2010. Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to NHC Foods Limited
pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated October 15, 2010 issued by the Registrar of Companies — Mumbai, Maharashtra.

Pursuant to the name change, the object clause was altered by shareholders by passing Special Resolution at their General Meeting
held on November 11, 2010 and confirmed by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai vide its certificate dated December 08, 2010.
The Registered Office of the Company shifted from the state of Maharashtra to the State of Gujarat vide Special Resolution
passed by the Equity Shareholders of the Company through Postal Ballot on September 21, 2012 and confirmed by an order of
Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai, Maharashtra vide its order dated July 09, 2013.

The equity shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited bearing Scrip Code ‘517554°, and ISIN ‘INE141C01036°.

Brief of Company and Issue Information

NHC FOODS LIMITED
L15122GJ1992PLC076277

NHC Foods Limited

Registered Office: Survey No. 777, Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, Village
Umarsadi, Taluka Pardi, Valsad - 396175, Gujarat, India
Corporate Office: 419/420, C Wing, Atrium 215,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Chakala, Andheri East, J. B. Nagar,
Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra, India

Contact No.: +91 8104472565

Contact Person: Mrs. Alesha Hakim Khan

E-mail ID: grievances@nhcgroup.com

Website: www.nhcgroup.com

Registrar of Companies — Ahmedabad, Gujarat

ROC Bhavan, Opp Rupal Park Society,

Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura,
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat, India

Designated Stock Exchange BSE Limited (“BSE”)

Mrs. Alesha Hakim Khan

NHC Foods Limited

Registered Office: Survey No. 777, Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, Village
Umarsadi, Taluka Pardi, Valsad - 396175, Gujarat
Contact No.: +91 8104472565

E-mail ID: cs@nhcgroup.com

Website: www.nhcgroup.com

Mr. Archit Wahale

NHC Foods Limited

Registered Office: Survey No. 777, Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, Village
Chief Financial Officer Umarsadi, Taluka Pardi, Valsad - 396175, Gujarat
Contact No.: 022-69875000

E-mail ID: vpfins@nhcgroup.com

Website: www.nhcgroup.com

JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as IMK & Co.)

Chartered Accountants

B-10, Western Edge 11, Behind Metro Cash & Carry,

Name & CIN

Registered & Corporate Office

Address of Registrar of Companies

Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer

Statutory Auditor of the company
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Off W.E. Highway, Borivali East, Mumbai-400066, Maharashtra
Contact Person: CA Jitendra Doshi

Designation: Partner

Membership No: 151274

Contact No: +91 22 40101784

E-mail ID: info@jmkco.in

Firm Registration No: 120459W

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue and our Company:

LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE REGISTRAR TO THIS ISSUE
FINSHORE MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED [SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
“Anandlok”, Block-A, 2" Floor, Room No. 207, 227 D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New
A.J.C Bose Road, Kolkata-700020, West Bengal Delhi 110020
Telephone: + 91 33 22895101 / +91 33 4603 2561 Telephone: 011-40450193-197
Email: ramakrishna@finshoregroup.com Email: ipo@skylinerta.com
Website: www.finshoregroup.com Investor Grievance Email: grievances@skylinerta.com
Investor Grievance Email: info@finshoregroup.com Contact Person: Mr. Anuj Rana
Contact Person: Mr. S. Ramakrishna lyengar Website: https://www.skylinerta.com/

SEBI Registration No: INM000012185 SEBI Registration Number: INR000003241
CIN No: U74900WB2011PLC169377 CIN No: U74899DL1995PTC071324

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE BANKER TO THE ISSUE/REFUND BANK
J MUKHERJEE & ASSOCIATES [e]

Room 6, 2" Floor, Saraf House, 4/1, Red Cross Place,

Kolkata-700001, West Bengal, India
Telephone: +91 9830640366

Email: jmukherjeeandassociates@gmail.com
Contact Person: Mr. Jayabrata Mukherjee

Note: Investors may contact our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and/or the Registrar to the Issue, in case of any
pre-issue or post-issue related problems, such as non-receipt of letters of allotment, credit of allotted Equity Shares in the
respective beneficiary account or refund orders, etc. All grievances in relation to the application may be addressed to the
Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the relevant Designated Intermediary, giving full details such as name, address of the
Applicant, contact number(s), e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account, number of Equity Shares
applied for, amount blocked , ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the Application Forms, or
the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement
slip..

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (“SCSBs”)

The lists of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the ASBA process are provided on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34. For details of the Designated
Branches which shall collect Application Forms, please refer to the above-mentioned SEBI link.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as name and
contact details, are provided on the website of nationalized Stock Exchange, as updated from time to time. The list of branches
of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries
will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time.

Statement of Inter Se Allocation of Responsibilities

Finshore Management Services Limited is the sole Lead Manager to this Issue and all the responsibilities relating to co-ordination
and other activities in relation to the Issue shall be performed by them and hence a statement of inter-se allocation of
responsibilities is not required.
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Credit Rating
This being an Issue of Right Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees
As the Issue is of Right Equity Shares, the appointment of Debenture trustees is not required.

Monitoring Agency
As the Issue Size is below X 10,000 lakhs, the appointment of a monitoring agency is not required.

Underwriting
This Issue of Rights Equity Shares is not being underwritten and no standby support is being sought for the said Issue.

Filing of Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer
The Draft Letter of Offer shall not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Draft Letter of Offer as the
size of issue is less than Rs. Fifty Crores.

The Draft Letter of Offer has been filed with BSE for obtaining their in-principle approval.

However, our Company will submit a copy of the Letter of Offer to SEBI for the purpose of their information and dissemination
on its website by mailing it to the e-mail address: cfddil@sebi.gov.in.

Minimum Subscription

The Issue is subject to being in receipt of minimum subscription of at least 90% of the Equity Shares being offered under this
Issue, on an aggregate basis, of the Issue Size, in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.
If in the event our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the Issue Size, our Company shall refund the
entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in accordance with SEBI circular bearing
reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021. If there is any delay in the refund of the
subscription amount beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period,
at such rates as prescribed under the applicable laws.

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the
minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

Issue Schedule
The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the
dates mentioned below:

— | | |
[Ery Ty Ey Sy S

Note: The above timetable is indicative in nature and does not constitute any obligation on the Company or the Lead Manager.
While our Company shall ensure that all the steps for completion of all the necessary formalities for the listing and trading of
our equity shares on the BSE main board platform are taken within the prescribed timelines, the time table may change due to
various factors such as extension of the issue period by the Company or any delay in receiving final listing and trading approval
from the BSE. The Commencement of the trading of Equity shares will be entirely at the discretion of Stock Exchange in
accordance with the applicable laws.
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@In accordance with the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the Physical Shareholders
as on Record Date, have to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or the Company at least two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable us to process the credit of Rights Entitlement

* Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a
manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

# The Board of Directors or the Rights Issue Committee will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from
time to time, provided that this Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date. Further, no
withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not provided the
details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account details to our
Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.c., [®] to enable the credit of the
Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one
day before the Issue Closing Date, i.c., [®]. For details, see “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 111 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our Company, the Lead
Manager or the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Applications on or before
the Issue Closing Date. Further, it is also encouraged that the applications are submitted well in advance before Issue Closing
Date. Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue
Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares
for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser
will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to
make an application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under
Issue.
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The Capital Structure of our company before the Issue and after giving effect to the Issue, as at the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer, is set forth below:

(R in Lakhs except share data)

A Authorized Share Capital

65,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value <1/~ each 6500.00 --

B Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital prior to the Issue

11,85,50,000 Equity Shares of face value <1/~ each 1185.50 --

C Present issue in terms of the Draft Letter of Offer*

Up to [e] Equity Shares for cash at a price of T [e] per Equity [o] Up to 4,900.00
Share**

D Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital after the Issue***

[e] Equity Shares of Z1/- each [e]

* This Rights Issue has been authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated May 30, 2024.

** Investors will have to pay the entire offer price i.e., T [®] per Rights Equity Share at the time of Application.

*** Assuming full subscription to the Rights Entitlements and Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares.

Note: Pursuant to an Ordinary Resolution passed through Postal Ballot dated June 30, 2024 the Company obtained
shareholders’ approval for the purpose of split of face value of the equity shares from ¥ 10/- to & 1/- per equity share.

Notes to the Capital Structure:

1.

2.

Our Company does not have any employee stock option scheme or employee stock purchase scheme.

Our Company does not have any outstanding warrants, options, convertible loans, debentures or any other securities
convertible at a later date into Equity Shares, as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, which would entitle the holders to
acquire further Equity Shares.

All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid Equity Shares outstanding as on the date of this Draft Letter
of Offer. The Rights Equity Shares, when issued, shall be fully paid-up.

Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group:

The statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and Promoter Group”
including the details of lock-in, pledge of and encumbrance thereon as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer i.e. after taking
into effect of split are set forth hereunder:

Apoorva Himatlal ) . -
1 3,91,93,680 33.06% Nil - Nil

Shah
2 Alpa Apoorva Shah 86,41,820 7.29% Nil - Nil -
3 Apar Apoorva Shah 2,76,500 0.23% Nil - Nil -
4 Aneri Apoorva Shah 1,93,000 0.16% Nil - Nil -
5 Apoorva H Shah HUF 81,550 0.07% Nil - Nil -

Total 4,83,86,550 40.82% Nil - Nil -
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The statement showing specified securities acquired by the promoter and promoter group in the last one year
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer with the designated stock exchange:

No Equity Shares have been acquired by our Promoter or Promoter Group in the last one year immediately preceding the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Intention and extent of participation in the Issue by the Promoter:

Our Promoter and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, vide their letters dated July 29, 2024 (the “Subscription
Letters”) undertaken that the Rights Issue is only for the Public Shareholders and there will be no Rights Entitlement to the
Promoter and entities forming part of the Promoter Group. In the eventuality of an under-subscription in the Issue the
Promoter and entities forming part of the Promoter Group will not purchase any additional Rights Entitlements either on-
market or off-market and will not subscribe to the unsubscribed portion of the Issue, if any.

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to comply with the
minimum public shareholding requirements under applicable law, pursuant to this Issue. For further details, please see

“General Information - Minimum Subscription” on page 33.

The ex-rights price per Equity Share arrived as per regulation 10(4)(b) of the SEBI Takeover Regulations is X [e].
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8. Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchange in compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations:

a)

NHC FOODSLTD

The table below presents the shareholding pattern of our Company for the Quarter ending June 30, 2024

Promoter &

Promoter
Group

48,38,655

48,38,655

40.82%

48,38,655

48,38,655

40.82%

40.82%

48,38,655

Public

11,252

70,16,345

70,16,345

59.18%

70,16,345

70,16,345

59.18%

59.18%

67,81,944

Non-
Promoter-
Non-Public

C1

Shares
underlying
DRs

Cc2

Shares held
by
Employee
Trusts

Total

11,257

1,18,55,000

1,18,55,000

100.00%

1,18,55,000

1,18,55,000

100.00%

100.00%

1,16,20,599

(Source: https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/nhc-foods-1td/nhcfoods/517554/shareholding-pattern/)

Draft Letter of Offer
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9. Details of shareholders of our Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up capital of the issuer as last disclosed to
the Stock Exchange as on June 30, 2024 is as follows:

For Promoters and Promoters Group Category

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=517554&qtrid=122.00&QtrName=June%202024

For Public Category

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=517554&qtrid=122.00&QtrName=June%202024
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SECTION V: PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

This offer is for the issuance and allotment of fresh Equity Shares on Right basis in the ratio of [e] rights equity share for every
[e] fully paid-up equity share at an issue price of Rs. [@]/- each share having face value of Rs. 1/- each and at a premium of Rs.
[e]/- per share. The tentative offer size would be for upto Rs. 4,900 Lakhs (Assuming full subscription in the Issue).

We intend to utilize the Right Issue proceeds for the following objects:

To meet the working capital requirement
To make the repayment of Secured Loan
To meet the Issue Expenses
General Corporate Purposes

oSOowy»

The main objects clause of our Memorandum enables our Company to undertake the activities for which funds are being raised in
the Issue. The existing activities of our Company are within the object clause of our Memorandum.

Requirement of Funds

The following table summarizes the requirement of funds:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount In % of Gross
(R in Lakhs) Proceeds
A To meet the Working Capital Requirements 2500.00 [o]
B To make the repayment of Secured Loan 1500.00 [o]
C General corporate purposes [o] [o]
D Issue related expenses [o] [o]
Total Issue Proceeds [o] [o]
F Less: Issue Related Expenses [o] [o]
Net Issue Proceeds [®] (]

Details breakup of the Use of the Proceeds
A. Working Capital Requirement and basis of estimation:

Our business is working capital intensive and our company funds a majority of our working capital requirement through
internal accruals and banking limits. For the expansion of our business and to enter new geographical areas, our company
requires additional working capital which is based on our management estimations of the future business plan for the FY
2024-25. Details of estimation of working capital requirement are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakh)
Year 31-03-2022 31-03-2023 31-03-2024 31-03-2025 31-03-2026
Particulars (AUDITED) (AUDITED) (AUDITED) | (ESTIMATED) | (ESTIMATED)
Current Assets
Inventories 225411 2885.59 4287.99 2786.45 3080.21
Trade Receivables 2740.74 2604.12 2769.42 6613.37 7023.59
Cash and Cash Equivalents 79.69 231.61 61.92 374.96 329.90
Fixed Deposits with Banks 223.54 64.78 68.55 75.41 82.95
Other Receivables & Other Current Assets 529.45 537.04 572.52 629.77 692.75
Total A) 5827.51 6323.15 7760.40 10479.97 11209.40
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 1178.50 1185.29 2908.57 1019.43 1320.09
Short-Term Provisions and Payables 123.77 76.19 112.20 319.47 476.50
Other Current Liabilities 141.91 194.25 161.94 368.23 460.29
Total B) 1444.18 1455.73 3182.72 1707.14 2256.88
Net Working Capital (A-B) 4383.34 4867.42 4577.68 8772.83 8952.52
Sources of working capital (Means of finance)
Short-Term Borrowings 3068.45 2650.33 2930.29 2473.33 2473.33
Working Capital Funding through Rights Issue - - - 2500.00 -
Internal Accrual (Capital + Long Term Borrowings) 1314.89 2217.10 1647.39 3799.49 6479.19
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Assumption on working capital requirement
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Particulars 31-03-2026 | 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022
Sundry Debtors Holding period (In Days) 66 58 48 80 70
Inventory Holding Period (In Days) 64 73 78 41 35
Sundry Creditor Holding Period (In Days) 33 30 53 15 15
Justification for Holding Period:
Particulars Details

Sundry Debtors Holding
period

The average holding period of sundry debtors has increased from 57 days in FY 2021-22,
FY 2022-23, and FY 2023-24 to 80 days in FY 2024-25 and is expected to reduce to 70
days in FY 2025-26. This increase in the holding period is primarily attributed to delays in
international sea transport, which have caused longer transit times for goods being shipped
overseas.

The ongoing global disruptions in the shipping industry, such as port congestion, container
shortages, and logistical bottlenecks, have directly impacted the timely delivery of goods
to customers. As a result, the collection period from debtors has been extended, leading to
a longer holding period for sundry debtors.

It is anticipated that these issues will gradually improve, resulting in a reduction of the
holding period to 70 days in FY 2025-26 as international shipping conditions stabilize.

Inventory Level Holding
Period

The holding period of inventory has decreased significantly from an average of 72 days in
FY 2021-22, FY 2022-23, and FY 2023-24 to an expected 41 days in FY 2024-25, with a
further reduction to 35 days in FY 2025-26. This reduction is a result of the company’s
strategic decision to maintain inventory levels around %30 crore in line with its operational
and financial objectives.

This policy is aimed at optimizing inventory management by balancing stock availability
with demand while minimizing excess holding costs. The streamlined inventory strategy
allows the company to improve efficiency and liquidity by reducing unnecessary
stockpiling. The reduced holding period also indicates faster inventory turnover, aligning
with the company’s goal to enhance operational agility.

By FY 2025-26, the further decrease in the holding period to 35 days reflects the company’s
ongoing commitment to efficient inventory management while maintaining adequate stock
to meet market demands.

Sundry Creditor Holding
Period

The average payment period for creditors has been reduced from 39 days in FY 2021-22,
FY 2022-23, and FY 2023-24 to 15 days in FY 2024-25, with the same 15-day period
projected for FY 2025-26. This reduction is driven by the company’s strategic initiative to
strengthen relationships with key suppliers and take advantage of early payment discounts.

By shortening the payment cycle, the company aims to improve its negotiation power,
secure more favourable terms, and potentially receive better pricing or preferential
treatment from suppliers. This policy is also aligned with the company’s focus on
enhancing operational efficiency and financial discipline, ensuring prompt payment and
better cash flow management.

The consistent 15-day payment period reflects the company’s commitment to maintaining
strong supplier relationships while ensuring liquidity and financial stability in the coming
fiscal years.

Cash & cash Equivalent

The Key items under this head are Fixed Deposit lying with bank, accrued interest there
on, Cash-in-hand and Bank Balance in current account. The increase in amount of Cash
and Cash Equivalent is considered on account of increase in operations and turnover, and
such amounts will be required to meet the day-to-day expenses and to take advantage of
situations of price fluctuations, etc.
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Particulars Details

'Other Current Assets include advances to suppliers, balances with revenue authorities,
export incentives receivables, and other recoverable loans and advances. The level of other
current assets average above 10 days which we anticipated to bring down below average
existing days

Other Current Assets

'Other Current Liabilities are advances received from buyers which we will maintain at

Other Current Liabilities same level to continue the relation with customers.

Rationale for change in working capital requirements

The revenue from operations has been increased from %15245.06 lakhs in FY 2021-22 to ¥20924.40 lakhs in FY 2023-24 i.e.
revenue from operation increased by ¥5679.33 lakhs (37.25% for the said period). Wherein, working capital gap for the same
period has been increased from I4383.34 lakhs to ¥4577.68 lakhs i.e. working capital gap increased by ¥194.35 lakhs (i.e.
4.43% for the said period).

Going forward, the management has estimated that their current assets is going to be increased from ¥7760.40 Lakhs to
%10479.97 Lakhs in FY 2024-25 and %11209.40 Lakhs in FY 2025-26 majorly due to debtor holding period is going to be
increased by more than 60 days due to delay in our export realisations. However, our current liability is estimated to be
decreased from X3182.72 Lakhs in FY 2023-24 to *1707.14 lakhs in FY 2024-25 and %2256.88 lakhs in FY 2025-26. In
brief, the management has estimated that working capital gap is going to be increased to ¥8772.73 Lakhs in FY 2024-25 and
%8952.52 Lakhs in FY 2025-26 respectively.

Our Company proposed to utilise ¥2500.00 lakhs of the Net Proceeds towards funding the incremental working capital
requirements of our Company in the ordinary course of business and the balance will be met from internal accruals and
borrowings at an appropriate time as per the requirement. As on date of this draft offer documents, the aggregate amount
sanctioned by the banks to our Company to meet working capital requirement is T3850.00 lakhs consist of fund based working
capital out of which we have proposed to repay the loan to the extent of *1500.00 Lakhs also.

Repayment of Secured Loan

As per the Limited Reviewed Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the period ended June 30, 2024, the Company has
an outstanding short-term secured loan from a bank amounting to Rs. 2,890.90 Lakhs. This loan has been utilized to meet
the working capital requirements of the Company. The Company now intends to repay a portion of the said loan using the
proceeds from the proposed rights issue.

The details of the outstanding loans that are proposed to be repaid in part from the net proceeds of the rights issue are outlined
below:

. . Proposed to be
’;l_?err?ge(;f Purpose S‘X‘;}gzgid Outgga&sd ';(?225 on Repaid from Rights
e Issue Proceeds#
AXxis Bank Working Capital 38.50 28.57 15.00
Limited Requirement
Total 15.00

# The amount outstanding as on 30/06/2024 and certified by our statutory auditor vide their certificate dated September 05,
2024. Further our auditor also certified that they have verified the terms of loan and above borrowing is utilised for the
purpose for which such borrowing were availed.

General Corporate Purpose

The Net Proceeds will be first utilized towards the Objects as mentioned above. The balance is proposed to be utilized for
general corporate purposes, subject to such utilization not exceeding 25% of the amount being raised by our Company through
this issue, in compliance with the Chapter IX, Regulation 230 (2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018. Our Company intends
to deploy the balance Net Proceeds i.c., Rs. [®] Lakhs, which is [#]% of the amount being raised by our company through
this issue, towards general corporate purposes, subject to above mentioned limit, as may be approved by our management,
including but not restricted to, the following:

i. Strategic initiatives
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ii. brand building and strengthening of marketing activities; and
iii. ongoing general corporate exigencies or any other purposes as approved by the Board subject to compliance with
the necessary regulatory provisions.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards each of the above purposes will be determined by our Board of Directors based
on the permissible amount actually available under the head “General Corporate Purposes” and the business requirements of
our Company, from time to time. We, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the
balance Net Proceeds for general corporate purposes, as mentioned above.

D. Issue Related Expenses
The expenses for this Issue include issue management fees, registrar fees, legal advisor fees, printing and distribution

expenses, issue related advertisement expenses, depository charges and listing fees etc. to the Stock Exchange, among others.
All the Issue related expenses shall be met out of the proceeds of the Issue and the breakup of the same is as follows:

Activity Estimated As a % of Total | As a % of Total
Expenses (Rs. In | Estimated Issue | Issue Size
Lakhs) EXxpenses

Fees payable to the intermediaries like Lead
Manager, RTA, Legal Advisor, Banker including

Brokerage, Selling Commission and upload Fees [e] (o] [e]

etc.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses [e] [e] [o]
Fees payable to Regulators Including Stock

Exchange [e] [e] [e]
Printing and Other Miscellaneous charges [e] [e] [o]

Means of Finance:

We propose to meet the requirement of funds for the stated objects of the Issue from the Issue Proceeds only. Hence, ho amount
is required to be raised through means other than the Issue Proceeds. Accordingly, the requirements under Regulation 62(1)l of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations (which requires firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means for 75% of the stated means
of finance, excluding the Issue Proceeds and existing identifiable internal accruals) are not applicable.

In case of variations in the actual utilization of funds allocated for the purposes set forth above, increased fund requirements for a
particular purpose may be financed by surplus funds, if any, available in respect of the other purposes for which funds are being
raised in this Issue. If surplus funds are unavailable, the required financing will be through our internal accruals and/or debt.

We may have to revise our fund requirements and deployment as a result of changes in commercial and other external factors,
which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail re-scheduling, revising or cancelling the fund
requirements and increasing or decreasing the fund requirements for a particular purpose from its fund requirements mentioned
below, at the discretion of our management. In case of any shortfall or cost overruns, we intend to meet our estimated expenditure
from internal accruals and/or debt. In case of any such re-scheduling, it shall be made by compliance of the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 / Companies Act, 1956.

Appraisal by Appraising Fund

None of the Objects have been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other independent third-party organization.
The funding requirements of our Company and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are currently based on management
estimates. The funding requirements of our Company are dependent on a number of factors which may not be in the control of our
management, including variations in interest rate structures, changes in our financial condition and current commercial conditions
and are subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances or in our financial condition, business or strategy.
Shortfall of Funds

Any shortfall in meeting the fund requirements will be met by way of internal accruals and or unsecured Loans.

Bridge Financing Facilities
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As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, we have not raised any bridge loans which are proposed to be repaid from the Issue
Proceeds.

Interim Use of Proceeds

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to invest the funds with scheduled commercial banks
included in the second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013,
our Company confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in the equity shares of any
other listed company. Our management, in accordance with the policies established by our Board of Directors from time to time,
will deploy the Net Proceeds which shall be as per applicable laws. Further, our Board of Directors hereby undertake that full
recovery of the said interim investments shall be made without any sort of delay as and when need arises for utilization of process
for the objects of the issue subject to applicable laws.

Monitoring Utilization of Funds

As the Issue size is less than X 10,000 Lakhs, under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations it is not mandatory for us to appoint a monitoring
agency.

Our Board and the management will monitor the utilization of the Issue Proceeds through its audit committee. Pursuant to
Regulation 32 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, our Company shall on half-yearly basis disclose to the Audit Committee the applications of the proceeds of the Issue. On
an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for purposes other than stated in this Draft Letter of Offer
and place it before the Audit Committee. Such disclosures shall be made only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue
have been utilized in full. The statement will be certified by the Statutory Auditors of our Company.

No part of the Issue Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoters, our Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or Senior Management or companies promoted by the Promoters, except as may be required in the usual course of
business.

Key Industry Regulation for the proposed objects of the issue (If different from existing business of issuer)

The object of the issue is to utilize the fund in the existing business activity of our Company. So specific key industry regulations
are same as the present industry regulations applicable to our Company.

Interest of Promoter, Promoter Group and Directors, in the objects of the Issue

Our Promoter, Promoter Group and Directors do not have any interest in the objects of the Issue. No part of the Net Proceeds will
be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoter, Promoter Group and Directors of our Company.
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors

NHC Foods Limited

419 420 C Wing Atrium 215 Andheri,

Kurla Road Chakala Andheri East,

J.B. Nagar, Mumbai, Mumbai 400059, Maharashtra

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of possible Special tax benefit available to NHC Foods Limited, its shareholders and its material
subsidiaries (if any).

Ref: Proposed Right Issue of Equity Shares of NHC Foods Limited.

We report that there are no possible special direct tax benefits available to the Company, its shareholders and its material
subsidiaries under the Income-tax Act, 1961, presently in force in India.

This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a
substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each
investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their
participation in the Issue.

Neither we are suggesting nor advising the investor to invest money based on this statement. The contents of this statement are
based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and on the basis of our understanding of the
business activities and operations of the Company.

We hereby give consent to include this statement of tax benefits in the Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer and in any other
material used in connection with the Issue.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities / courts will concur with the views expressed herein. The views are based
on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We would not
assume responsibility to update the view, consequence to such change.

We shall not be liable to Company for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees
relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith of intentional misconduct.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.
For and on behalf of

M/s. IMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as IMK & Co.)

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 120459W

Sd/-

CA Jitendra Doshi

(Partner)

Membership No: 151274

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 05/09/2024

UDIN No: 24151274BKEXKU5369

Page | 52



@NHC

SECTION VI: ABOUT THE INDUSTRY, COMPANY AND MANAGEMENT

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Unless noted otherwise, the information in this section is obtained or extracted from “www.ibef.org” and also extracted from
publicly available information, data and statistics and has been derived from various government publications and industry
sources. Neither we nor any other person connected with the Issue have independently verified this information. The data may
have been re-classified by us for the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications generally state that the
information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy,
completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured and, accordingly, investment
decisions should not be based on such information. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as
of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications may also base their
information on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Accordingly, investors must rely
on their independent examination of, and should not place undue reliance on, or base their investment decision solely on this
information. The recipient should not construe any of the contents in this report as advice relating to business, financial, legal,
taxation or investment matters and are advised to consult their own business, financial, legal, taxation, and other advisors
concerning the transaction.

INDIAN ECONOMY
INTRODUCTION

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India
overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest economy after it recovered
from the COVID-19 pandemic shock. Nominal GDP or GDP at Current
Prices in the year 2023-24 is estimated at Rs. 295.36 lakh crores (US$
3.54 trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the
year 2022-23 of Rs. 269.50 lakh crores (US$ 3.23 trillion). The growth
in nominal GDP during 2023-24 is estimated at 9.6% as compared to
14.2% in 2022-23. Strong domestic demand for consumption and
investment, along with Government’s continued emphasis on capital
expenditure are seen as among the key driver of the GDP in the second
half of FY24. During the period April-June 2025, India’s exports stood
at US$ 109.11 billion, with Engineering Goods (25.35%), Petroleum
Products (18.33%) and electronic goods (7.73%) being the top three
exported commodity. Rising employment and increasing private
consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP
growth in the coming months.

Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supported by factors such as tax buoyancy, the
streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the digitization of tax
filing. In the medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure and asset-building projects is set to increase growth
multipliers. The contact-based services sector has demonstrated promise to boost growth by unleashing the pent-up demand. The
sector's success is being captured by a number of HFIs (High-Frequency Indicators) that are performing well, indicating the
beginnings of a comeback.

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic powers
in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

India's appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because of the current period of global

unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by India-focused funds in 2022 are evidence of investor
faith in the "Invest in India" narrative.
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MARKET SIZE

Real GDP or GDP at Constant (2011-12) Prices in the year 2023-24 is T—
estimated at Rs. 173.82 lakh crores (US$ 2.08 trillion), against the First (S vy Seves Sencs Douts I—
Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year 2022-23 of Rs. 160.71 lakh

crores (US$ 1.92 trillion). The growth in real GDP during 2023-24 is 3.5

estimated at 8.2% as compared to 7.0% in 2022-23. There are 113 unicorn

startups in India, with a combined valuation of over US$ 350 billion. As

many as 14 tech startups are expected to list in 2024 Fintech sector poised -

to generate the largest number of future unicorns in India. With India T
presently has the third-largest unicorn base in the world. The government is —
also focusing on renewable sources by achieving 40% of its energy from
non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the country's
ambition of Net Zero Emissions by 2070 through a five-pronged strategy,
‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India ranked 3rd in the renewable energy country
attractive index. 05

USS$ trillion

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of
employment growth and create 90 million non-farm jobs between 2023 to :
2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net .. S R—
employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to

achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between same time periods. India’s current account deficit (CAD) narrowed to 0.7% of GDP in
FY24. The CAD stood at US$ 23.2 hillion for the 2023-24 compared to US$ 67.0 billion or 2.0% of GDP in the preceding year.
This was largely due to decrease in merchandise trade deficit.

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing steam in terms
of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as several of India’s trade partners
witness an economic slowdown. According to Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food and Public
Distribution and Textiles Mr. Piyush Goyal, Indian exports are expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

India is primarily a domestic demand-driven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of the economic
activity. With an improvement in the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the Covid-19 pandemic shock,
several investments and developments have been made across various sectors of the economy. According to World Bank, India
must continue to prioritise lowering inequality while also putting growth-oriented policies into place to boost the economy. In
view of this, there have been some developments that have taken place in the recent past. Some of them are mentioned below.

e According to HSBC Flash India PMI report, business activity surged in April to its highest level in about 14 years as well as
sustained robust demand. The composite index reached 62.2, indicating continuous expansion since August 2021, alongside
positive job growth and decreased input inflation, affirming India's status as the fastest-growing major economy.

e AsoflJuly 5, 2024, India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 657.15 billion.
e In May 2024, India saw a total of US$ 6.9 billion in PE-VC investments.

e Merchandise exports in June 2024 stood at US$ 35.20 billion, with total merchandise exports of US$ 109.96 billion during
the period of April 2024 to June 2024,

e India was also named as the 48th most innovative country among the top 50 countries, securing 40th position out of 132
economies in the Global Innovation Index 2023. India rose from 81st position in 2015 to 40th position in 2023. India ranks
3 position in the global number of scientific publications.

e In June 2024, the gross Goods and Services Tax (GST) stood at highest monthly revenue collection at Rs. 1.74 lakh crore
(US$ 20.83 billion) vs Rs. 1.73 lakh crore (US$ 20.71 billion)

e  Between April 2000-March 2024, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at US$ 97 billion.

e In May 2024, the overall 1IP (Index of Industrial Production) stood at 154.2. The Indices of Industrial Production for the
mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 136.5, 149.7 and 229.3, respectively, in May 2024.
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e According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India’s Consumer Price
Index (CPI) based retail inflation reached 5.08% (Provisional) for June 2024.

e Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) inflows between April-July (2023-24) were close to Rs. 80,500 crore (US$ 9.67 billion),
while Domestic Institutional Investors (DII) sold Rs. 4,500 crore (US$ 540.56 million) in the same period. As per depository
data, Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) invested (US$ 13.89 billion) in India during January- (up to 15" July) 2024.

e  The wheat procurement during Rabi Marketing Season (RMS) 2024-25 (till May) was estimated to be 266 lakh metric tonnes
(LMT) and the rice procured in Kharif Marketing Season (KMS) 2024-25 was 400 LMT.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiatives to strengthen the nation's economy. The Indian government
has been effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for citizens to improve their financial stability
but also for the overall growth of the economy. Over recent decades, India’s rapid economic growth has led to a substantial increase
in its demand for exports. Besides this, a number of the government's flagship programmes, including Make in India, Start-up
India, Digital India, the Smart City Mission, and the Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation, is aimed at creating
immense opportunities in India. In this regard, some of the initiatives taken by the government to improve the economic condition
of the country are mentioned below:

e InFebruary 2024, the Finance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25 estimated at Rs. 47,65,768 crore
(US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27 billion).

e OnJanuary 22, 2024, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced the 'Pradhan Mantri Suryodaya Yojana'. Under this
scheme, 1 crore households will receive rooftop solar installations.

e On September 17, 2023, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Central Sector Scheme PM-VISHWAKARMA in
New Delhi. The new scheme aims to provide recognition and comprehensive support to traditional artisans & craftsmen who
work with their hands and basic tools. This initiative is designed to enhance the quality, scale, and reach of their products, as
well as to integrate them with MSME value chains.

e On August 6, 2023, Amrit Bharat Station Scheme was launched to transform and revitalize 1309 railway stations across the
nation. This scheme envisages development of stations on a continuous basis with a long-term vision.

e OnJune 28, 2023, the Ministry of Environment, Forests, and Climate Change introduced the ‘Draft Carbon Credit Trading
Scheme, 2023°.

e From April 1, 2023, Foreign Trade Policy 2023 was unveiled to create an enabling ecosystem to support the philosophy of
‘Aatmanirbhar Bharat’ and ‘Local goes Global’.

e Toenhance India’s manufacturing capabilities by increasing investment and production in the sector, the government of India
has introduced the Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) for Pharmaceuticals.

e Prime Minister’s Development Initiative for North-East Region (PM-DevINE) was announced in the Union Budget 2022-23
with a financial outlay of Rs. 1,500 crore (US$ 182.35 million).

e Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi has inaugurated a new food security scheme for providing free food grains to Antyodaya
Ann Yojna (AAY) & Primary Household (PHH) beneficiaries, called Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Ann Yojana (PMGKAY)
from January 1, 2023.

e The Amrit Bharat Station scheme for Indian Railways envisages the development of stations on a continuous basis with a
long-term vision, formulated on December 29, 2022, by the Ministry of Railways.

e On October 7, 2022, the Department for Promotion of Industry, and Internal Trade (DPIIT) launched Credit Guarantee
Scheme for Start-ups (CGSS) aiming to provide credit guarantees up to a specified limit by start-ups, facilitated by Scheduled
Commercial Banks, Non-Banking Financial Companies and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) registered
Alternative Investment Funds (AIFS).

e Telecom Technology Development Fund (TTDF) Scheme was launched in October 2022 by the Universal Service Obligation
Fund (USOF), a body under the Department of Telecommunications. The objective is to fund R&D in rural-specific
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communication technology applications and form synergies among academia, start-ups, research institutes, and the industry
to build and develop the telecom ecosystem.

Home & Cooperation Minister Mr. Amit Shah laid the foundation stone and performed Bhoomi Pujan of Tanot Mandir
Complex Project under Border Tourism Development Programme in Jaisalmer in September 2022.

In August 2022, Mr. Narendra Singh Tomar, Minister of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare inaugurated four new facilities at
the Central Arid Zone Research Institute (CAZRI), which has been rendering excellent services for more than 60 years under
the Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR).

In August 2022, a Special Food Processing Fund of Rs. 2,000 crore (US$ 242.72 million) was set up with National Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) to provide affordable credit for investments in setting up Mega Food Parks
(MFP) as well as processing units in the MFPs.

In July 2022, Deendayal Port Authority (DPA) announced plans to develop two Mega Cargo Handling Terminals on a Build-
Operate-Transfer (BOT) basis under Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Mode at an estimated cost of Rs. 5,963 crore (US$
747.64 million).

In July 2022, the Union Cabinet chaired by Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi, approved the signing of the Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) between India & Maldives. This MoU will provide a platform to tap the benefits of information
technology for court digitization and can be a potential growth area for IT companies and start-ups in both countries.

India and Namibia entered a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) on wildlife conservation and sustainable biodiversity
utilization on July 20, 2022, for establishing the cheetah into the historical range in India.

In July 2022, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) approved international trade settlements in Indian rupees (Rs.) to promote the
growth of global trade with emphasis on exports from India and to support the increasing interest of the global trading
community.

The Agnipath Scheme aims to develop a young and skilled armed force backed by an advanced warfare technology scheme
by providing youth with an opportunity to serve Indian Army for a 4-year period. It is introduced by the Government of India
on June 14, 2022.

In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi inaugurated and laid the foundation stone of development projects worth
Rs. 21,000 crore (US$ 2.63 billion) at Gujarat Gaurav Abhiyan at Vadodara.

Rajnath Singh, Minister of Defence, launched 75 newly developed Atrtificial Intelligence (Al) products/technologies during
the first-ever ‘Al in Defence’ (AIDef) symposium and exhibition organized by the Ministry of Defence in New Delhi on July
11, 2022.

In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi laid the foundation stone of 1,406 projects worth more than Rs. 80,000
crore (US$ 10.01 billion) at the ground-breaking ceremony of the UP Investors Summit in Lucknow. The Projects encompass
diverse sectors like Agriculture and Allied industries, IT and Electronics, MSME, Manufacturing, Renewable Energy,
Pharma, Tourism, Defence & Aerospace, and Handloom & Textiles.

The Indian Institute of Spices Research (IISR) under the Indian Council for Agricultural Research (ICAR) inked a
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Lysterra LLC, a Russia-based company for the commercialization of bio
capsule, an encapsulation technology for bio-fertilization on June 30, 2022.

As of April 2022, India signed 13 Free Trade Agreements (FTAs) with its trading partners including major trade agreements
like the India-UAE Comprehensive Partnership Agreement (CEPA) and the India-Australia Economic Cooperation and
Trade Agreement (IndAus ECTA).

'Mission Shakti' was applicable with effect from April 1, 2022, aimed at strengthening interventions for women’s safety,
security, and empowerment.

The Union Budget of 2022-23 was presented on February 1, 2022, by the Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs, Ms.
Nirmala Sitharaman. The budget had four priorities PM GatiShakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity Enhancement and
Investment, and Financing of Investments. In the Union Budget 2022-23, effective capital expenditure is expected to increase
by 27% at Rs. 10.68 trillion (US$ 142.93 billion) to boost the economy. This will be 4.1% of the total Gross Domestic
Production (GDP).
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Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI) was launched in March 2022 by the Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilisers to
provide credit linked capital and interest subsidy for Technology Upgradation of MSME units in pharmaceutical sector, as
well as support of up to Rs. 20 crore (US$ 2.4 million) each for common facilities including Research centre, testing labs
and ETPs (Effluent Treatment Plant) in Pharma Clusters, to enhance the role of MSMEs.

Under PM GatiShakti Master Plan, the National Highway Network will develop 25,000 km of new highways network, which
will be worth Rs. 20,000 crore (US$ 2.67 billion). In 2022-23. Increased government expenditure is expected to attract private
investments, with a production-linked incentive scheme providing excellent opportunities. Consistently proactive, graded,
and measured policy support is anticipated to boost the Indian economy.

In February 2022, The Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment launched the Scheme for Economic Empowerment of
Denotified/Nomadic/SemiNomadic tribal communities (DNTs) (SEED) to provide basic facilities like good quality coaching,
and health insurance. livelihoods initiative at a community level and financial assistance for the construction of houses.

In February 2022, Minister for Finance and Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman said that productivity linked incentive
(PLI) schemes would be extended to 14 sectors to achieve the mission of Aatmanirbhar Bharat and create 60 lakh jobs with
an additional production capacity of Rs. 30 trillion (US$ 401.49 billion) in the next five years.

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced funding for the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for
domestic solar cells and module manufacturing of Rs. 24,000 crore (US$ 3.21 billion).

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced a production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for Bulk Drugs
which was an investment of Rs. 2,500 crore (US$ 334.60 million).

In the Union Budget of 2022, Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced that a scheme
for design-led manufacturing in 5G would be launched as part of the PLI scheme.

In September 2021, Union Cabinet approved major reforms in the telecom sector, which are expected to boost employment,
growth, competition, and consumer interests. Key reforms include rationalization of adjusted gross revenue, rationalization
of bank guarantees (BGs), and encouragement of spectrum sharing.

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government has allocated Rs. 44,720 crore (US$ 5.98 billion) to Bharat Sanchar Nigam
Limited (BSNL) for capital investments in the 4G spectrum.

Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman allocated Rs. 650 crore (US$ 86.69 million) for the Deep
Ocean mission that seeks to explore vast marine living and non-living resources. Department of Space (DoS) has got Rs.
13,700 crore (US$ 1.83 billion) in 2022-23 for several key space missions like Gaganyaan, Chandrayaan-3, and Aditya L-1
(sun).

In May 2021, the government approved the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for manufacturing advanced chemistry
cell (ACC) batteries at an estimated outlay of Rs. 18,100 crore (US$ 2.44 billion); this move is expected to attract domestic
and foreign investments worth Rs. 45,000 crore (US$ 6.07 billion).

Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced in the Union Budget of 2022-23 that the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) would issue Digital Rupee using blockchain and other technologies.

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, Railway got an investment of Rs. 2.38 trillion (US$ 31.88 billion) and over 400 new high-
speed trains were announced. The concept of "One Station, One Product" was also introduced.

To boost competitiveness, Budget 2022-23 has announced reforming the 16-year-old Special Economic Zone (SEZ) act.

In June 2021, the RBI (Reserve Bank of India) announced that the investment limit for FPI (foreign portfolio investors) in
the State Development Loans (SDLs) and government securities (G-secs) would persist unaffected at 2% and 6%,
respectively, in FY22.

In November 2020, the Government of India announced Rs. 2.65 trillion (US$ 36 billion) stimulus package to generate job
opportunities and provide liquidity support to various sectors such as tourism, aviation, construction, and housing. Also,
India's cabinet approved the production-linked incentives (PLI) scheme to provide ~Rs. 2 trillion (US$ 27 billion) over five
years to create jobs and boost production in the country.

Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on account of various Government initiatives like Make
in India and Digital India. Prime Minister of India Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Make in India initiative with an aim to
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boost the country's manufacturing sector and increase the purchasing power of the average Indian consumer, which would
further drive demand and spur development, thus benefiting investors. The Government of India, under its Make in India
initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the manufacturing sector with an aim to take it to 25% of the GDP from
the current 17%. Besides, the government has also come up with the Digital India initiative, which focuses on three core
components: the creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services digitally, and increasing digital literacy.

e On January 29, 2022, the National Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd (NARCL) will acquire bad loans worth up to Rs.
50,000 crore (US$ 6.69 billion) about 15 accounts by March 31, 2022. India Debt Resolution Co. Ltd (IDRCL) will control
the resolution process. This will clean up India’s financial system, help fuel liquidity, and boost the Indian economy.

e National Bank for Financing Infrastructure and Development (NaBFID) is a bank that will provide non-recourse
infrastructure financing and is expected to support projects from the first quarter of FY23; it is expected to raise Rs. 4 trillion
(US$ 53.58 billion) in the next three years.

e By November 1, 2021, India, and the United Kingdom hope to begin negotiations on a free trade agreement. The proposed
FTA between these two countries is likely to unlock business opportunities and generate jobs. Both sides have renewed their
commitment to boost trade in a manner that benefits all.

e In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced an initiative to start a national mission to reach the US$ 400
billion merchandise export target by FY?22.

e In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched a digital payment solution, e-RUPI, a contactless and cashless
instrument for digital payments.

e InApril 2021, Dr. Ahmed Abdul Rahman AlBanna, Ambassador of the UAE to India and Founding Patron of IFIICC, stated
that trilateral trade between India, the UAE and Israel is expected to reach US$ 110 billion by 2030.

e India is expected to attract investment of around US$ 100 billion in developing the oil and gas infrastructure during 2019-
23.

e The Government of India is expected to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the GDP by 2025.
ROAD AHEAD

In the second quarter of FY24, the growth momentum of the first quarter was sustained, and high-frequency indicators (HFIs)
performed well in July and August of 2023. India's comparatively strong position in the external sector reflects the country's
positive outlook for economic growth and rising employment rates. India ranked 5th in foreign direct investment inflows among
the developed and developing nations listed for the first quarter of 2022.

India's economic story during the first half of the current financial year highlighted the unwavering support the government gave
to its capital expenditure, which, in 2023-24, stood 37.4% higher than the same period last year. In the budget of 2023-24, capital
expenditure took lead by steeply increasing the capital expenditure outlay by 37.4 % in BE 2023-24 to Rs.10 lakh crore (US$
120.12 billion) over Rs. 7.28 lakh crore (US$ 87.45 billion) in RE 2022-23. The ratio of revenue expenditure to capital outlay
increased by 1.2% in the current year, signalling a clear change in favour of higher-quality spending. Stronger revenue generation
because of improved tax compliance, increased profitability of the company, and increasing economic activity also contributed to
rising capital spending levels. In February 2024, the Finance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25
estimated at Rs. 47,65,768 crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27
billion).

Since India’s resilient growth despite the global pandemic, India's exports climbed at the second-highest rate with a year-over-
year (YoY) growth of 8.39% in merchandise exports and a 29.82% growth in service exports till April 2023. With a reduction in
port congestion, supply networks are being restored. The CPI-C inflation reduction from June 2022 already reflects the impact. In
September 2023 (Provisional), CPI-C inflation was 5.02%, down from 7.01% in June 2022. With a proactive set of administrative
actions by the government, flexible monetary policy, and a softening of global commodity prices and supply-chain bottlenecks,
inflationary pressures in India look to be on the decline overall.
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UNION BUDGET 2024-25

Union Budget 2024-25 builds on the vision set out in the previous budgets and provides a blueprint for steering the economy
towards a sustained high-growth trajectory. The Union Minister of Finance and Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman
presented the Union Budget 2024-25 in the Parliament on July 23, 2024.

Key Highlights:

e Revised target for fiscal deficit estimated at 4.9% of GDP for FY25.

e For 2024-25, the total receipts other than borrowings and the total expenditure are estimated at Rs. 32.07 lakh crore (US$
383.93 billion) and Rs. 48.21 lakh crore (US$ 577.16 billion), respectively.

e The net tax receipts are estimated at Rs. 25.83 lakh crore (US$ 309.23 hillion).

e The standard deduction (under the new tax regime) for salaried employees is proposed to be increased from Rs. 50,000 (US$
597) to Rs. 75,000 (US$ 896), providing relief to about four crore salaried individuals and pensioners.

e The exemption limit for capital gains on certain financial assets is proposed to be increased from Rs. 1 lakh (US$ 1,194) to
Rs. 1.25 lakh (US$ 1,493) per year.

e Capital gains taxation is proposed to be significantly simplified, with short-term gains on certain financial assets attracting a
tax rate of 20% instead of 15%.

e Long-term gains on all financial and non-financial assets, on the other hand, will attract a tax rate of 12.5% instead of 10%.

e The deduction of employer contributions towards NPS (under the new tax regime) is proposed to be increased from 10% to
14% of the employee’s salary.

e  Securities transaction tax (STT) on Futures and Options (F&O) increased to 0.02% and 0.1%.
e Tax deducted at source (TDS) rate on e-commerce has been reduced to 0.1% from 1.0%.

e The finance minister introduced the prime minister’s package of 5 schemes and initiatives to facilitate employment, skilling
and other opportunities for 4.1 crore youth over a 5-year period with a central outlay of Rs. 2 lakh crore (US$ 23.94 billion).

e Allocation of Rs. 11.11 lakh crore (US$ 133.02 billion) towards infrastructure development, which is 3.4% of GDP.
e Allocation of more than Rs. 3 lakh crore (US$ 35.92 billion) for schemes benefitting women and girls.

e  Scheme for providing internship opportunities in 500 top companies to 1 crore youth in 5 years. Allowance of Rs. 5,000 per
month (US$ 59.75) along with a one-time assistance of Rs. 6,000 (US$ 71.7) through the CSR funds.

e To make urban housing affordable Rs. 2.2 lakh crore (US$ 26.34 billion) has been allocated.
e Allocation of Rs. 2.66 lakh crore (US$ 31.78 billion) for rural development projects.

e  For agriculture and allied sectors, Rs. 1.52 lakh crore (US$ 18.16 billion) approved, with a goal to initiate one crore farmers
into natural farming over the next two years.

e Bihar development: Investment in road connectivity projects including Patna-Purnea expressway, Buxar-Bhagalpur highway
and an additional two-lane bridge over the Ganga in Buxar for Rs. 26,000 crore (US$ 3.11 billion) along with a new 2,400
MW power plant at Pirpainti costing Rs. 21,400 crore (US$ 2.56 billion).

e  The government will provide financial support of Rs. 15,000 crore (US$ 1.80 billion) in the current financial year to Andhra
Pradesh through the Andhra Pradesh Reorganization Act.

e Through the Accelerated Irrigation Benefit Programme and other sources, the government will provide financial support for
projects with estimated cost of Rs. 11,500 crore (US$ 1.38 billion).
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e Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Anna Yojana (PMGKAY) extended for five years, benefiting over 80 crore people.

e New assessment model for MSME credit:Public sector banks will internally assess MSMEs for credit and develop a new
credit assessment model based on digital footprints, a modern alternative to traditional criteria. This approach will also cater
to MSMEs without formal accounting systems.

e Mudra Loans limit extended to Rs. 20 lakh (US$ 23,896) from Rs. 10 lakh (US$ 11,948) for those who have availed and
repaid previous loans.

» Budget theme: The Union Budget 2024-25 is focused on employment, skilling, MSMEs, and the middle class. Prime
Minister’s package of 5 schemes and initiatives to facilitate employment, skilling and other opportunities for 4.1 crore youth
over a 5-year period with a central outlay of Rs. 2 lakh crore (US$ 23.94 billion). Provision of Rs. 1.48 lakh crore (US$ 17.72
billion) for education, employment and skilling.

» Budget priorities: In pursuit of ‘Viksit Bharat’ and the strategy set out in the interim budget, this budget includes the
following 9 priorities for generating ample opportunities for all:

Innovation, Research & Development
Next-generation Reforms
Priority 1: Productivity and Resilience in Agriculture

v Productivity and Resilience in Agriculture

v' Employment & Skilling

v Inclusive Human Resource Development and Social Justice
v' Manufacturing & Services

v" Urban Development

v Energy Security

v Infrastructure

v

v

v' Transforming agriculture research: The government will undertake a comprehensive review of the agriculture
research setup to bring the focus on raising productivity and developing climate-resilient varieties. Funding will be
provided in a challenge mode, including to the private sector. Domain experts both from the government and outside
will oversee the conduct of such research.

v" Release of new varieties: New 109 high-yielding and climate-resilient varieties of 32 field and horticulture crops will
be released for cultivation by farmers.

v" Natural farming: In the next two years, 1 crore farmers across the country will be initiated into natural farming
supported by certification and branding. Implementation will be through scientific institutions and willing gram
panchayats. A total of 10,000 need-based bio-input resource centres will be established.

v" Missions for pulses and oilseeds: A strategy is being put in place to achieve ‘atmanirbharta’ in oil seeds such as
mustard, groundnut, sesame, soybean and sunflower.

v' Shrimp production & export: Financing for shrimp farming, processing and export will be facilitated through
NABARD.

v" Vegetable production and supply chains: Large-scale clusters for vegetable production will be developed closer to
major consumption centres. Promotion of farmer-producer organisations, cooperatives and start-ups for vegetable
supply chains including for collection, storage and marketing will be encouraged.

v Digital public infrastructure (DPI) for agriculture: The government, along with states, plans to implement DPI in
agriculture within 3 years, starting with digital crop surveys in 400 districts this year for kharif. The initiative aims to
register the details of 6 crore farmers and their lands and enable the issuance of Jan Samarth based Kisan Credit Cards
in 5 states.

v' Budgetary allocation: There has been a provision of Rs. 1.52 lakh crore (US$ 18.20 billion) for the agriculture and
allied sector.
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Priority 2: Employment & Skilling

v

Employment Linked Incentive: The government will introduce three schemes under the Prime Minister's package for
'Employment Linked Incentive' based on EPFO enrolment.

= Scheme A (First-Timers): One-month salary will be provided to new employees in formal sectors up
to Rs. 15,000 (US$ 179.22) in 3 instalments for those earning up to Rs. 1 lakh per month (US$
1,194.82), benefiting 210 lakh youth.

= Scheme B (Job Creation in manufacturing): Focuses on job creation in manufacturing by incentivising
additional employment for first-time employees and their employers, with respect to their EPFO
contributions in the first 4 years, benefitting 30 lakh youth.

= Scheme C (support to employers): Supports employers by reimbursing up to Rs. 3,000 (US$ 35.84) per
month for 2 years towards EPFO contributions for each additional employee within a salary of Rs. 1
lakh (US$ 1,194.82) per month, aiming to incentivise employment of 50 lakh individuals.

Participation of women in the workforce: Facilitate a higher participation of women in the workforce by setting up
working women hostels in collaboration with the industry and establishing creches, in addition to organising women-
specific skilling programmes and promotion of market access for women SHG enterprises.

Skilling programme: A new scheme under the Prime Minister's package will skill 20 lakh youth over 5 years by
upgrading 1,000 Industrial Training Institutes in collaboration with states and the industry. Courses will align with the
industry needs by introducing new programmes for emerging skills.

Skilling loans: The Model Skill Loan Scheme will be revised to facilitate loans up to Rs. 7.5 lakh (US$ 8,961) with a
guarantee from a government promoted fund, helping 25,000 students every year.

Education loans: Financial support announced for youth ineligible for government schemes, such as loans up to Rs.
10 lakh (US$ 11,948.21) for higher education in domestic institutions and E-vouchers providing an annual interest
subvention of 3% on the loan amount for 1 lakh students yearly.

Priority 3: Inclusive Human Resource Development and Social Justice

v

Saturation approach: The government is dedicated to holistic development, focusing on farmers, youth, women and
the underprivileged. A saturation approach will be used to cover all eligible individuals through various programmes
for education and health to enhance their capabilities. The implementation of schemes supporting economic activities
will be intensified.

Purvodaya: A plan named “Purvodaya” will be developed for the holistic growth of Bihar, Jharkhand, West Bengal,
Odisha and Andhra Pradesh in the eastern region. This initiative aims to boost human resources, infrastructure and
economic opportunities. It includes support for an industrial node at Gaya along the Amritsar—Kolkata Industrial
Corridor, showcasing the “Vikas bhi Virasat bhi” in the growth trajectory. Road projects costing Rs. 26,000 crore (US$
3.11 billion) like the Patna—Purnea Expressway will be initiated, along with a new 2,400 MW power plant at Pirpainti
costing Rs. 21,400 crore (US$ 2.56 billion). Additionally, developments in airports, medical colleges and sports
infrastructure in Bihar are planned, with increased capital investments and expedited external funding requests from
multilateral development banks.

Andhra Pradesh Reorganization Act: The government is committed to fulfilling the commitments under the Andhra
Pradesh Reorganization Act. Special financial support through multilateral development agencies will be facilitated for
the state's capital needs, with Rs. 15,000 crore (US$ 1.80 billion) arranged in the current financial year and additional
amounts in the future. Funding for the Polavaram Irrigation Project, crucial for Andhra Pradesh's farmers and national
food security, will be ensured for early completion. Industrial development in the Kopparthy and Orvakal nodes will
receive funds for essential infrastructure like water, power, railways and roads on key industrial corridors. Additional
capital investment will be allocated this year for economic growth, along with grants for the backward regions of
Rayalaseema, Prakasam and North Coastal Andhra, as mandated in the Act.

PM Awas Yojana: Three crore additional houses under the PM Awas Yojana in rural and urban areas in the country
have been announced, for which the necessary allocations are being made.

Women-led development: For promoting women-led development, the budget carries an allocation of more than Rs.

3 lakh crore (US$ 35.92 billion) for schemes benefitting women and girls, signalling the government’s commitment for
enhancing women’s role in economic development.
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v' Pradhan Mantri Janjatiya Unnat Gram Abhiyan: Launch of the Pradhan Mantri Janjatiya Unnat Gram Abhiyan,
adopting saturation coverage for tribal families in tribal-majority villages and aspirational districts across 63,000
villages benefitting 5 crore tribal people.

v" Bank branches in the North-East region: More than 100 branches of India Post Payment Bank will be set up in the
North-East region to expand the banking services.

v" Budgetary allocation: This year, there has been a provision of Rs. 2.66 lakh crore (US$ 31.84 billion) for rural
development including rural infrastructure.
Priority 4: Manufacturing & Services

v' Support for promotion of MSMEs: Special attention has been given to MSMEs and manufacturing, particularly
labour-intensive manufacturing along with formulating a package covering financing, regulatory changes and
technology support for MSMEs to help them grow and compete globally. Below are some of the measures specifically
designed for MSMEs:

(0]

Credit guarantee scheme for MSMEs in the manufacturing sector:A credit guarantee scheme will be introduced
for MSMEs to obtain term loans for machinery and equipment purchase without collateral or third-party guarantee.
The scheme will pool credit risks, with a self-financing guarantee fund providing cover up to Rs. 100 crore (US$
11.97 million) per applicant, even for larger loan amounts. Borrowers will pay upfront and annual guarantee fees.
New assessment model for MSME credit: Public sector banks will internally assess MSMEs for credit and develop
a new credit assessment model based on digital footprints, a modern alternative to traditional criteria. This
approach will also cater to MSMEs without formal accounting systems.

Credit support to MSMESs during stress period: A new mechanism will support MSMESs in accessing credit during
their stress period in the 'special mention account' (SMA) stage. Government-backed guarantees will ensure credit
availability to prevent MSMEs from entering the non-performing asset (NPA) stage.

Mudra loans: The limit of Mudra loans will be enhanced to Rs. 20 lakh (US$ 23,896) from the current Rs. 10 lakh
(USS 11,948) for those entrepreneurs who have availed and successfully repaid previous loans under the ‘Tarun’
category.

Enhanced scope for mandatory onboarding in TReDS: The turnover threshold for mandatory onboarding on the
TReDS platform will be reduced from Rs. 500 crore (US$ 59.86 million) to Rs. 250 crore (US$ 29.93 million),
adding 22 CPSEs and 7,000 companies. Medium enterprises will also be included as suppliers.

SIDBI branches in MSME clusters: SIDBI will open new branches to serve all major MSME clusters within 3
years, providing direct credit. By opening 24 branches this year, the service coverage will expand to 168 out of
242 major clusters.

MSME units for food irradiation, quality & safety testing: Financial support for setting up of 50 multi-product
food irradiation units in the MSME sector will be provided. Setting up of 100 food quality and safety testing labs
with NABL accreditation will be facilitated.

E-commerce export hubs: To enable MSMEs and traditional artisans to sell their products in international markets,
E-commerce export hubs will be set up in the public private-partnership (PPP) mode.

Measures for promotion of manufacturing services:

= Internship in top companies: A scheme will provide internship opportunities in 500 top companies to 1
crore youth over 5 years. Participants will receive a monthly allowance of Rs. 5,000 and a one-time
assistance of Rs. 6,000. Companies will bear the training cost, and 10% of the internship cost can be
allocated from their CSR funds.

= Industrial parks: The government will facilitate the development of investment-ready “plug and play”
industrial parks with complete infrastructure in or near 100 cities, in partnership with the states and
private sector, by better using town planning schemes. A total of 12 industrial parks under the National
Industrial Corridor Development Programme will also be sanctioned.

= Rental housing: Rental housing with dormitory-type accommodation for industrial workers will be
facilitated in the PPP mode with viability gap funding (VGF) support and commitment from anchor
industries.

= Shipping industry: Ownership, leasing and flagging reforms will be implemented to improve the share
of the Indian shipping industry and generate more employment.

= Critical Mineral Mission: Setting up of the Critical Mineral Mission for domestic production, recycling
of critical minerals and overseas acquisition of critical mineral assets.

= Offshore mining of minerals: The government will launch the auction of the first tranche of offshore
blocks for mining, building on the exploration already carried out.

= Digital public infrastructure (DPI) applications: Development of DPI applications at the population
scale is proposed to drive productivity and innovation in the services sector. Applications will cover
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credit, e-commerce, education, health, law and justice, logistics, MSME, services delivery and urban
governance.

= Integrated technology platform for IBC eco-system: An integrated technology platform will be set up
for improving the outcomes under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) for achieving
consistency, transparency, timely processing and better oversight for all stakeholders.

= Voluntary closure of LLPs: The services of the Centre for Processing Accelerated Corporate Exit (C-
PACE) will be extended for the voluntary closure of LLPs to reduce the closure time.

= National Company Law Tribunals: The IBC has resolved 1,000+ companies, recovering over Rs. 3.3
lakh crore (US$ 39.51 billion) for creditors. A total of 28,000 cases involving Rs. 10 lakh crore (US$
119.72 billion) have been disposed of. Reforms will be made to speed up insolvency resolution,
including establishing additional tribunals to exclusively handle the Companies Act cases.

Priority 5: Urban Development

v

Urban housing: PM Awas Yojana Urban 2.0 will address housing needs for 1 crore urban families with an investment
of Rs. 10 lakh crore (US$ 119.72 billion), including Rs. 2.2 lakh crore (US$ 26.34 billion) central assistance over 5
years. Interest subsidies for affordable loans and improved rental housing market policies will also be implemented.

Transit-oriented development: Transit-oriented development plans for 14 large cities with a population above 30 lakh
will be formulated, along with an implementation and financing strategy.

Stamp duty: States charging a high stamp duty will be encouraged to lower rates for all and consider further reductions
for properties bought by women. This reform will be integrated as a key element of urban development schemes.

Cities as Growth Hubs: Collaborating with states, the government will promote the development of 'Cities as Growth
Hubs' by focusing on economic and transit planning, as well as the organised development of peri-urban areas using
town-planning schemes.

Water supply and sanitation: In collaboration with state governments and multilateral development banks, the
government will support water supply, sewage treatment and solid waste management projects for 100 large cities
through bankable projects. These initiatives will include the use of treated water for irrigation and filling tanks in nearby
areas.

Street markets: Expanding on the success of the PM SVANidhi Scheme for street vendors, the Government plans to
establish 100 weekly 'haats' or street food hubs annually in select cities over the next five years.

Priority 6: Energy Security

v

Energy transition: The government will release a policy document outlining energy transition pathways to ensure
sustainable economic growth, energy security and environmental sustainability.

PM Surya Ghar Muft Bijli Yojana: The PM Surya Ghar Muft Bijli Yojana aims to provide free electricity up to 300
units per month through rooftop solar plants to 1 crore households. With over 1.28 crore registrations and 14 lakh
applications, the scheme has received significant interest and will be further promoted.

Pumped storage policy: A policy for promoting pumped storage projects will be brought out for electricity storage and
facilitating smooth integration of the growing share of renewable energy with its variable & intermittent nature in the
overall energy mix.

Research and development of small and modular nuclear reactors: The government will collaborate with the private
sector to establish Bharat Small Reactors, conduct research on Bharat Small Modular Reactors and develop new
technologies for nuclear energy. R&D funding allocated in the interim budget will support these initiatives.

Advanced ultra super critical (AUSC) thermal power plants: The development of an indigenous technology for
AUSC thermal power plants with a much higher efficiency has been completed. A joint venture between NTPC and
BHEL will set up a full-scale 800 MW commercial plant using the AUSC technology.

Support to traditional micro and small industries: An investment-grade energy audit of traditional micro and small

industries in 60 clusters, including brass and ceramic, will be facilitated. The scheme will be replicated in another 100
clusters in the next phase.
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Priority 7: Infrastructure

v

Infrastructure investment by central government: The government has allocated Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.02
billion) for capital expenditure, which is 3.4% of the country’s GDP.

Infrastructure investment by state governments: A provision of Rs. 1.5 lakh crore (US$ 17.96 billion) for long-term
interest free loans has been made this year to support the states in their resource allocation.

Private investment in infrastructure: Investment in infrastructure by the private sector will be promoted through VGF
and enabling policies and regulations.

Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY): Phase 1V of PMGSY will be launched to provide all-weather
connectivity to 25,000 rural habitations that have become eligible in view of their population increase.

Irrigation and flood mitigation: The government, through the Accelerated Irrigation Benefit Programme and other
sources, will provide financial support for projects with estimated cost of Rs. 11,500 crore (US$ 1.38 billion) such as
the Kosi—Mechi intra-state link and 20 other ongoing and new schemes including barrages, river pollution abatement
and irrigation projects. There will be assistance to Assam for flood management and related projects. The government
will aid Himachal Pradesh for reconstruction and rehabilitation through multilateral development assistance. There will
be additional assistance provided to the states of Uttarakhand and Sikkim due to the massive landslides, floods and
cloud bursts experienced by them last year.

Tourism: Tourism has been an integral part of the country’s civilisation. Following are some of the measures that will
be taken to boost tourism.

= The Vishnupad Temple Corridor and Mahabodhi Temple Corridor will be supported and modelled on the
successful example of the Kashi Vishwanath Temple Corridor to transform them into world class pilgrim and
tourist destinations.

= Rajgir holds immense religious significance for Hindus, Buddhists and Jains. A comprehensive development
initiative for Rajgir will be undertaken.

= Support the development of Nalanda as a tourist centre besides reviving Nalanda University to its glorious
stature.

= Aid the development of Odisha’s tourism spots.

Priority 8: Innovation, Research & Development

v

The government will operationalise the Anusandhan National Research Fund for basic research and prototype
development. Further, it will set up a mechanism for spurring private sector-driven research and innovation at
commercial scale with a financing pool of Rs. 1 lakh crore (US$ 11.97 billion) in line with the announcement in the
interim budget.

Space economy: With the government’s continued emphasis on expanding the space economy by 5 times in the next
10 years, a venture capital fund of Rs. 1,000 crore (US$ 119.72 million) will be set up.

Priority 9: Next Generation Reforms

v

Economic policy framework: The government will initiate and incentivise reforms for (1) improving productivity of
factors of production, and (2) facilitating markets and sectors to become more efficient. For promoting competitive
federalism and incentivising states for faster implementation of reforms, the government proposes to earmark a
significant part of the 50-year interest-free loan. Working with the states, the government will initiate the following
reforms.

Land-related reforms by state governments: Land-related reforms and actions, both in rural and urban areas, will
cover (1) land administration, planning and management, and (2) urban planning, usage and building bylaws and will
be incentivised for completion within the next 3 years.

e Rural-land-related actions: This will include:

= assignment of Unique Land Parcel Identification Number (ULPIN) or Bhu-Aadhaar for all lands;
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= (digitalisation of cadastral maps;

= survey of map sub-divisions as per current ownership;
= establishment of land registry;

= linking to the farmers registry.

Urban-land-related actions: Land records in urban areas will be digitalised with GIS mapping. Further, an IT-
based system for property record administration, updating, and tax administration will be established.

v" Labour-related reforms

Services to labour: A comprehensive integration of the e-Shram portal with other portals will facilitate such one-
stop solution. Open architecture databases for the rapidly changing labour market, skill requirements and available
job roles, and a mechanism to connect job-aspirants with potential employers and skill providers will be covered
in these services.

Shram Suvidha & Samadhan portals: Shram Suvidha and Samadhan portals will be revamped to enhance ease
of compliance for industry and trade.

v/ Capital and entrepreneurship related reforms

Financial sector vision and strategy: To meet the financing needs of the economy, the government will bring out
a financial sector vision and strategy document to prepare the sector in terms of size, capacity and skills and set
the agenda for the next 5 years.

Taxonomy for climate finance: The government will develop a taxonomy for climate finance to enhance the
availability of capital for climate change adaptation and mitigation.

Variable capital company structure: The government will seek the required legislative approval for providing an
efficient and flexible mode for financing leasing of aircraft and ships, and pooled funds of private equity through
a ‘variable company structure’.

Foreign direct investment and overseas investment: The rules and regulations for foreign direct investment and
overseas investments will be simplified to (1) facilitate foreign direct investments, (2) nudge prioritisation and (3)
promote opportunities to use the Indian Rupee as a currency for overseas investments.

NPS Vatsalya: NPS Vatsalya, a plan for contribution by parents and guardians for minors will be started. Upon
attaining the age of majority, the plan will be converted into a normal NPS account.

Use of technology: Public investment in digital infrastructure and innovations by the private sector have helped in
improving access of all citizens, particularly the common people, to market resources, education, health and
services.

Ease of doing business: For enhancing ‘Ease of Doing Business’, the government is already working on the Jan
Vishwas Bill 2.0.

Data and statistics: For improving data governance, collection, processing and management of data and statistics,
different sectoral data bases, including those established under the Digital India mission, will be utilised with
active use of technology tools.

New Pension Scheme (NPS): The committee formed to review NPS has made considerable progress in its work
as the Staff Side of the National Council of the Joint Consultative Machinery for Central Government Employees
has taken a constructive approach.

v' Budget Estimates 2024-25

For 2024-25, the total receipts other than borrowings and the total expenditure are estimated at Rs. 32.07 lakh
crore (US$ 383.93 hillion) and Rs. 48.21 lakh crore (US$ 577.16 billion), respectively.

The net tax receipts are estimated at Rs. 25.83 lakh crore (US$ 309.23 billion).
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The fiscal deficit is estimated at 4.9% of GDP.

The gross and net market borrowings through dated securities during 2024-25 are estimated at Rs. 14.01 lakh crore
(US$ 167.72 billion) and Rs. 11.63 lakh crore (US$ 139.23 hillion), respectively; both will be less than that in
2023-24.

The fiscal consolidation path announced by the Union Minister of Finance and Corporate Affairs, Ms. Nirmala
Sitharaman, in 2021 has served the economy very well, as the economy aims to reach a deficit below 4.5% next
year, while the government is committed to staying the course.

From 2026-27 onwards, the government’s endeavour will be to target a fiscal deficit each year such that the central
government debt as percentage of GDP will be on a declining path.
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NHC FOODS LTD
INDIANSPICE INDUSTRY

India is the world’s largest spice producer. It is also the largest consumer and
exporter of spices. The production of different spices has been growing rapidly
over the last few years. Production in 2022-23 stood at 11.14 million tonnes
compared to 11.12 million tonnes in 2021-22. During 2022-23, the export of
spices from India stood at US$ 3.73 billion from US$ 3.46 billion in 2021-22.
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NHC FOODS LTD

EXPORTS TREND

India is the largest exporter of spice and spice items. During 2023-
24 (until February 2024), the country exported spices worth US$
3.67 billion. For FY23, the country exported spices worth US$ 3.73
billion. In July 2023, the exports of spices from India increased to
US$ 298.77 million from US$ 293.84 million in June 2023. From
2016-17 to 2022-23, the total exported quantity from India grew at
a CAGR of 5.85%.For FY23, total volumes of chilli, cumin,
turmeric, and ginger exports were 0.51, 0.18, 0.17 and 0.05 million
tonnes.

During 2022-23, the export of turmeric, coriander, garlic, curry
powder, other spices such as asafoetida, tamarind, etc., expanded
both in value and volume as compared to 2021-22.

India spice exports trend (Million US$)
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MAJOR EXPORT DESTINATIONS

India exported spices and spice products to 159 destinations worldwide as of 2023-24 (until February 2024). The top
destinations among them were China, the USA, Bangladesh, the UAE, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, the UK, and Sri Lanka.
These nine destinations comprised more than 70% of the total export earnings in 2023-24 (until February 2024).

China imported spice valued at US$ 725.76 million from India, while the USA imported spices worth US$ 515.91 million.
Bangladesh imported spices amounting to US$ 296.55 million. Additionally, the UAE imported spices worth US$ 214.76
million from India during 2023-24 (up to February 2024).

Chilli was the most exported spice from India. During 2022-23, China imported US$ 409.44 million in chilli. During the
same period, the USA imported US$ 96.38 million in chilli.

The main products imported by the USA are celery, cumin, curry powder, fennel, fenugreek, garlic, chilli, and mint products.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Export Development and Promotion of Spices

This initiative by the Spices Board of India aims to support the exporter to adopt high-tech processing technologies and upgrade
the existing level of technology for the development of industry and to meet the changing food safety standards of the importing
countries. The initiative provides benefits of infrastructure development, promoting Indian spice brands abroad, setting up
infrastructure in the major spice growing centres, promoting organic spices and special programmes for north-eastern
entrepreneurs.

Setting up and maintenance of infrastructure for common processing (Spices Parks)

Spices Board has launched eight crop-specific Spices Parks in key production/market centres intending to facilitate the farmers to
get an improved price realization and wider reach for their produce. The purpose of the park is to have an integrated operation for
cultivation, post-harvesting, processing, value-addition, packaging and storage of spices and spice products. The common
processing facilities for cleaning, grading, packing, and steam sterilization will help the farmers to enhance the quality of the
produce, resulting in better price realization.

Spice Complex Sikkim

Spices Board submitted a project proposal to the state’s cell for setting up a Spice Complex in Sikkim seeking financial assistance
for facilitating and demonstrating common processing and value addition in spices to help farmers and other stakeholders in the
state.
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans and strategies,
contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read the section “Forward-Looking
Statements” for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements and also the section “Risk Factors” for a
discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. Our actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year,
so all references to a particular fiscal are to the Twelve-month period ended March 31 of that year.

You should carefully consider all the information in this Draft Letter of Offer, including, “Risk Factors”, “Industry Overview”,
“Financial Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
beginning on pages 19, 44, 54 and 100 respectively, before making an investment in the Equity Shares. In this section, any reference
to the “Company” “we”, “us” or “our” refers to NHC Foods Limited.

BRIEF OVERVIEW

Our Company was incorporated in the name of “Midpoint Software & Electro Systems Limited” on August 04, 1992, in Mumbai,
Maharashtra, as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation issued by
the Registrar of Companies — Mumbai, Maharashtra. A certificate of commencement of business was granted to our Company on
August 12, 1992 by Registrar of Companies — Mumbai, Maharashtra. Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation under Section 391-
394 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, NHC Industries Private Limited has been merged with our
Company with effect from September 07, 2010. Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to NHC Foods Limited
pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated October 15, 2010 issued by the Registrar of Companies — Mumbai, Maharashtra.

Pursuant to the name change, the object clause was altered by shareholders by passing Special Resolution at their General Meeting
held on November 11, 2010 and confirmed by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai vide its certificate dated December 08, 2010. The
Registered Office of the Company shifted from the state of Maharashtra to the State of Gujarat vide Special Resolution passed by
the Equity Shareholders of the Company through Postal Ballot on September 21, 2012 and confirmed by an order of Regional
Director, Western Region, Mumbai, Maharashtra vide its order dated July 09, 2013.

The equity shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited bearing Scrip Code ‘517554°, and ISIN ‘INE141C01036°.

Founded in 1992 under the visionary leadership of Mr. Apoorva Himatlal Shah, our company has established itself as a prominent
exporter of spices and agricultural commaodities. With a focus on quality and sustainability, we have positioned ourselves as a fast-
growing entity in the spice and agro-commodities sector. Our commitment to excellence begins with the careful selection of raw
materials from diverse regions across the country.

Our Company, NHC Foods Limited is primarily engaged in the business of Trading of diverse array of food products including
Spices, Food Grains, Oil Seeds, Pulses, dry fruits and other agro-commaodities. Our company is recognized for its commitment to
supplying bulk quantities of these carefully selected products to our esteemed customers, catering to their diverse needs in both
domestic and international markets. With a robust export network, NHC Foods Limited proudly serves clients in more than 30
countries around the globe, establishing us as a key player in the international food trade industry. Our export sales accounts for
82.88% and 83.74% of total revenue from operations for the period ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

Our company is a government recognised Export house and accorded as ‘“Three Star Export House’ by Director General Foreign
Trade, Government of India in the year 2023 in accordance with the provisions of the Foreign Trade Policy, 2023. Our company
has also obtained Registration of Self Sealing Permission for export of goods in container. Our company is also awarded
‘Certificate of Merit’ for meritorious performance in the export of spices and spice products during the year 2013-14. These
accolades are a testament to our unwavering dedication to excellence and our ability to consistently deliver high-quality products
to customers worldwide.

Since incorporation, NHC Foods Limited continues to innovate and expand its product offerings. Our integrated business model,
combined with a focus on quality and sustainability, has enabled us to remain progressing in the industry. We are proud to serve
our customers with products that carry the essence of freshness and the goodness of nature, and we remain committed to
maintaining our position as a prominent supplier in the global market for spices and agricultural commaodities.

Our company has obtained various certifications i.e. 1ISO 22000:2005, Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP), Hazard Analysis
Critical Control Point (HACCP), Good Hygiene Practice (GHP), Spice Board of India, U.S. Food & Drug Administration (FDA),
Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Development Authority (APEDA), Global G.A.P., HALAL, Star-K Kosher
Certification, Department of Health & Human Services, USA etc. Owing to over 3 decades of experience in the agro commodity

Page | 70



@NHC

business, NHC Foods Limited has an established track record of operations and longstanding relationships with its customers. The
Company’s promoters have rich experience of three decades in this industry.

Our unique business model has enabled us to penetrate a niche segment of the market and build a robust customer base across
India and abroad. We offer a diverse range of products that consistently meet their expectations. We started our business operations
by establishing a production facility at Survey No. 777, Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, at Village Umarsadi, Taluka Pardi, Valsad,
Killa Pardi, Gujarat, India, 396175. This facility marked the beginning of our journey in manufacturing turmeric powder (haldi),
chili powder (mirchi), and coriander powder (dhaniya). Over the years, we have evolved and expanded our product offerings,
delighting customers with an array of spice powders, including cumin, onion, curry, ginger, nutmeg, garlic, and mustard seeds
powders. Our products are marketed under the brands "NHC SAAZ Sa Re Kha Na" "'Indi Bite Eat the Best,” and "Eat’mor
Eat again & again" reflecting our commitment to quality and innovation.

Beyond domestic success, our company has emerged as a prominent exporter of agricultural commaodities. We have built an
unparalleled reputation for excellence, dependability, and superior quality in the international trade of various products such as
whole and ground spices, oil seeds, grains, rice and pulses etc. Our extensive reach spans over 30 countries underscores our
commitment to serving a diverse clientele and meeting the demands of international markets.

The main objects of our Company as set forth in the Memorandum of Association of our Company are as follows:

1. To design, develop, manufacture, purchase, sell or otherwise import, export and generally deal in any electronic, electrical,
and electro systems including software procedures, peripheral products, Computers, data processing machinesand systems and
components thereof, electric and electromechanical accounting systems, machinesfor registering data preparation, recording,
perforating, tabulating, sorting, printing,typewriting products, facilities, accessories and devices of all kinds in India and
Abroad.

2. Tocarryonbusiness in India or globally as Exporters of all kinds of products such as Indian Masalas, Ready Mixes, Processed
Foods, Snacks, Pellets, Namkins, Ready to Eat food, Semi-Processed Foods, Frozen Foods, Cereals and Breakfast Foods,
Curry’s, Jams, Sauces, Soups, Bakery and Confectionery Products, Chocolate based Products, Spreads, Noodles, Pasta,
Sweets, Canned or Retort Food Products, Organic Food Products, specialty Foods, Herb Based Nutritional Foods, vegetable
and fruit chips, Food ingredients, Food concentrates, Food Colors and Flavours, Dehydrated and Freeze Dried Foods, Milk
and Milk Products, Fruit Drinks, Energy Drinks, Dry Fruits, Nuts, Pickles, Papads, Edible Food Products, Soya Products,
Herbal Products, Seasonings and all type of Food and Agricultural Produces or Products, Whole Spices, Spice Powders,
Pulses, Oilseeds of all kinds, Edible Oils, Essentials Qils, Perfumeries, Tea Coffee, Sugar, Cereals, Gains, Coarse Grains,
Minor Forest Products, Soya bean Meal, Rape Seeds Meal, Tobacco and Tobacco Products, Betel nuts, Whole & Split, all
kinds of Foodstuffs, Engineering Goods, Chemicals Pharmaceutical and Cosmetic Products, Agarbatties and so on and so
forth and to carry on business in India or globally as manufacturers, importers, Traders, Dealers, Producers, Processors,
Packers, Resellers, Collaborators, Contract Manufacturers, Private label manufacturers, Consultants, Franchisee Agents,
Franchisers and Contractors, Brokers, Buying Selling Agents, Factors, Distributors, Stockiest in all kinds of Products and
Articles of Merchandise and to Undertake, carry on or acquire Agencies of all kinds and for all products and Articles of
Merchandise, Commodities and to act as Manufacturers Representatives and to set up import and export Houses for all types
of Products required or ordered by customers.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

1. Unique and sustainable business model: Our Company is involved in business of spices and other agricultural commaodities.
We source our products from domestic market and sell our products directly to our customers. Our business operates
exclusively on a Business-to-Business (“B2B”’) model, where our primary focus is on delivering high-quality products directly
to customers. This approach allows us to build strong relationships with businesses that value reliability and consistency in
their supply chains.
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2. Consistent focus on quality: We believe that quality is a pre-requisite for a positive consumer experience and long-term
brand loyalty. This idea has formed the foundation of the expansion and diversification of our product portfolio since our
inception. Our company has obtained certification i.e. 1ISO 22000:2005, Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP), Hazard
Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP), Good Hygiene Practice (GHP), Spice Board of India, U.S. Food & Drug
Administration (FDA), Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Development Authority (APEDA), Global G.A.P.,
HALAL, Star-K Kosher Certification, Department of Health & Human Services, USA etc. along with along with FSSAI
license under Food Safety and Standards Act 2006. The products are reviewed by our internal team to ensure compliance
with quality and safety requirements. Our commitment to stringent quality control has been critical to our success and has
contributed to customers associating our brand with trust and transparency. We have long term relations with our suppliers
which help us to procure quality raw materials at competitive rates.

3. Long Standing Relationship with our customers: We have been in the business of spices since the last three decades and
have successfully developed and supplied quality products to our customers. We believe that our product development
capabilities and has allowed us to develop a long-standing relationship with our customers. Our past experience in the supply
of our products, ability to meet specific taste requirements of our customers, reputation for quality of our products and the
price competitiveness of our offerings has enabled us to establish and maintain relationships with our customers. Our sales
& marketing network is aided by our in-house sales and marketing team, which liaise with our customers on a regular basis
for customer inputs, market demands as well as positioning of our products vis-a-vis products of our competitors. We believe
that our existing relationship with our customers represents a competitive advantage in gaining new customers and increasing
our business.

4. Diversified Product Portfolio: We believe that our understanding of the consumer’s culinary taste complements our product
development capabilities, which has allowed us to develop a comprehensive portfolio of a variety of spices and other
agricultural products. Over the years our brand has witnessed its survival with continued innovation and introduction of new
products, including launching of innovative flavors targeted at addressing consumer taste, market trends and providing
superior quality products to consumers. Our diversified product portfolio enables us to cater to a wide range of taste
preferences and consumer segments. Our ability to continuously upgrade our product range to address shift in customer
preferences, just in time inventory availability and changes in demand has helped us to maintain the diversified product
portfolio.

5. Strong and stable management team with proven ability: We believe that our management team has a long-term vision
and has proven its ability to achieve long-term growth of the Company. Our Promoters have prolonged experience in agri
industry. We believe that the strength of our management team and their understanding of the industry will enable us to
continue to take advantage of current and future market opportunities.

6. Branding and Packaging: The company has developed various brands such as “NHC SAAZ Sa Re Kha Na”, “Indi Bite
Eat the Best”, and “Eat’mor Eat again & again”. They also focus on attractive and practical packaging to enhance product
appeal and safety.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

1. Expand our market presence and increase our market reach: Presently most of our sales is derived from the exports.
We also sell marginally to some parts of India. We continually seek to enhance our addressable market through our
network. We gradually intend to expand our business operations to other parts of India and abroad. We plan to continue
our strategy of diversifying and expanding our presence for the growth of our business. Through further diversification of
our operations geographically, we hope to hedge against risks of operations in only specific areas and protection from
fluctuations resulting from business concentration in limited geographical areas.

2. Continue to strengthen our existing product portfolio and diversify into products: We have consistently focused on
expanding and optimizing our product range to offer a wide range of food options. Several decades ago, people used to
grind their spices manually at home, make their own blends for use in their cooking but the changing lifestyles and working
styles urbanization has led to growth in the organized retail sector; this in turn has led to change in consumer buying
behavior. Rising urbanization leads to increase in overall retail spending which would directly benefit the spices and other
agricultural products market as the highest share of people’s expenditure is on food. We seek to develop new products to
cater to the evolving requirements of a large customer base and cover newer customer segments. We propose to expand
our presence in existing product categories by increasing the emphasis on processing and packaging a greater proportion
of these products under our brand name, thereby reducing our reliance on traded products.
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Improving operational efficiencies: Our Company aims to enhance efficiencies to achieve cost savings and maintain
competitiveness. We believe this can be accomplished through expanding our domestic presence and leveraging
economies of scale. By deepening our reach in current regions with a new product range, we can enter new areas within
these regions and better utilize our infrastructure. These actions will enable our company to boost market share and
profitability.

Value proposition for consumers: Our growth strategy centers on expanding the number of client relationships, as we
believe that a larger client base will bring stability to our business. Over the years, our brand equity has strengthened,
thanks to product innovation, cost-efficient production and distribution, and delivering superior value through our diverse
product range. We believe that offering higher grammage and strong value to price-conscious middle-class Indian
consumers—who represent a significant portion of the market—nhas played a key role in our brand's growth and market
share, particularly in urban, semi-urban, and rural areas across India. We aim to build on our existing relationships while
also focusing on adding more clients to our portfolio. Our Company believes that successful business is built on strong
relationships, and that long-term relationships with major clients yield significant returns. These lasting connections are
founded on trust and consistently meeting customer needs.

Focus on consistently meeting quality standards: Our Company intends to focus on adhering to the quality standards
of the products. Quality of the product is very important for the company from both customer and end user point of view.
Continuous quality review of products and timely corrective measures in case of quality diversion are keys for maintaining
quality standards of the products. Providing the desired and good quality products help us in enhancing customer trust
and maintaining long term relationships with them.

Maintaining cordial relationship with our Suppliers, Customer and employees: We believe in maintaining good
relationship with our suppliers, customers and employees which are the most important factor to keep our Company
growing. Our dedicated and focused approach and efficient and timely delivery of products has helped us build strong
relationships with our existing customers over the number of years. Further, we believe that establishing strong, mutually
beneficial long-term relationships with strategic suppliers is a critical step in improving performance across the supply
chain, generating greater cost efficiency and enabling the business to grow and develop.

Improving Efficiency: Our Company intends to improve operating efficiencies to achieve higher operational
effectiveness resulting in higher sales, which allowing us to distribute our fixed costs to the number of units sold, hence
profit margins increased.

Strengthening our brand: We plan to invest in developing and strengthening our brand recognition through various
brand-building efforts, communication strategies, and promotional activities such as exhibitions, fairs, food events,
industry participation, and public and investor relations initiatives. These efforts will help us maintain and expand our
global and local presence. We believe that our branding activities will enhance brand recall and trust among our customers,
ultimately driving increased demand for our products.

Recently, the company participated in major international exhibitions, including Gulfood, the largest food exhibition in
Dubai, and Anuga, one of the world's largest food and beverage industry trade event. Exhibitions are an excellent
opportunity for companies to showcase their products or services and connect with potential customers.

Opportunities in Export Market: Our Company has already got its presence in Countries world-wide like, USA, UK,
Canada, Brazil, Singapore, Russia, Romania, China, Malaysia, Vietnam, Taiwan, Iraq, Israel, Jamaica, Turkey, Tunisia,
UAE, Egypt, Georgia, South Africa, Morocco, Jordan, Kenya, Kuwait, Lebanon, Oman, Palestine, Croatia, Belarus,
Armenia, Estonia etc., but still there is a huge market which can be tapped and captured and in this Direction NHC Foods
Limited has strengthened its Core Marketing Team who are utilizing various platforms and marketing tools like sourcing
new Clients and markets through various Trade shows like Gulf Food Exhibition in Dubai and Anuga etc. and also
personal visits to overseas clients.
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OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

NHC Foods Limited's product portfolio is both comprehensive and diverse, encompassing a wide range of food items supplied
in both domestic and international markets. Our product offerings include, but are not limited to, the following:

@ Chilli with Stem
@ Chilli without Stem

Whole Spice

@ Turmeric @ Cumin Seeds

@ Black Cumin Seeds @ Fenugreek Seeds

@ Coriander Seeds @ Fennel Seeds

@ Ginger @ Celery Seeds
@ Bay Leaves @ Dill Seeds
@ Green Cardamom @ Big Cardamom

@ Nutmeg @ Black/Yellow Mustard Seeds
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@ Chilli Powder @ Turmeric Powder o Coriander Powder
@ Curry Powder o Black Pepper Powder
o Fenugreek Powder

@ Dry Ginger Powder

<

Oil Seeds
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® Natural Sesame Seeds @ Hulled Sesame Seeds o Black Sesame Seeds

© Millet

® Colden Raisins ® Malayar Raisins ® Creen Raisins

@ Black Raisins (Jumbo / Regular) ® |ndustrial Raisins
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@ Coffee Bean
® Corn Flaxes
® Milets (Green, Yellow )
® Niger Seeds

Grains

@ Rice Long Grain @ Safflower Seeds

@ Soya Wadi Bold ® Sago
® Sorghum (White, Red, Creamy) @ Thick Poha
@ White Maize

® Chick Peas
@ Toor Dal
® Moong Dal
® Urad Dal
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@® Red / White Onion Flakes
® Red / White Onion Powder

® Garlic Flakes
® Cralic Powder

® Senna Leaves

® Senna Pods ® Mixed Herbs

©® Gum Benzoin ® Jamalgota ©® Qubeb ® Singoda

® Gum Myra @ Kakadshingi @ Rampatri @ Stone Flower

® Harda ® Lin Seeds ® Rose Flower ® Tukmaria / Basil
® Himej ® Liquorice @ Ratanjot

@ Halim ® Long Piper @ Sunhemp Seeds

® |sabgol / Psyllian Husk @ Majith @ Shikakai

® Aloevera @ Cassia Tora Seeds
® Annatto Seeds @ Cassia (Cinnamon)
® Amla @® Galangal Roots
® Asafetida ® Guggal
@ Ashwangandha ©® Gum Karaya / Katira
® Bawchi ® Gum Olibanum
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(77} Ground & Blended Spices
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PULSES - SPiLES I
Eat the Best

The secret of tasty food
Whole Spices, Cereals & Pulses

RAW MATERIAL AND SUPPLIERS
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We have a strong supplier network enabling flexibility and procurement at the most competitive prices. We endeavour to source
our products from the regions where such products are widely available or manufactured, to minimise our procurement costs and
endeavour to offer quality products at lowest costs. We have a standardised procurement system that enables us to source quality
products through the best possible channels available to us. Our team conducts detailed research on an ongoing basis to locate the
best product sources available, in relation to both quality and price. Our sustained efforts to improve our strong supplier network
have led to a significant advantage in procurement leading to an efficient supply and sale cycle.

SALES AND MARKETING

We are required to consistently focus on branding and promotional activities to enhance our visibility and trust in the Spices and
agri-commaodity industry. Our marketing initiatives are focused on customer development and maintaining customer relationship.
To further create brand visibility, we also participate in exhibitions like we participated in major international exhibitions,
including Gulfood, the largest food exhibition in Dubai, and Anuga, one of the world's largest food and beverage industry trade
event. The exhibitions and fair give us a platform to exhibit our products. The importance of brand recognition may become greater
as our competitors offer products similar to ours. The ability to differentiate our brand and our products from our competitors
through our branding, marketing is an important factor in attracting consumers and cementing brand loyalty.

COMPETITION

We operate in an industry with several competitors, and face competition from domestic and international competitors in the
markets in which we operate. It is possible that some of our existing and potential competitors may have greater brand recognition
in India or globally, longer operating histories, greater financial, research, distribution and technological resources, product
development, sales and marketing, more experienced management, access to a cheaper cost of capital and other resources than we
do. Some of our competitors may have lower costs, or be able to offer lower prices and a larger variety of products in order to gain
market share. If market prices are substantially reduced by our competitors in the respective markets, our business in those markets
could be adversely affected. Our competitors may also make acquisitions or establish cooperative or other strategic relationships,
among themselves or with third parties, thereby increasing their ability to address the needs of our targeted customers and offering
lower cost products and services than we do which may have a negative effect on our sales. Further, new competitors may emerge
at any time. Further, some of our competitors may have the ability to devote greater resources to the marketing, advertising and
product endorsement. As a result, these competitors may be better equipped to influence consumer preferences or otherwise
increase their market share. Increased competition could result in, among other things, a slowdown in the growth of our corporate
customers, a loss of our market share, price reductions, reduced demand for our products, reductions in revenues and reduced
margins and profitability.

PLANT & MACHINERY

Grinding Machine
Roaster cum Blender
Packaging Machine
Shrink Wrap & Vacuum

HUMAN RESOURCE

Human resource is an asset to any industry. We believe that our employees are the key to the success of our business and hence we
have a structured organization plan to take care of the growth and motivation aspects of our team. Our manpower is a prudent mix
of experienced and young personnel which gives us the dual advantage of stability and growth. Our work processes and skilled
resources together with our strong management team have enabled us to successfully implement our growth plans. The total
strength of manpower as on date of this draft letter of offer is 24 employees including our Directors.
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INSURANCE

We have availed various insurance policies i.e. Marine Export Import Insurance Open Policy, Laghu Udyam Suraksha Policy,
Sookshma Udyam Suraksha Policy, Burglary Policy, Fidelity Guarantee Policy and Car Policy which we believe is in accordance
with industry practices. For further details, please refer to Chapter “Risk factor - Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to
protect us against certain operating hazards and this may have a material adverse effect on our business.” on page 22 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES
Registered Office and Processing Unit:
Survey No. 777, Umarsadi Desaiwad Road,
Village Umarsadi, Taluka Pardi, +

Valsad - 396175, Gujarat, India

Corporate Office:

C WING 419, 420, 215 Atrium,

Andheri Kurla Road,

Near JB Nagar Metro Station,

Andheri East. Mumbai — 400059, India
Warehouse:

D-22/8, TTC Industrial Area,

MIDC, Turbhe,

Navi Mumbai — 400705, India
COLLABORATIONS

We have not entered into any technical or financial or any other collaboration agreement as on the date of filing the Draft Letter
of Offer.
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A) Board of Directors
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The present composition of our Board of Directors and its committees are in accordance with the corporate governance
requirements provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. As per the Articles of Association, our
Company is required to have not less than 3 (Three) directors and not more than 15 (Fifteen) Directors. Our Company currently
has 6 (six) directors on its Board. The detailed composition are as follows:

Sl. No. Name of the Director DIN Age Designation
1 Apoorva Himatlal Shah 00573184 58 Managing Director
2 | Manish Jagdishchandra Vyas 08502223 43 Non-Executive Independent Director &
Chairman
3 Apar Apoorva Shah 07125733 30 Whole Time Director
4 | Karan Hareshlal Nagdev 10728141 33 Additional Director (Non-Executive
Independent)
5 Ashish Ashokkumar Shah 06701501 40 Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
6 Neha Mahesh Dhanuka 08502169 31 Non-Executive Independent Director

The following table sets forth details regarding the Board of Directors as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

Sr. No. Details of Directors Designation Other Directorships
1 Name: Mr. Apoorva Himatlal Shah Managing Director Indian Companies:
Date of Birth: 01.01.1966 i) NHC Overseas Private Limited
Age: 58 Years Foreign Companies:
DIN No: 00573184 Nil
Address: 1001, 10" Floor, Horizon, 12%
Gulmohar Road, Opp. Kaifi Azmi Park,
Vidyanidhi Marg Juhu, Mumbai-400049,
Maharashtra, India
Occupation: Business
Term: from 13.11.2021 till 12.11.2024
Period of Directorship: Since 13.11.2015
2 Name: Mr. Manish Jagdishchandra Vyas Non-Executive Indian Companies:
Independent Director &
Date of Birth: 01.06.1981 Chairman i) Rockwell Minerals & Metals Private
Limited
Age: 43 Years ii) Pandora Food Pvt. Ltd.
iii) Edurific Edutech Private Limited
DIN No: 08502223 iv) Amgir Ashianna Real Estate Private
Limited
Address: Room No. 06, Sunder Muneshwar v) Mapula Chemicals Private Limited
Yadav Chawl, S V Road Ambawadi, Dahisar vi) Bluesun Exports Private Limited
East, Opposite Shiv Sena Office, Mumbai- vii) Shank Entertainment Private Limited
400068, Maharashtra, India viii) Pioneer Breweries India Private
Limited
Occupation: Service
Foreign Companies:
Term: from 12.07.2024 till 11.07.2029
Nil
Period of Directorship: Since 12.07.2019
3 Name: Mr. Apar Apoorva Shah Whole Time Director Indian Companies:

Page | 79



@NHC

Sr. No.

Details of Directors

Designation

Other Directorships

Date of Birth: 26.07.1994

Age: 30 Years

DIN No: 07125733

Address: 1001, Horizon Parle CHS Ltd,
JVPD Scheme, Gulmohar Cross Road, 12,
Vile  Parle  West, Mumbai-400049,
Maharashtra, India

Occupation: Business

Term: from 10.06.2024 till 09.06.2027

Period of Directorship: Since 10.06.2021

i) NHC Overseas Private Limited

Foreign Companies:

Nil

Name: Mr. Karan Hareshlal Nagdev

Date of Birth: 03.02.1991

Age: 33 years

DIN No: 10728141

Address: Flat 105, Olympia — 1, Iris
Olympia Co-op Housing Society, Reliance
NX Road, Pale, Ambernath East — 421501,
Kalyan, Thane, Maharashtra, India

Occupation: Service

Term: from 12.08.2024 till the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting

Period of Directorship: Since 12.08.2024

Additional Director
(Non-Executive
Independent)

Indian Companies:
Nil
Foreign Companies:

Nil

Name: Mr. Ashish Ashokkumar Shah

Date of Birth: 18.11.1983

Age: 40 Years

DIN No: 06701501

Address: 11 Nandgam Society, Vrundavan
Bus Stop, Waghodia Road, Vadodara-
390019, Gujarat, India

Occupation: Service

Term: Liable to retire by rotation

Period of Directorship: Since 26.06.2023

Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director

Indian Companies:
Nil
Foreign Companies:

Nil

Name: Ms. Neha Mahesh Dhanuka
Date of Birth: 30.09.1992

Age: 31 Years

Non-Executive
Independent Director

Indian Companies:
Nil

Foreign Companies:
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Sr. No.

Details of Directors Designation

Other Directorships

DIN No: 08502169
Address: Room No. 8, Lalmahal Co-op
Society, Opposite Fire Brigade, Kopri
Colony, Thane East, Thane-400603,
Maharashtra, India
Occupation: Service

Term: from 12.07.2024 till 11.07.2029

Period of Directorship: Since 12.07.2019

Nil

Past Directorships in listed companies
a) Details of current and past directorship(s) for a period of five years in listed companies for each Director mentioned above,
whose shares have been/were suspended from being traded on any of the Stock Exchange, during his/her tenure:
None of our Directors are, or were a director of any listed company other than the issuer company, whose shares have been,
or were suspended from being traded on any of the Stock Exchange during the term of their directorships in such companies
during the last five years preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

b) Details of current and past directorship(s) in listed companies for each Director mentioned above, who have been/were
delisted from the stock exchange(s) during his/her tenure in the past ten years:
None of our Directors are or were a director of any listed company other than the issuer company, which has been, or was
delisted from any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such company during the last ten years preceding
the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Service Contracts with our Directors for benefit upon termination

Our Company has not executed any service contracts with its directors providing for benefits upon termination of their
employment.

B) Our Senior Management Personnel and Key Managerial Personnel

The details of our senior and the key managerial personnel as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer are set out below. All the
Key Managerial Personnels are permanent employees of our Company. Except for certain statutory benefits, there are no other
benefits accruing to the Key Managerial Personnel.

No. Name of key managerial personnel and senior Designation
management personnel

1 Mr. Apoorva Himatlal Shah Managing Director
2 Mr. Apar Apoorva Shah Whole Time Director
3 Mrs. Aneri Shah Business Development Manager
4 Mr. Archit Wahale Chief Financial Officer
5 Mrs. Alesha Hakim Khan Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
6 Rajeev Joshi International Marketing Manager
7 Shrikant Pralhad Ghadage Accounts and Finance Manager
8 Ashok Laxman Utekar Accounts and Finance Manager
9 Ajit Patil Senior Accounts Manager
10 Sanad Upadhyay Export Documents Manager
11 Sukhdev Kolge Stores Manager
12 Dharmendrakumar Thakorlal Rana Factory Manager
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C) Current Organizational Structure
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A JMMK & Co.

INDIA  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Quarterly Unaudited Standalone Financial Results of
the NHC Foods Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
NHC Foods Limited

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited stancalone financial results of NHC
Foods Limited (the ‘Company’) for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 (the "Statement”) attached
herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuganl 1o the requircments of Raguiation a3 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguigtions. 2015, as amended (the Listing
Regulation')

2. The preparation cof the Statement in accordance with the rocognition and measurement principles lad
sown in Indian Accounting Standard 24, (Ind AS 34) “Interim Financial Reporting” prescnbed under
Section 132 of the Companies Act, 2012, as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India_read with the Circular is the responsibility of the
Company's management and has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company Qur
responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard an Review Engagements
(SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Finaneial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity” 1ssued oy the |nsttute of Chartereg Acceuntants of India This standard requires that we plan
ang perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as 1o whether the Statement is free of materal
misstatement. A revew |s limited primarily to inquines of company persennel and analylical procecures
appa#ed to fimancial data and thus provides 1ess assurance than an audit ‘We have nat pertarmed an
sudit and accerdingly, we do not express an audit cpinion

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has ceme to our attention that causes us 1o believe
that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principlas laid down in the applicadle Indian Accounting Standards ('Ing AS') specified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2043 as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
recognized accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed
in terms of the Regulation. read with the Circular. including the manner in which it s 1o be disclosed. of
that it contains any matenal misstatement

For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No.:- 120459W

Jitendra Doshi

Partner

Membership No. 151274
UDIN: 2415127T4BKEXK 6883

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12* August 2024

8 - 10, Upper Basement, Western Edge |I, Behind Metro Cash & Carry, Off W. E. Highway, Borivall East, Mumbai - 400 086,
Telefax : +01 22 40101784 | E-mail ; info@jmkco.in | www.jmkco.in
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NHC FOODS LTD

(Government Recognised Three Star Export House)

An 1SO 22000:2005 Cartified Company

CIN ; L15122GJ1992PLC076277° GSTIN :- 27AAACM30328126

Standalone Statement of Un-audited Financial Results for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2024

Warchouse : D-228 TTC ndustna! Ares,
MIDC, Turbhe, Navi - Mumbai - 400705,

Rs)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. Quarter Ended Year Ended
Nc;. Particulars 30-Jun-24 31-Mar-24 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-24
(Un - (Audited) (Un - Audited) (Audited)
1 |income J
a) Revenue from operations 6734.43 7,954.06 4,203.85 20,924 40
b) Other income 61.76 11362 6596 20571
Total Income (a+b) 6,796.19 8,067.68 4,269.81 21,13011
2 |Expenses
a) Cost of materials consumed 2528
b) Purchase of Stock in Trade 4630.94 8,143.89 3,904.83 15,846.72
c) Changes in Inventories 1092.36 {1349.69) (225.23) (1,427.67)
d) Employees benefir expense 58.79 59.56 57.10 23624
e} Finance Cost 76.36 8355 8447 33092
f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 40.85 5144 30.48 14436
g) Other expenses 71696 921.45 360.14 1,66222
Total Expenses (a+becrdeerfeg) 6,616.26 7.910.20 4,211.78 2081807
3 |Profit Before Tax (1-2) 17953 157.48 58.03 31204
4 Tax expense
(i) Current Tax 121 3221 9.7% 6598
(#i) Current Tax Expenses relating to prior 4.79
years 479
(i¥) Deferred Tax Expenses / (Income) 6.2 12.62 7.38 654
Total Tax Expense (i+ii+ii) 18.3| 49.62 17.13 7731
S |Profit for the period (3-4) 161.62 107.86 40.90 23473
6 |Other Comprehensive Income
(i} ftems that will not be reclassified to
statement of Profit o A
of adtan = (3.22) (5.41) {1.00) (6.65)
Total Other comprehensive income of
7 |tax) (resisiiioiv) 3.22) (5.41) {1.00) {6.65)
8 |Total Comprehensive income for the 158.40 102.45 39.90 228.08
Rs. 10/- each
Resarves Excluding Revaluation Reserve a5
10 per balance sheet date 139154
1 Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) 136 091 0.34 198

Factory & Registerd Office : Suavey No 777,
Umarsadi Desawad Road, Village Umarsadi,
Taiuka Pardi, Dist. Valsad, Gujarat - 396175

Tok: + 91 22 - 668 75000 / Email: contact@nhegroup.com /URL : hitpiwww.nhcgroup.com

Corporate Office : 413 & 420 4th Flocr, C - Wing,
Atrium 215, Andhen - Kurta Road, Chakala, Ancheri (E),
Mumbal - 400059

Draft Letter of Offer

Page | 84



NHC FOODS LTD

NHC FOODS LTD

(Government Recognised Three Star Export House)
An ISO 22000:2005 Cartified Company
CIN : L15122GJ1992PLCO76277® GSTIN - 27TAACM30328126

|__Motss:
1 m-umm-amqwmmmmnmmmmwwumwwmumwmwumw
respective meetings held on August 12, 2024 and have been subjected to limited review by the Statutory auditors of the company

2 mamwuuammmmmwmhmmmmummmmllmmammfsmm
maummwummmsaummmmsm;m 2015 and the Companies {Indan Azcounting
Stancards) Amesdment Rules, 2016.

3 Cmmywhugmu_lg?oﬁmhﬂnﬁuﬁwﬁmmwmr.

a memmwmuuwnmmawumm.wmaruwumummmmu-mbmd
| 85S¢ Lmited www.bseindia com

5_|Figures of previcus periods/year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary.

v Aups 12,208

Warehouse : D-22/8, TTC industrial Area, | Factory & Registerd Office : Suevey No.777, | Corporate Office : 419 & 420, 4h Floor, C - Wing,
MIDC, Turbhe, Novi - Mumbai - 400705, | Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, Vilage Umarsadi, |  Atrium 215, Andheri - Kurla Road, Chakala, Andherl (E),
Taluka Pardi, Dist. Valsad Gujarat - 306175, Mumba - 400059,

Tel: + 91 22 - 898 75000 / Email: contact@nhogroup.com /URL : hitpiwww.nhegroup. com
N = T == I T S R S e e e e
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NHC FOODS LTD

A JMMK & Co.

INDIA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Indepondent Auditor's Review Report on the Quarterly Unaudited Consolidated Financial
Results of the NHC Foods Ltd Pursuant to the Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement s} Regulations, 2015, as amended

Review Report to
The Board of Directors NHC Foods Limited

We have reviewed Ihe accompanying Slaternent of Unaudited Consobdated Financial Results
of NHC Foods Limited (the "Hoiding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and
its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 (the
“Statement”) attached herewith, being submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the
requirements of Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEB! (Listing Obligatons and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the "Usting Regulations”),

The Holding Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the Statement n
accordance with the recognition and measurement pencipies laid down in Indian Accounting
Standarg 34 (Ind AS 34) "Intenm Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 20 13 as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accountng principles generally accepled In India and n compliance with Regulation 33
and 52 of the Isting Regulations, The Statement has been approved by the Holding
Company's Board of Directors. Our respensibiiity Is to express a conclusion on the Statement
based on our review

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410, "Rewview of Interim Financial Informaton Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity” Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain mederate assurance as
lo whether the Statement is free of material misstatement A review of interim financial
nformation consists of makng inquiries, primanly of persons respensible for financial and
eccounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures A revew s
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Audting
end consequently does not enable us o oblain assurance that we would become aware of al
significant matters that might be identdfied in an audit. Accordingly, we do nol express an audit
opinion

We also performed procedures in accordance with the Master Circular issued by the Secunties
and Exchange Board of India under Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, to the extent
applicable

The Statement includes the results of the entities mentioned in Annexure |

Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3
above and based on the consideration of the réview reports of othar auditors referrad fo in
paragraph 7 below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us lo believe that the
accompanying Statement, prepared in accerdance with recognition and measurement
principles lald down in the afcresad Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified
under Secton 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and other accounting pemciples generaily accepted in India, has not

Telefax : +91 22 40101784 | E-mail | info@jmkeco.in | www.jmkco.in
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disclosed the information requirad to be disciosed interms of the Listing Regulations, including
the manner in which it s to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement,

The subsidiary are located cutside India whose financial results and other financal information
which have been prepared by Management of the foreign subsidiary In accordance with
accounting pranciples generally accepted in their respective countries and also approved by the
Board of Directors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in Iheir respective
countries. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial results of such
subsidiary located cutside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countnes to accounting principles generally accepted in India We have reviewed
these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our conciusion
in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary localed oulsice India is
based on the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company
and reviewed by us The foregn subsidary has been conschidated with the Comgpany from 24th
April. 2024 as acguisiton of shares and contrel over the foreign company resulted from the
same date

The accompanying Statement includes unaudited intenm financial results and other unaudited
financial information in respect of:

One Foreign subsidiary, whose unaudited interim financial resulls and other unaudited financial
information include total revenuves of Rs 631 70 Lakhs, total net Profit after tax of Rs 39 27
Lakhs and tctal comprehensive income is NIL for the quarter ended 30" June, 2024.

I'he unaudited interim financial results and other unaudited financial information of these
subsidiary have not been reviewed by their auditors however that has been approved by the
management and approved by the board of director of holding company, our conclusion on the
Statement, in so far as it relates to the affairs of these subsidiary 1s based solely cn such
unaudited interwn financial results and other unaudited financial information. According to the
Information and explanations given 10 us by the Management. these interim financial results
are not material to the Group.

Cur conclusion on the Statement in respect of matters stated in para 7 above is not modified
with respect to our refiance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial results certified by the Management.

Annexure | - List of entities included in the Audit Report
Subsidiary:

1

Place Mumbal Jitandra 6\1(

Dato: 12% Auguet 2024 Partnor
UDIN 241561274DKECXKKOSTO Merberstip No. 151274

Intra Metal Trading LLC

For JMMK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No . 120459W
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NHC FOODS LTD

(Government Recognised Three Star Export House)

An ISO 22000-2005 Cortifiod Comgpany

CIN : L15122GJ1992PLCO76277° GSTIN - 27TAAACM30328126

mmmammmmmmw«msmmnm

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr. Quarter Ended Year Ended
o Particulars 30-Jun-24 31-Mar-24/ 30-Jun-23| 31-Mar-24
3 (Un - audited) | (Audited) - audited) (Audited)
1 |Income
a) Revenue from operations 7.366.12 7,954.06 4,203.85 20,924,530
b) Other Income 61.77 113.62 65.96 20571
Total Income (a+b) 742788 8,067.68 4,269.81 21,130.11
2 |Expenses
a) Cost of materials consumed - - - 2528
b} Purchase of Stock in Trade 5,216.33 8,143.89 3,904.83 19,846.72
c) Changes in Inventories 1,092.36 (1,349.69) (225.23) (1,427.67)
d) Employees benefit expense 62.20 59.56 57.10 236.24
) Finance Cost 76.36 8355 84.47 330.92
f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 4085 5144 30.48 14436
&) Cther expenses 720.59 52145 360.14 1,662.22
Total Expenses (arbecedie+fog) 7,208.65 7,910.20 4,211.78 20,818.06
3 |Profit Before Tax (1-2) 219.19 157.48 58.03 312.05
4 |Tax expense
(i) Current Tax 12.10 32.21 9.75 65.98
(i) Current Tax Expenses relating to prior
years - 479 - 4.79
(iii) Deferred Tax Expenses / (Income) 6.20 12.62 7.38 6.54
Total Tax Expense (i+ii+fii] 18.30 49.62 17.13 77.31
5 |Profit for the 3-4 200.88 107.86 40.90 234.74
6 |Other Comprehensive Income
(1) ttems that will not be reclassified to
statement of Profit and Loss (3.22) (5.41) {1.00) (6.65)
income (net of tax
7 |ieieiiioiv) (3.22) (5.41) (1.00) (6.65)
8 |Total Comprehensive income for the period 197.66 102.45 39.90 228.09
3 ’Pm Equity Share Capital - Face Value of Rs.
10/- each 1,185.50 1,185.50 1,185.50 1,185.50
10 Raemt:dudﬂkwduatbnkmnw
balance sheet date - - - 159154
11 |Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 1.68 0.91 0.34 198
Total Profit or Loss Attributable To 20089 107.86 40.90 234.74
12 |Profit or loss, attributable to owners of parent 19935 - -
Profit or loss, attrbutabie to Non controlling
|interege 149 - -
Comprehsive Income for the period ended
attributable to onwers of parents 197 .66 102.45 35.90 228.09
13 Comprensive Income, attributable to owners of
196.17 - - -
Comprehsive Income, attributable to Non
[controling interest 1.49 - -

Warehouse | D-22/8, TTC Industnal Area,
MIDC, Turbhe, Navi - Mumbai - 400705,

Factory & Registerd Office : Suevey No. 777,
Taluka Pardi, Dist. Vaisad Gujarat - 386175

Alrium 215, Andheri - Kuthood
Mumbai - 400050

Tel: + 9122 - 696 75000 / Email: contazt@nhegroup.com /URL : hitp/www.nhogroup.com
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NHC FOODS LTD

(Government Recognised Three Star Export House)
An ISO 22000:2005 Cartified Company
CIN : L15122GJ1992PLCO76277° GSTIN - 27TAAACM3032B126

Warehouse : D-22/8, TTC Industnal Area, | Factory & Registerd Office : Suevey No. 777, | Corporate Office : 419 & 420, 4th Fioor, C - Wing,
MIDC, Turbhe, Navi - Mumbal - 400705. Umarsadi Desaiwad Road, Village Umarsadi, Atrium 215, Andheri - Kurla Road, Chakala, Andhert (E),
Taluka Pardi, Dist. Valsad Gujarat - 396175, Mumbsai - 400059

Tel: + 9122 - 698 75000 / Emad: contact@nhcgroup.com /URL ; hitpiwww.nhegroup.com
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CAx

INDIA

JMMK & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members
NHC FOODS LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NHC FOODS LIMITED
(*the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the statement
of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Change in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “Ind AS financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. ("Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2024. the profit and total comprehensive income. changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilites under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"} together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current penod. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statement as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report

B - 10. Upper Basement, Western Edge Il, Behind Metro Cash & Carry, Off W. E. Highway, Borivali East, Mumbai - 400 066,
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' Sr. | Key Audit Matter
_No.

]

Auditor’s Response

1. Trade receivables and other financial
' assets and Impairment

Principal Audit Procedures:

F The Company has significant trade
receivables and other financial assets at
year end. Given the size of the balances

and the risk that some of the trade

receivables and other financial assets

required to evaluate whether any

risk.

Assessment of the recoverability of trade

receivables and other financial assets is
inherently  subjective and requires
significant management judgment (which
includes repayment history and financial

position of entities from whom these

|balances are recoverable, terms of
' ' underlying  arrangements,  overdue

balances, market conditions etc.).

may not be recoverable, judgement is |

\

|

\ allowance should be made to reflect the |
\

In view of the significance of the matter,
we applied the following key audit
procedures:

*» Obtaining an understanding of and

assessing the design, implementation |

and operating effectiveness of the
Company's key internal controls over
the process of estimating the loss
allowance for trade receivables and
other financial assets including
adherence to the requirements of the
relevant accounting standards.
Assessing the Company's
methodology for provisioning towards
trade receivables and other financial
assets
Understanding the key inputs used in
the provisioning model by the
Company such as repayment history,
overdue balances, market conditions.
*As a part of substantive audit
procedures, we tested on sample basis
the ageing of trade receivable having
different overdue period.

' In case of overdue debts inquired with

management for any dispute which
may require additional provisions.
Assessing the disclosures made
against the relevant accounting
standards.

'« The management has computed and

provided Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
in accordance with Ind AS 109 in
earlier periods. This provisions
reversed during the year based on the
company's assessment that full
recovery of the outstanding balance of
debtors, as shown in the financial
statements and even it is expected to
recover in case outstanding
additionally any non-expected amounts
have been written off during the current
period ended.
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'Sr.  Key Audit Matter
No.

 Auditor's Response

2. | Accuracy and completeness  of |

disclosure of related party transaction |
and compliance with the provision of

companies act 2013 and SEBI (Listing |

| Obligations and Disclosure

requirements) Regulations, 2015 as .
- amended (‘SEBI (LODR) 2015")

Principle Audit Procedures:

We identified the accuracy and
completeness of disclosure of related
party transactions as set out in respective
notes to the Ind AS financial statements
as a key audit matter due to:

* The significance of transactions
with related parties during the
year ended March 31, 2024

‘ * Related party transactions are
subject to the compliance
requirement under the
Companies act 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) 2015.

Our audit procedure in relation to the
disclosure of related party transactions
included the following:

*We obtained an understanding,
evaluated the design and tested
operating effectiveness of the controls |
related to capturing of related party
transactions and management's |
process of ensuring all transactions
and balances with related parties have
been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial
statements.

» We obtained an understanding of the
Companies policies and procedures in
respect of evaluating arms-length
pricing and approval process by the
audit committee and the board of
directors.

* We agreed the amounts disclosed with
underlying documentation and read
relevant agreements, evaluation of
arms-length by management, on a
sample basis, as part of our evaluation
of the disclosure.

¢ We assessed management evaluation
of compliance with the provision of
section 177 and section 188 of
Companies act 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
2015

* We evaluated the disclosures through
reading of statutory information books
and records and other documents
obtained during the course of cur audit,

Claims and ggngsures relating gl

1 taxation and litigation

Principle Audit Procedures:

The company has disclosed in Note
31(b) Para B of the Ind AS financial
statements contingent liabilities of Rs.
28.04 lakhs. In respect of disputed

Our audit procedures included the
following:

* We obtained understanding, evaluated |
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

.

ZWw
o

|
1
claims/levies under tax and legal matters, |
|

Taxation and litigation exposures have
been identified as a key audit matter due
to:

; * Significance of these amounts
and large number of disputed | e
matiers with various authorities.

Significant Judgement and

assumptions required by

. management in assessing the |
exposure of each case to |
evaluate whether there is a need |
to set up a provision and
measurement of exposures as | e
well as the disclosure of l
contingent liabilities.

We focus on this matter because of the
' potential financial impact on the Ind AS
‘ financial statements. Additionally, the
treatment of taxation and litigation cases !
reguire significant judgement due to the |
. complexity of the cases, timescales for |
resolution and involvement of various
| authorities.

the design, and tested the operating |
effectiveness of the contrels related to

the identification, recognition and

measurement of provisions  for

disputes, potential claims and litigation,

and contingent liabilities.

We obtained details of legal and tax
disputed matters and evaluation made
by the managermment and assessed
management's  position  through |
discussions on beth the probability of |
success in significant cases, and the
magnitude of any potential loss,

We read external legal opinions (where
considered necessary) and other
evidence to corroborate management's
assessment of risk profile in respect of |
legal claims,

We assessed the relevant disclosures ‘
made in the Ind AS financial
statements for compliance In
accordance with the requirements of |
Ind AS 37. |

4. | Non- Trade Investment in Subsidiary

\ The company has disclosed in Note 5. .
‘ Non Trade Investments in Intra Metal |
Trading LLC FZ amounting to Rs. 577.31 {
| Lakhs,
| The company has remitted Indian |
| Rupees Rs.576 68/~ Lakhs, equivalent to |
| USD 6.91 Lakhs, for the purpose of |
acquiring 2540 shares out of 2640 in M/'s
Intra Metal Trading L.L.C, located within
the free trade zone of the United Arab i
Emirates and same has been disclosed |
in to financials "“Non Trade investments”.
as of the aforementioned date, both the
issuance, registration, and allotment of
shares for M/s Intra Metal Trading L.LC
are still in process The acquisition itself
has not yet been completed even on the |
| date of the signing the financials and | o
| audit report,
! Due to the ongoing nature of this
| transaction, the management has taken
the decision fo refrain from preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the

Draft Letter of Offer

Principle Audit Procedures:

The company has not completed the
acquisition of shares of the foreign
company as of the financial closing
date Furthermore, as of the date of
signing this report, the company has
not produced any share certificates |
related to this acquisition |

For the penod enaing 31/03/2024 the
company have not completed |
documentation, issuance, registration, |
and allotment of shares for Mis Intra |
Metal Trading L.L.C and investment |
treated as same amount of transferred |
fund and classified as Non-current |
investment.

We nave Obtain and review

documentation related fo the payment
made, verified the completenass and
regarding the

accuracy of records
intended investment.




NHC FOODS LTD

Sr.  Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
_No. |

- ~ ——

pericd ended March 31, 2024. This e We assessed the relevant documents
decision is based on the uncertainty relating to payments for the acquisition
surrounding the completion timeling of of shares of the foreign LLC,
the acquisition and establish control over acquisition and allotment of shares in
the entity | process.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures 1o
Board’s Report, Corporate Governance Report end Shareholder Information, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

The Board's Report, Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance Report and
Shareholder Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report. Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection
with our aucit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and. in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board's Report, Report on Corporate governance and Business
Responsibility report. if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe actions
applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements:

The Company's board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect fo the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive
Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the Ing AS
and other accounting principles generally accepied in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act This responsibility alsc includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making
Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensunng the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financia! statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless ma i
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either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs waill
always detect a material misstatermnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identifying and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive (o those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulling from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtaining an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
142(3){i) of the Act. we are also responsible for expressing our opinion an whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern I we conciude that a matenal uncenainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repor to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
fo continue as a going concermn.

* Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements.
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statemenis represent the underlying
transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Maternality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that. individually or

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality ass

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the rgd
/
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our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
pericd and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order’), issued by
the Central Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on cur audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books-

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account:

d In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Acl, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,

e On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on st
March 2024 taken on records by the Board Directors, none of the disqualified as on
31st March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the
Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate report in
"Annexure B": Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on adeguacy and
operative effectiveness of the Company's interna! financial controls over financial
reporting;
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, *

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid / provided by the Company 1o its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of
the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upen by us,

N With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in cur
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial siatements as referred to Note 31(b) to
Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including denvative
contracts, as such the question of cormmmenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise

iii. There were no amounts, which, were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Iv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of Its knowledge and
belief, funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other scurces or
kKind of funds) by the Company in foreign entity (“!ntermediaries’). with the
understanding. whether recorded in wnting or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Notes the financial statement, no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities {"Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall. whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on bahalf of tha Funding
Pany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonabie and
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and {b) contain any
material misstatement.

v. The dividend has neither declared nor paid during the year by the C%
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
Tally Edit Log software (Version 3 1) for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further. during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of ihe audit traif feature being tampered with.

For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 1204

Jitendra Doshi

Partner

Membership No: 151274
Place: Mumbai

Date: 17" May, 2024
UDIN: 24151274BKEXJP1284
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of NHC Foods Limited

of even date™)

(i (a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(by All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification
which. in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and
the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements are held in the name of the Company as NHC Foods Limited
or in name of NHC Industnes Private Limited (Name before Amaigamation)

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Campany. the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets
or both during the year

(e} According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of cur
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder

(ii). {a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year In
our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were
10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given {o us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Ceompany has heen sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on
the basis of secunty of current assets. Details of differences between quarterly
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks and books of
accounts on the respective dates are given below-

10|
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- Quarter Ending Name of Bank  Amount | Amount as - Reported
As Per . reported in Excess
Books of | Quarterly /{Shortage)
Accounts | return/Statemen | In Lakhs
(in Lakhs) | tto Bank (In
= S Lakhs)
A B C=B-A =
Inventories
30/06/2023 Axis Bank Ltd = 3084.46 3084 .44 - 02
30/09/2023 AxisBank Ltd | 3018.92 3018.92 .00
31/12/2023 Axis Bank Ltd 2911.98 2811.68 -.30
31/03/2024 . Axis Bank Ltd | __4287.899 4287.99 .00
"Trade a
Receivables
| i
30/06/2023 Axis Bank Ltd | 2362.99 2331.05 -31.94 |
| 30/09/2023 AXxis Bank Ltd 3567.02 3567.02 .Co
31/12/2023 Axis Bank Ltd 281056 2910.56 .00
| 31/03/2024 Axis Bank Ltd 4426.56 4427 42 .86 |

(iii) (a) The Company during the year has made investment in one to be wholly owned
foreign subsidiary. The Company during the year has not granted any secured
loans/advances in nature of loans or stood guarantee. or provided security 10 any
parties during the year, The aggregate amount during the year. and balance
outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loan to be wholly
owned foreign subsidiary.

(b) According to the information and expianations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year,
are, prima facia, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature cf loans to
companies. firns, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clauses 3(iii){c}. 2(ij(d), 3lii)ie) and 3diixf) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(ivi According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans. or
provide any guarantee or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"). In respect of the investments made by the Company,
in our opinion the provisions of section 186 of the Act have been complied with

(v} The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable

(vi} We have broadly reviewed the bocks of account and records maintained by the
Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India for the
maintenance of cost recerds prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act
in respect of manufacturing activities of the Company and we have been
the management that provisions of the maintaining the records related withf'e
not applicable to the company as it is engaged in to the exports business,
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we have not made detailed examination of the records with view to determine whether
the records maintained with relating to the cost audit is complete and accurate.

{vii) {a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues of provident fund.
employees’ state insurance, service tax, duty of customers, duty of excise, cess.
goods and service tax, which have not been deposited on account of any disputes
The particulars of others statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March
31, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

' Sr.  Nature of the| Nature of| Forum where| Period to. Disputed 7

| No.  Statute ‘ dues Dispute is' which the Amount
‘ Pending - Amount {Rs. in Lakh)
| 1 __ Relates N Sttt
1 The Income| Income Tax Income Tax| A.Y.2011-12 28.04
| Tax Act, 1961 Appellate Tribunal ]

(viii)  Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account.
in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) {a) Based on our audit procedures and as as per the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Cumpany has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

fc) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the
loans were obtained.

{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposas by the Company

(e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

2]
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies
Act. 2013. Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable

1%) i@} The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initlal public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential aliotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not
applicable.

(xi) (&} Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according io
the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
matenality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the
audit

{b) Accarding to the information ard explanations given o us, no report under sub-
section {12) of Secticn 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the
auditers in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Comeanies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

(Xiii)  In our opinion and according lo the information and expianations given to us, the
lransactions  with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 ana 188 of the
Companies Acl, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party
ransactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv} (@) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audil procedures,
in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit systermn commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for
the period under audit.

{xv) In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with ils directors or persons
conneacied to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.,

(xvi) (@) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1034 (2 of

1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the «
report on clause 3{xvi)(a) of the Order i3 not applicable to the C
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{b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group; hence, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvit) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xvili) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly.
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 46 (1) to the financial statements
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Caompany is not capable of meeling its liabilities existing at the date of
baiance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this s not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company We further state that our reporting Is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no liability for the
company under provisions of section 135 of the companies Act, relating to corporate
social responsibilty. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the order are not
applicable to the company

For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No, 1204

Jitendra Doshi

Partner

Membership No: 151274
Place: Mumbai

Date: 17" May, 2024
UDIN: 24151274BKEXJP 1284
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nnexure “B” to th epen t Audi Re
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of NHC FOODS LIMITED of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (f) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NHC FOODS
LIMITED (the “Company”) as of 31% March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
slatements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of intarnal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such centrols operated effectively in all material respects

Our audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statement and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of interal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to Ind AS Financial Statement, assessing the risk that =
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk, The pracedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to Ind AS Financial Statement.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reperting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and th
preparation of financial statements for external purposes In accordance with gaeeTsteg
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accepled accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain {o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the nssets of the coinpany; (2) Provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary ¢ permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted coccounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authonsations of
the management and directors of the company; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, cr disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reparting with
reference fo these Ind AS Financial Statement, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 1o eror or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controis over financial reporting 1o future periods are subject to the risk that the ntemnal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according G the explanations given to us.
the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31% March, 2024, based on the internal finaricial control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal contreol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 1204590

Jitendra Doshi

Partner

Membership No 151274
Place: Mumbai

Date: 17" May, 2024
UDIN: 24151274BKEXJP 1284
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
Audited Audited
Particulars Note Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 822.88 867.06|
Right of use Assets 3a 253.05 78,72
Intangible Assets 4 195.28 234.61
Non-current investments 5 57791 60
Other Financial Assets 6 94.11 36.98
Other Non Current Assets 7 33.40 31.36
Total Non-Current Assets 1976.64 1249.32
2. Current Assets
Inventories 8 4287.99 2885.59
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 9 2769.42 1981.69
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 61.92] 231.61
Other Balances with Bank 11 68.55 64.78
Other Financial Assets 12 107.07 248.83
Other Current Assets 13 465.45 288.21
|_Total Current Assets 7760.40 5700.72
Total Assets 9737.05 6950.04
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 1185.50] 1185.50
Other Equity 15 1591.54| 1363.46
Total Equity 2777.04 2548.96Y
2. Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 370.00 584.62
Lease Liabilities 259.23 111.48
Long-Term Provisions 17 18.72 22.02
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 134.28 127.74
Other Non-Current Liabilities 19 6.03 7.10
Total Non-Current Liabilities 788.26 852.96
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 20 2985.19 1988.56
Lease Liabilities 20 49.76| 14.01
Trade and other Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 22383 61.88!
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 21 2684.74 112341
Short Term Provisions 22 30.75 33.14
Other Current Liabilities 23 197.47 327.13
Total Current Liabilities 6171.74 3548.13
Total Liabilities 6960.00 4401.09|
—
Total Equity and Liabilities 9737.05 6950.04

Aal

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the 1e financial

As per our report of even date attached
For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 120459W

CA.Ji Dﬁ'/'

Partner

Membership No.151274
Place : Mumbai

Date : 17/05/2024

UDIN: 24151274BKEX]P1284

Draft Letter of Offer

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

NHC Foods Limited

Apoorva Apar Shah

Chairman & Managing Director ~ Whole Time Director
DIN: 00573484 DIN: 07125733
Archit Wahale Shanu Bhandari
Chief financial officer C.S. ICSI M No-A31268
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122G]J1992PLC076277
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2024
For the year For the year
Particulars Note ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
L. Revenue
Revenue from Operations 24 20924.40 16356.04]
Other Income 25 205.71 55.31
Total Income 21130.11 16411.34
IL. Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 25.28 2.65
Purchase of Stock in Trade 19846.72 14428.52
Changes in Inventories 27 -1427.67 -634.14
Employee Benefits Expense 28 236.24 196.87
Finance Cost 29 33092 280.95
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3/4 144.36 120.60
Other Expenses 30 1662.22 1746.13
Total Expenses 20818.06 16141.59
Profit Before Tax (I-11) 312.05 269.75
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 65.98 60.52
MAT Adjustment > %
Current tax expense relating to prior years 4.79 -
Deferred Tax Expenses(Income) 6.54 33.58
Total Tax Expenses 7731 94.11
Profit For the Period 234.74 175.64
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
Defined benefit provision actuarial gain (loss) 28 -6.65 12.44
-6.65 12.44
Balance carried to Balance sheet 228.09 188.08
Earnings Per Equity Share of Face Value of 10/- each
Basic Earnings per share (Rs.) 1.98 1.48
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 1.98 1.48
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of the Financial |01-47

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 120459W

CA. Jitendra Doshi

Partner

Membership No.151274
Place : Mumbai

Date : 17/05/2024

UDIN: 24151274BKEX]P1284

Draft Letter of Offer

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
NHC Foods Limited

Apoorva Shah
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 00573184

o

e

Archit Wahale
Chief financial officer

Apar Shah

Whole Time Director
DIN: 07125733

Shanu
Bhandari
Shanu Bhandari
C.S. ICSI M No-A31268
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2024

D INH
;

in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before taxes 312.05 269.75
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 144.36 120.60
Interest expense including Lease 319.54 263.30
Interest income -4.19 -3.83
Sundry Balance/Prior Period Items written off and back 85.27] 13.49
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment -50 -10.50
Other Adjustments including other comprehensive income -6.65 12.44
Expected Credit Loss -142.34 -48.76
Ind As Effect on Re-measurement
Operating profit before working capital changes 707.54/ 616.49
Fohanges 1o Worklng Tagial b

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories -1402.39 -631.49
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables -730.65 -496.35
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and advances and other assets -94.65 290,04/
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade payables, other liabilities and provisions 1382.45 12539
Net Changes In Working Capital -845.25 -712.41
Cash generated from/(used) in the operations -137.71 -95.91
Income Tax(Net of Refunds) -84.37 -69.26
Net cash generated from/(used) in the operations (A) -222.08 -165.17
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment -28.34 -4.16|
Investment/Fixed Deposits -577.31 97.22
Interest income 4.19 3.83
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment’s 5.00] 12.50|
Net Cash From (used in) investing activities (B) -596.46 109.38
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Received(Repaid) Liability-Borrowings (Non current) -66.87 B86.76]
(Repayment) of borrowings to Bank/Borrowings (Current) 1032.39 222.86
Reversal of Financial Provision 6.65 -12.44
Interest expense -319.54 -248.23
Net cash flow/(used) from financing activities (9] 652.63 48.96
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  ( A+B+C) -165.92 -6.83
Cash and Cash Equival at the beginning of the year 296.39 303.22
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 130.48 296.39
Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year 130.48 296.39

Notes

of Cash Flows

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement

2. Components of Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year:

For the year ended | For the year ended
i e s Marchy;l, 2024 Marchy3‘l, 2023
Balance with Bank 55.01 223.17
Cash in Hand 6.91 8.44
Total Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under current assets 61.92 231.61
Other bank balances* 68.55 64.78
Total Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 130.48 296.39

* Fixed Deposits -Lien to Axis Bank Ltd
As per our report of even date attached

For JMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firp Re tion No. 120459W

s
CA. [itendra Dosl{!
Membership No.151274
Place : Mumbai
Date : 17/05/2024
UDIN: 24151274BKEX]P1284
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>

Chief financial officer

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

NHC Fi imited
A /Shah par Shah
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 07125733

Shanu
Bhandari =
Shanu Bhandari
€S, ICSI M No-A31268
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-1.15122GJ1992PLC076277

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2024

Amount in lakhs except number of shares
A Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number of Amount in INR.
Shares
As at April 1,2023 11,855,000 1185.50
Changes in equity share capital - -
As at March 31,2023 11,855,000 1185.50
Changes in equity share capital - &
As at March 31, 2024 11,855,000 1185.50
B Other Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

A in Lakhs

Reserve & Surplus Other
Comprehensive
Income (OCI)
Particulars Total
Securities Retained R
Premium Earnings of net defined
As at April 01, 2022 174.29 1014.14 -13.05 1175.38
Profit for the year - 175.64 175.64
Other comprehensive income for the year - 12.44 12.44
Tax adjustment of OCI items - -
As at March 31, 2023 174.29 1189.78 -61 1363.46
As at April 01, 2023 174.29 1189.78 -61 1363.46
Profit for the year 234.74 234.74
Other comprehensive income for the year -6.65 -6.65
Tax adjustmnet of OCl items - -
As at March 31, 2024 174.29 1424.52 -7.26 1591.54
As per our report of even date attached
For JMMK & Co. For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
(earlier known as JMK & Co.) NHC Foods Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 120459W
s
’
4 - A Shah Apar Shah
A. Jitendra Doshi Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
artner DIN: 0057g184 DIN : 07125733

"/ Membership No.151274

Place : Mumbai Shanu y

Date : 17/05/2024 Bhandari

UDIN: 24151274BKEX]P1284 Archit Wahale Shanu Bhandari
Chief financial officer CS.ICSIM No-A31268
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NHC Foods Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)
1 Corporate Information

NHC Foods Limited (NHC) (“the Company”) (CIN : L15122GJ1992PLC076277) is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.
The Company is engaged in the busi of Whole & Ground Spices, Lentils, Pulses, Grains, Oil Seeds and various other Agri - products
and Assorted Food Products. Currently NHC Foods Limited is Exporting the above ioned C dities to more than 60 Countries
World-wide,
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on May 17, 2027,

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1  Basis of preparation of financial statements

(@)  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain
Accounting policies have been c ly applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy as mentioned in note (b) below.

(b)  Application of New Accounting pronouncements
Pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and the C P (Indian A ing
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, Ind AS 116 - “Leases” (IndAS 116) supersedes Ind AS 17 - “Leases”. The Companyhas
adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach with effect from 1st April, 2019,

2.2 Useof Esti and Judg t
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. The application of ing policies that require critical accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note 2.4. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period

2.3 Summary of significant Accounting Policies

(a) Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and pr currency

Items included in the fi ial of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is entity’s functional
and presentation currency.

(if) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sett] t of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other
gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss,
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(b)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying

amount of the plant and F as a rep if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future
benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including
day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equip which take sub al period of time to get ready
for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, plant and equipment are disclosed as “Capital advances” under Other Non Current
Assets and the cost of assets not ready to be putto use as at the balance sheet date are disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress'.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future

ic b are exp d from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the
Property, plantand equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure
(including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental
thereto is charged to the statement of profitand loss.

() Depreciati hods, esti d useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis using the useful lives esti d by the g which are equal to those prescribed
under Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013,

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

(d) Intangible assets
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gains or
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortisation methods and periods

Intangible assets comprising of goodwill is amortized on a straight line basis over the useful life of twenty years which is
estimated by the management.

(¢) Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,
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() Leases

(i) Asalessee

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements,if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, and the C pany has suk lly all of the ec benefits from use of the asset and has
right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to the lease contract existing on April 1,
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted. The standard permits a choice on initial adoption, on a lease-by-lease basis, to measure the right-of-use (ROU)
asset at either its carrying amount as if Ind AS 116 had been pplied since the ¢ ement of the lease, or an amount equal to the
lease liability adjusted for accruals or prepay The Company has elected to measure the right-of-use asset equal to the lease
liability, with the result of no net impact on retained earnings and no restatement of prior period comparatives.

The company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use asset is initially
measured at costs which comprise the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made before the commencement
date. The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method of the balance lease term. In addition, the right of
use asset is periodically reduced by impairment loss, if any and adjusted for certain Remeasurements of lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. G lly, the Company uses its incr | borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the amounts expected to be payable over the period of lease.
The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method, It is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from change in the index or rate

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments (including interest) have been
classified as financing cash flows

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-to-use assets and lease liabilities for short term lease that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognize the lease payments associated with these leases as an expenses on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii) Asalessor
When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As
part of this the Company considers certain ind s such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of

the asset The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

The accounting policies applicable to the Company as a lessor in the comparative period were not different from Ind AS 116
(g) Inventories
Raw materials, Stores and spares and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value,

However, these items are considered to be realizable at cost if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold
at or above cost.

Work-in-progress, finished goods and stock-in-trade are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Finished goods and Work-in-
progress include costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of
inventories is calculated on FIFO basis.

(h)  Revenuerecognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.
Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “R from C ts with Ci s” using the cumulative catch-up
transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018, In accordance with the cumulative catch-up
transition method , the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant
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The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the
buyer,

Revenue from services are recognised as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned parties.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services ferred to the . If the Company performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an t of consideration that is ditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers, The asset is measured

at the former carrying of the i y, less any exp d costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the
value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products, This is disclosed along with i ies.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the and is measured
at the the C y ulti ly expects it will have to return to the ¢ The Comp pd its estimates of refund

liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of pay and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

The Company collects taxes such as sales tax/value added tax, service tax, ete on behalf of the Government and, therefore, these are not
economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from the aforesaid revenue/ income.

Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the effective
interest rate method.

Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend.

Commission income is recognised as and when the terms of the contract are fulfilled.
Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are d at the d to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Manag periodically eval positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the

deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(iii) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT payable for a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available in the
statement of profit and loss as deferred tax with a corresponding asset only to the extent that there is probable certainty that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.
The said asset is shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and
writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have the probable certainty that it will pay normal tax during the specified
period.

(i) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Comp becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments, which give rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity of another entity.

Initial Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

isition or issue of fi ial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are r di diately in S of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subseq M Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI®) or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL”) on the basis of following:

- the entity’s busi model for ging the financial assets and
- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

(i) Amortised Cost

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Fair Value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

(iii) Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through OCI.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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Classification and Sub M Fi cial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.
(i) Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as
FVTPL. Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition,

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. The Company
recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified
approach permitted by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Comp lcul the exp d credit losses on trade
receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a fi ial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an iated liability for it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and acc lated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that
financial asset.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Afi ial liability is d gnized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying isr ized in the of profit or loss.

Equity investment in subsidiaries,

The company has remitted Indian Rupees Rs.576.68/- Lakhs, equivalent to USD 6.91 Lakhs, for the purpose of acquiring 2540 shares out
of 2640 in M/s Intra Metal Trading L.L.C, located within the free trade zone of the United Arab Emirates and same has been disclosed in
to financials “Non Trade investments®, as of the aforementioned date, both the issuance, registration, and allotment of shares for M/s
Intra Metal Trading L.L.C are still in process. The acquisition itself has not yet been completed even on the date of the signing the
ﬂnandals. Due to the ongoing nature of this transaction, the management has taken the decision to refrain from preparing the
ial stat ts for the period ended March 31, 2024. This decision is based on the uncertainty surrounding the

pletion timeline of the acquisition and blish control over the entity

Offsetting of financial instr

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

(k) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instr ts issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received.
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(1) Convertible financial instrument

Convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On issuance of the
convertible instruments, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished
on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option
meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible instrument based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity comp when the instr are initially recognised

(m) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligati

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iif) Post-emp t obligati

Y

" 1 3

The company operates the foll g post-employ

(a) defined benefit plans viz. gratuity,
(b) defined contribution plans viz. provident fund.

Gratuity obligations
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated lly

by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period
in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in
equity and in the balance sheet.

q

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan or curtail are r

immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The company has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans
and the contributions are ised as employee benefit exp when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employ is termi d by the ¢ before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts vol dund: in exch for these benefits.

ryr
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(n) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable
thatan outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Sta of Profit and Loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

(o) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that ily take a sut ial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred,

(p) Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating is a comp of the Comp that engages in busi activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions for which
discrete financial information is available, Based on the g approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision

maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by
geographic segments.
(q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the company

1

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adj d for bonus ts in equity shares

issued during the year

Dilluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

(r) Current/non current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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(s) Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with banks having original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

(t) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

(u) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(v) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee as per the requirement of
Schedule I11, unless otherwise stated.

(w) Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the
impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or
nature are only disclosed.

2.4 Key Significant ing jud {i] and ptions
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the

nt of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures

relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
periods presented,
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected,
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of non current assets, useful lives of
property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value measurement. etc are
as under:

(1) Impairmentofnon - financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incr tal costs for disposing
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and
do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the
asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as
the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to disclosure of
fair value of investment property recorded by the Company.
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NHC FOODS LTD

NHC Foods Limited
Notes to the Financial Stat for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

(i)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future
events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsol arising from changes or impr in
production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset.
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future period

(iii) Income Taxes
The company tax jurisdiction is india. Significant judg are involved In esti g budgeted profit for the purpose of paying
advance tax,determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

(iv)  Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been
explained under Note (i) above.

(v) Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation invol king various p that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly itive to changes in these ptions. All ptions are reviewed at each
reporting date,

(vi) Provisions
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting
from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of
the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash
outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted
to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

(vii)  Fair value measurement
Manag; uses val techniq to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available) and non-financial assets, This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would
price the instrument. Manag bases its ptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that
case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an
arm'’s length transaction at the reporting date.

2.5 Recent ting pr

On 24th march 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, ded schedule 111 Of companies act 2013, The
amendments revise Division LILIII of schedule 111 and are applicable from 1st april 2021. Key di relating to division Il which
relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with ies (Indian A g Standards) Rules 2015 are:
Balance Sheet:

» lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 'financial liabilities', duly distinguished as current or non current.

¢ Certain additional discl es in the of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
andr d bal at the beginning of the current reporting period.

* Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters,

* Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work in progress and intangible assest under
development

* If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then
disclosure of details of where it has been used.

* Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance
with ber of layers of comp , title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loan and advances to promoters,
directors, key managerial personnel(KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of Profit and Loss:

* Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Resposibility (CSR), undisclosed income and Crypto or virtual currency specified
under the head ' additional information’ in the notes forming part of the financial statements,
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NHC FOODS LTD

NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122G]1992PLC076277
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2024

Property Plant & Equipment (Amount in Lakhs
Gross Block Depreciation Net block
Asat As at As at As at Forthe |[For the For the As at As at As at
PRy R year period year
AE Mo | Dasex Tptdar April1,  |Additk April 1, March  |April1, [ended |ended  |ended  |Deletion |March |March |March
2022 o 2023 " [ |312024 [2022 |March ['APRIL  |March 31,2024 (31,2024 31,2023
31,2023 [2023 31,2024
Note
No-3: |Langible assets
1 [Freehold land* 2119 2119 2119 . s - . . . 2119 2119
2 |Factory Building® 59572 595.72 59572| 14040|  2356|  1639s| 2362 - 187.58| 40815 43177
3 |office Premises® 286.32 28632 28632 3011 503 3515 505 - 4019 24612 25117
4 |Leasehold Inprovement 168.56] 16856 16856| 6246| 1599 7845 1604 - 9449 7407 90.11
5 |Machinery 130,70 130.70 1029 12041 7246 1259 850s| 1200 595 onio] 2932 45.66
6 |Furniture & Fixtures 27.85 2785 2785 2401 13| 2536 o] - 2542 243 250
7 |Vehicles 63.65 40.04) 2361 2730 5091 4635 3.58) 4993 815 3804] 2004 3087 1172
8  |office Equipment 2109 225 2334 12 2346| 1507 203 17.10 71 HE. 1845 501 624
9 [Computer 967 191 1ss| 92 125 552 173 7.25 192 - 9.16 334 433
10 _|[Electrical Fittings 37.63 37.63 37.63] 3523 3525 3 . 3525 238 238
Total (A 136235 4.16] 40.04] 132651 26.34] 10.29] 1344.56] 431.62 49748  68.18] 43.98] 521.68] _ 822.88] 867.06
Previous year 135441]  7.97] - 1362.39] 4.16] 40.04] 1326.51] 364.68]  66.93]  431.62] _ 65.87] 38.04] 459.45] 867.06] 93077
| { [ 1 | [ | |
ote
No- 4
Sr No. |Intangible assets | |
Goodwill of
1 |Amalgamation 503.30 . s 503.30, so330| 23271)  3867] 27138 3a7s| - | 31016] 19315 23192
- 3.00 3.00 3.00 - 32 32 54| 86 2.14 2.68
503.30] __3.00] - 506.30] - 7 50630] 23271 38.99] 271.70]  3932] . | 31L02] 195.28] 23461
503.30] - = 503.30] _3.00] - 50630 194.04] 38.67] 232.71] 38.99] - | 271.70] 234.61] 27059
1 |Right to Use of Assets-] 12108 - 12108 17108] __4036] 1574 S610]  1574] 1374] 5810 6297 7872
2 [Rightto Use of Assets-II 5 s - - [ zi120] - 211.20 - - - 2M32] — ~ 2112] 150,08 %
Total (3a 121.08] - . 121.08]211.20] - 332.27] _40.36] __15.74 56.10] _ 3686] 1394 7022] 253.05] 7873
_‘_Prcvlau;lxnr 1zt08] - 12108 - | 121.08] _ 15.70]  11.21 2691]  1345] -
[Total 198677 7.16] 40.04] 1953.89]239.54] 10.29] 2183.14| 704.68] 120.60]  825.28] 14436

|Previous year 1978.80 7.97) - 1986.77| 7.16] 40.04] 1953.89 sgﬂ.z 119.06 704.68 120.60

1) * Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security against borrowings by the group,if any
Refer to Note: 16 & 43 Assets Hypothecated as security

II) Thrre are no contractual obligations for the year
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NHC FOODS LTD

NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

Note 10:

Note 11:

Note 12:

Note 13:
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Other Non-Current Assets

March 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Asat As at
Non C t- Fi ial -Investm
on Current- Financial Assets-Inv ents March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A) Non - Trade Investments
Investments for shares of subsidiary company* 57731 -
B) Unquoted
National Saving Certificates .60 .60
Total 577.91 .60
*Overseas direct i1 for the shares of the foreign however of shares not comp
As at As at
Non Current -Other Financial Assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Export incentives receivable 94.11 36.98
Total 94.11 36.98]
As at As at

March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Trade Receivables

Security Deposits 33.40 14.76
Loans to Employees * - .60|
Other Loans & Advances - 16.00
Total 33.40 31.36
Asat As at
e March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Packing material - 25,28
Stock in Trade 4287.99 2860.31
Total 4287.99 2885.59
As at As at

March 31,2024

March 31, 2023

Cash and Cash equivalents

Unsecured & Considered Good* 2769.42 1981.69
2769.42 1981.69
Total 2769.42 1981.69|
*Netted of extent to the bills discounted/factoring
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at Asat

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Cash, Cash Equivalents, Balance with banks

In current accounts 55.01 223.17
Cash in hand 6.91 8.44
Total 61,92 231.61
Asat As at
I RNl March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Other bank balances
Fixed Deposits* 68.55 64,78
Total 68.55 64.78|
* Lien to Axis Bank Ltd
Asat As at
CRRRVRNEON Ay March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Export incentives receivable 107.07 248.83
Total 107.07 248.83
Asat Asat
N Col ec s March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advances to Suppliers 16.08 76.61
Other Loans and Advances* 20.03 11.59
Balances with Govt. Authorities** 408.71 175.65
Prepaid Expenses 20.63 24.37
Total 465.45 288.21

“provision of taxes netted of extent to advance tax, tax deducted & collected at source. ** GST credit ledger and availed input tax credit
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2024

(A in Lakhs Except Shares)
Note Asat As at
14: Equity Share Capital 1,2024 1,2023
No. of Shares| Amountin | No. of Shares| A in
Authorised
2,40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 24000000 2400.00 24000000 2400.00
24000000 2400.00 24000000 2400.00
Issued ,Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
11,855,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 11855000 1185.50 11855000 1185.50
11855000]  1185.50| moo 85.50]

(

o
-

Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the

beginning and at the end of the year:

: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars No. of Share | Amountin No. of Share | Amountin
Equity Share Capital
At the beginning of the year 11855000 1185.50 11855000 1185.50
At the end of the year — 11855000 11§5~55i 11855000

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10/-
is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) The Company does not have a holding company.

(d) Details of Share holders holding more that 5% shares in the company:

per share. Each holder of equity shares
the holders of equity shares will be entitled
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

Draft Letter of Offer

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
No. of Share | % of Holding | No. of Share | % of Holding
Equity Shares
Alpa Apoorva Shah 864182 7.29% 1,033,682 8.72%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 3919368 33.06% 3,919,368 33.06%
Total 4783550 40.35% 4,953,050 42%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Shares held by Shareholders | % Change
Sharsholis sisme As at March 31, 2024 During the
No. of Share | 9% of Holdin Period
Equity Shares
Alpa Apoorva Shah 864182 7.29% 1.43%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 3919368 33.06% 0.00%
Apoorva H Shah HUF 8155 0.07% 0.00%
Apar Apoorva Shah 27650 0.23% 0.00%
Aneri Apoorva Shah 19300 0.16% 0.00%
4838655 40.81% 1.43%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Shares held by Shareholders | % Change
As At 31st March 2023 During the
Shareholder name No. of Share | % of Holdin Year
Equity Shares
Alpa Apoorva Shah 1033682 8.72% 0.00%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 3919368 33.06% 0.00%
Apoorva H Shah Huf 8155 0.07% 0.07%
Apar Apoorva Shah 27650 0.23% 0.00%
Aneri Apoorva Shah 19300 0.16% 0.00%
5008155 42.24% 0.07%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31,2022 is as follows:
Shares held by Shareholders | % Change
Shareholder nathe As At 31st March 2022 During the
No. of Share | % of Holding Year
Equity Shares
Alpa Apoorva Shah 1033682 8.72% 0.00%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 3919368 33.06% 0.00%
Apar Apoorva Shah 27650 0.23% 0.00%
Aneri Apoorva Shah 19300 0.16% 0.00%
5000000 42.17% 0.00%
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note 15:

Note 16:

(a) * Details Of Security for current and non current borrowings

(Amount in Lakhs)
Asat As at
0
Shox Equity March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Securities Premium 174.29 174.29
174.29 174.29
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 1190.28 1014.64
Add: Profit for the year 234.74 175.64
Other Comprehensive Income 1425.02 1190.28
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans
Opening Balance -1.11 -13.55
Add:Profit/(Loss) for the year -6.65 12.44/
-7.76 -1,11
Total 1591.54 1363.46
Asat Asat
PN BaTvowags March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Secured*
Loan from Banks 370.00 326.02
Less: Current Maturity of Loan - 103.85
Total 370.00 222,17
Unsecured*
From Others :
Loan From Related parties - 391.51
Less: Current Maturity of Non Current Borrowing = 64.51
- 327.00
Loan From Others (Long Terms Maturities) - 117.81
Less: Current Maturity of Non Current Borrowing - 82.36
* 35.45
Total 370.00 584.62
Lease Liabilities 259.23 111.48
Total 259.23 111.48|
*refer note 20

(i) Secured loan from Axis Bank Ltd
A. Hypnotisation of inventory and receivables (Current assets) of the company.

B. Land, building at Survey no.777, Umarsadi, Taluka Pardji, Dist.Valsad, Gujrat 396175

C. Office 2/13, Swagatham CHS Ltd. NHC House, Anand Nagar, Santacruz East, Mumbai-400055

D. Fixed Deposits -Lien to Axis Bank Ltd
E. Personal Guarantee of

1. Apoorva Shah

2. Alpa Shah

3. Apar Shah

(ii) Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd -Secured car loan.

(iii) Unsecured loans from others carrying rate of interest prevailing at the time of borrowing the loan

and subject to approval board of directors

(iv) For Repayment Refer Note No. 41 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
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NHC Foods Limited
CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note 17:

Note 18:

Note 19:

Note 20:

Note 21:

Note 22:

Note 23:
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Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

March 31, 2024

(A in Lakhs)
Asat As at
Long Term Provisions March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Gratuity 18.72 22.02
Total 18.72 22.02
As at As at

March 31, 2023

Short-Term Borrowings

March 31, 2024

Deferred Tax Liability
On Fixed Assets 221.44] 210,32
221.44 21032
Deferred Tax Asset
Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961 87.16 82.58
87.16 82.58
Deferred Tax Liability/Assets (Net) 134.28 127.74|
Reconciliation : Refer Note No. 43
Other Non-Current Liabilities Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Other Labilities-Deposits 6.03 7.10
Total 6.03 7.10|
Asat As at

March 31, 2023

a) Loans

Secured*

Working Capital Borrowings from Banks 2890.90 1841.68
Unsecured

Loans from others* 35.55 8236
Loan From Related parties # 58.74 64.51
Total 2985.19 1988.56
b) Lease Liabilities 49.76 14.01
Total 49.76 14.01

*From NBFC and others, # refer note 36 related party transactions

Trade Payables

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31,2023

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises 223.83 61.88
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 2684.74 1123.41
Total 2908.57 1185.29

Asat As at
ShorsTerm Prayisions March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Provision for Gratuity 7.16 .66
Provision for Other Expenses - 40
Provision for Tax * 1215 25.74
Provision for Leave Encashment 6.28 2.60]
Bonus Payable 517 3.73
Total 30.75 33.14
“provision of taxes netted of extent to advance tax, Tax deducted & collected at source.

As at As at
OKiex Girremt Listiiiion March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current Maturities of Long Term loans 3.84 103.85
Interest Accrued but not due 54 1.12
Advances From Customers 161.94 194.25,
Other Payables* 31.14 27.92
Total 197.47 327.13

*Includes statutory dues and salary payable
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note 24;

Note 25:

Note 26:

Note 27:
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Cost of Raw Material Consumed

March 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Asat As at
Roriie S Opsran) March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Sales- Ready to Eat & Bulk Agriculture Products 20607.83 16214.67
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentives 316.57 14137
Total 20924.40 16356.04
Asat Asat
Oriees S March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Interest Income
On Deposits & Others 419 3.83
Other Than Interest Income
Non Operating Income 29.89 51.48
Foreign Exchange Gain(Loss) 171.63 -
Total 205.71 55.31
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

Raw Material
As at beginning of the year - 2.36
- 2.36

Packing Material Consumed

Packing Material

As at beginning of the year 25.28 25.57

Add : Purchase - -

Less : As at end of the year - 25.28
25.28 .29)

Total 25.28 2.65

Changes in Inventories Asat As at

March 31, 2023

Inventories as at the end of the year

Stock in Trade 4287.99 2860.31
4287.99 2860.31

Inventories as at the beginning of the year

Work in progress - .86

Finished goods - .17

Stock in Trade 2860.31 2225.14
2860.31 2226.18

Net Decreases(Increase) in Inventories -1427.67 -634.14
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note 28:

Note 29:

Note 30:
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
RmployssHanatis Expenie March31,2024 | March 31,2023
Salaries , Wages and Bonus* 220.18 180.66
Contribution to Recognised funds 11.31 11.02
Staff Welfare Expenses 4.75 5.19
Total 236.24 196.87
Finance Cost Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Interest Expenses 294,01 248,23
Other Borrowing Costs 11.38] 17.65
Interest on Lease liability 25.53 15.07]
Total 330.92 280.95
Other Expenses Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Freight, Clearing, Forwarding Expenses 914.50 1378.75
Travelling Expenses 48.88 26.53
Sales promotion expenses 20.99 18.74
Commission & Brokerage Expenses 58.67 64,16
Electricity Expenses 12.05 8.59
Legal and Professional Fees 56.75 55.40
Bank Charges 83.68 67.92
Foreign Exchange Loss(Gain) - 25.37
Repairs and Maint
Building, Plant and Machinery .93 3.26
Computers & Others 16.76 18.37,
Rates, Taxes, Listing Fees 6.26 21.08
Payments to auditors
Statutory Audit Fees 3.45 3.45
Tax Audit Fees .55 .55
Other services-Statutory Auditor 23 .05
Insurance Expenses 15.34 12.28
Office Expenses 30.53 28.85
Expected Credit Loss(Reversal) -142.34 -48.76
Other Miscellaneous Expenses & Exports Custom Duty 534.99 61.55
Total 1662.22 1746.13
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NHC Foods Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

31. Commitments and contingencies
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for -Nil.

(b) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: (Amount in Lakhs)
F.Y. F.Y.
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
A. Disputed Demands Outstanding:
Income Tax* 28.04 28.04
Excise Duty** - 2.27

*Based on the decisions of the Appellate authority and interpretation of other provision, the company has legally advised that demand is
likely to be either deleted or substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has been made, ** during the year “CUSTOMS, EXCISE &
SERVICE TAX APPELLATE TRIBUNAL' set a side demand order’.

(C) Bill Discounted/Factoring Payables netted off to the receivables.

(Amount in Lakhs)

F.Y.

Particulars 2023-24

F.Y.
2022-23

A. Bills discounted and outstanding 16

.58

06.22

32. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information provided by the vendors and available with
the Company.

(Amount in Lakhs)

ST
No

Particulars

March
31,2024

March
31,2023

TotalGiitibiiiee a £ mi — — S
Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining
unpaid*

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day.

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the period) but without adding interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure

223.83

0.12

61.88

0.53

* Interest due on the outstanding amount considered on accrual basis.
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NHC Foods Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

33. Company operates in a single business segment. However, it operates both in
Indian and international markets. Accordingly, information required under Ind AS

- 108 “Segment Reporting” pertaining to geographical segment is as under,

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group’s performance
and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by

industry classes. :
Secondary Segment Information (Amount in Lakhs)
ﬁgment Revenue- External Turnover FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23
Within India 3581.23 2659.76
Outside India 17342.57 | 13696.28
Total Revenue 20924.40 | 16356.04
Segment Assets*
Within India 6524.22 6157.30
Outside India 3212.83 792.74
Total Assets 9737.05| 6950.04
Segment Liability
Within India 6960.00 4401.09
Outside India - -
Total Liability 6960.00 | 4401.09
Capital Expenditure
Within India 28.34 4.16
Outside India -
Total Expenditure 28.34 4.16

34. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 33 - Earnings Per Share

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, | March 31,
2024 2023
(i) Total Comprehensive Income 234.73 175.64
(ii) Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares (Rs.) 10 10
(iii) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares (No’s) | 1,18,55,000 | 1,18,55,000
(iv) Weighted Average Number of Diluted Share ( No's) 1,18,55,000 | 1,18,55,000
(V) Basic Earnings per Ordinary Shares (Rs.) 1.98 1.48
(VI) Diluted earning per Share (Rs.) 1.98 1.48
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

35.Impact of IND AS 116 'Leases’

a. The movement in lease liabilities during the year:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars ASSETS-I | ASSETS-II

Lease liabilities as on 31.03.2022 106.56 00.00
Finance costs incurred during the year 15.07 00.00
Re-measurement the Financial year 29.06 00.00
Payment of lease liabilities and interest -25.20 00.00
Lease liabilities as on 31.03.2023 125.49 00.00
Lease liabilities Created During the Year 00.00 211.19
Finance costs incurred during the year 13.70 11.81
Re-measurement the Financial year 00.00 00.00
Payment of lease liabilities and interest -27.72 -25.50
Lease liabilities as on 31.03.2024 111.47 197.51

b. The carrying value of the Right of use and depreciation charged during the year:

Particulars ASSETS-1 | ASSETS-II
Right to use asset as on 31.03.2022 80.72 0.00
Deductions during Financial year 0.00 0.00
Depreciation charged during the Financial year -15.74 0.00
Re-measurement the Financial year 13.74 0.00
Right to use asset as on 31.03.2023 78.72 0.00
Right to use assets created during the year 0.00 211.19
Deductions during the financial year 0.00 0.00
Depreciation charged during the year -15.74 21.11
Re-measurement the Financial year 0.00 0.00
Right to use asset as on 31.03.2024 62.98 190.08
C. Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss:

Particulars ASSETS-1I | ASSETS-I
Depreciation on Right of use asset 15.74 21.12
Finance cost incurred during the year 13.71 11.81
Total amounts recognized in the profit & loss 29.45 32.93
account
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NHC Foods Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

36. Related Party Disclosure:
Disclosures as required by the Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosure” is given below:

List of Key Management Personnel and Relatives

Key Management Personnel

Relation/Control

Mr. Apoorva H. Shah

Managing Director

Mr. Apar Apoorva Shah

Whole time Director

Mr. Awdheshkumar Kannaujia

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Akansh Shah

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Archit Wahale Chief Financial Officer
Miss. Shivani Singh Company Secretary
Mrs. Shanu Bhandari Company Secretary

Mrs. Aneri Apoorva Shah

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Mrs. Alpa Apoorva Shah

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

NHC Overseas Private Limited

Company over which key management personnel

are able to exercise significant influence

a) Transaction with related Parties at arm’s length basis

(Amount in Lakhs.)
Sr. Nature of transactions Transaction in financial years and payable
No 5 ! Payable
FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 31/03/2024

1. Loan(unsecured) Received S5

(Key Management Personnel) 267.77 942.66 74
2. Loan(unsecured) Repayment NA

(Key Management Personnel) G0k i St
3. Remuneration/Salary

(Key Management Personnel) 99.25 79.65 8.01
4. Remuneration/Salary

(Relatives of Key Management Personnel) e 280 e
5. Professional Fees

(Relatives of Key Management Personnel) 2RhY 1650 0.00
6. Sale of Fixed Assets

(Key Management Personnel) ahg s i
Ze Interest on Loan

(Key Management Personnel) s 8645 00
8. Royalty

(Company over which key management personnel 0.00 0.31 0.00

are able to exercise significant influence)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

37. Employee Benefit Obligations (as per Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits”):
Post-Employment obligations- Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of five
years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/
termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed

proportionately for 15 days’ salary multiplied by number of years of service.

The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

The amount recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit

obligation over the period are as follows,

A. Change in Present Value of Obligation (Amount in Lakhs)
Gratuity Gratuity
Particulars (Unfunded) | (Unfunded)
2023-24 2022-23
Present Value of the Obligation as at the beginning of the 22.68 35.11
Interest Cost 1.67 2.52
Current Service Cost 2.41 2.25
Benefits Paid = =
Re-measurements Due to Assumptions & other -0.88 -17.21
o 25.88 22.68
Present Value of the Obligation as at the end of the year
B. Amountrecognized in the Balance Sheet (Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
Unfunded Unfunded
2023-24 2022-23
Present Value of the Obligation as at the end of the year 25.88 22.68
Fair value of plan assets - -
Un-funded Liability 25.88 22.68
Unrecognized actuarial gains/ losses - -
Un-funded liability recognized in Balance Sheet 25.88 22,68
C. Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) | (Unfunded)
2023-24 2022-23
Interest Cost 1.67 2.52
Current Service Cost 241 2.25
Past Service Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations -0.88 -12.43
Total expense recognized in the Profit and Loss Account 3.20 7.65
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NHC Foods Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 22.20

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take
account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in the employment markret.

38. Employee Benefit Obligations (as per Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits”):

Defined contribution plans - Provident fund

The company also has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to
provident fund in India for employees at rate of the decided by the board. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the
government. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed
and it has neither contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense
recognized during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 11.31 Lakhs
(March 31, 2023: INR 11.02 Lakhs).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

Changes in Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligation (Amount in Lakhs.)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligation - Due to Demographic Assumptions =
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligation - Due to Financial Assumptions =
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations - Due to Experience (0.88)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations - Total (0.88)

C. The Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations are as follows

Particulars Gratuity Gratuity

2023-24 2022-23
Discount Rate 7.10% 7.38%
Expected Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.00% 5.00%
Expected Rate of return on plan Assets N.A. N.A.

Sensitivity Analysis
Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal Rate are significant actuarial
assumptions. The change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation for a
change of 100 Basis Points from the assumed assumption is given below:

Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions

Gratuity 2023-24 Gratuity 2022-23
. Percent Percentage
Scenario DBO age DBO Change g
Under Base Scenario 25.88 0.0% 22.68 0.0%
Salary Escalation - Up by 1% 27.45 6.1% 24.71 6.1%
Salary Escalation - Down by 1% 24.03 -7.1% 20.94 -6.2%
Withdrawal Rates - Up by 1% 27.85 7.6% 24.45 2.3%
Withdrawal Rates - Down by 1% 23.48 -9.2% 20.55 -2.8%
Discount Rates - Up by 1% 2310 | -10.7% 20.18 -7.9%
Discount Rates - Down by 1% 29.33 13.3% 25.77 9.6%

Expected Cash flow for following years.

(Amountin Lakl

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

Year Gratuity 2023-24 Gratuity 2022-23

Year 1 7.16 .66

Year 2 .63 6.44

Year 3 .65 .60

Year 4 .68 .63

Year 5 ! .65
Year 6 TO 10 3.93 3.59
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

39, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
i. Financial Instruments by Category (Amount in Lakhs)
Carrying Amount Fair Value
Fac: March 31 March 31,
ar A arc
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 2024 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortised cost
Investments 57791 .60 577.91 .60
Trade Receivables 2769.42 2124.03 2769.42 2124.03
Cash and Cash Equivalents 61.92 231,61 61.92 231.61
Other Balances with Bank 68.55 64.78 68.55 64,78
Other Financial Assets 201.18 285.81 201.18 285.81
Total 3678.99 2706.84 3678.99 2706.84
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amortised cost
Borrowings 3355.19 2573.18 3355.19 257318
Lease Liabilities 308.99 125.49 308.99 125.49
Trade Payables 2908.57 1185.29 290857 1185.29
Total 6572.76 3883.96 6572.76 3883.96

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, other balances with bank, trade receivables, trade payables,
and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

ii. Fair Value Measurement
Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes fi ial instr measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3,
iil. Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include;

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

ining fi ial instr is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

- the fair value of the r

iv. Valuation processes

The accouts and finance department of the company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports direcity to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
the audit committte, Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team regulary in line
with the company's reporting requirements.
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40, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company's activity expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of
the company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts are entered to hedge
certain foreign currency risk exposures and interest rate swaps to hedge variable interest rate exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for
hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the
entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements,

(A) Creditrisk
i. Credit risk management
The company and ges credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed on a group basis for each

class of financial instruments with different characteristics,

The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the company compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
tive forwarding-looking information.

PP

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. This definition of
default is determined by idering the busi envir in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.
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4L EINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1- Trade Recelvables
Agelng for trade recelvables-Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Amount In Lakhs

Particular

Outstanding for followin

perlods from due date of payment*

Less than 6
monthg

6 months to 1

year

1402 year

23 Years

More than 3 Total
Years

1) Undisputed Trade recefvahle -
Congidered Good

42,99

II) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Which have significant Increase in credit rigk

143 442742

111} Undisputed Trade Recsivables -Credit Impaired*

IV) Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered good

V) Disputed Trade Receivables= Which have significant Increase In credt risk

VI) Disputed Trade Receivables -Credit impaired

Total Amount

Expected Credit Loss

4425.99

143 42742

Bl doscounted

-1658,00

Net Reported

276942

* During th yeor the company wrote off a long-term receivable amaunting to Ry, 85,98 Lakhs. This receivable was deemed.
off hat boen recogrized as an expense i the income statement under other expenses, The long-term receivable related to o

company's aceounting policy for doubtjul debts,

Agelng for trade recelvables -Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 Is as follows:

uncallectible after extensive efforts to recover the amount proved unsuceessful. Tha write-
contract Agron Holdings Ltd, manogement has taken action was in accordance with the

Amount in Lakhs

Olmtg_lg!Lfor following perids from due date of payment?
Particular u:::u;‘ 6 months to 1 1to2year | 23 Vears Mm; ull;:n 3 Total
1) Undisputed Trade recelvable - Considered Good 241232 13951 143 . 266049
1) Undisputed Trade Receivables ~Which have significant increase in credit risk . . . o |
111) Undisputed Trade Recelvables -Credit Impalred 8596 85,98
IV) Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered good . .
V) Disputed Trade Receivables - Which have sigrificant increase in credit risk
Vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -Credit impalred . - - - .
Total Amount 241232 107.22 139,51 87.41 274647
Expected Credit Loss 142,34
Bill doscounted 622,43
Net Reported . 198169
* Net of bill discounted for the year ended
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iL. pr of creditloss
Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Rs.

Provission of expected credit loss on March 31,2022 191.10
Changes in loss allowance -48.76
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 14234
Reversal of provissoin -142.34
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024

(B) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk implies il cash and securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations
when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying b in funding by under d credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position the und borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the

company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows In major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against
internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans,
(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balance due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

C 1 of financial liabilities Amount in Lakhs
" Less than 1 3monthsto | Between1 | Between3

et = month FLinS mawths 1year and 3 years |and S5 years
March 31,2024

Financial Liabilities 74048 2209.43 35.27 246.48) 123.52]
Total liabilities 74048 2209.43 35.27 246.48 123.52
March 31,2023

Financial Liabilities 920,05 989.65! 12293 89.39| 555.00
Total liabilities 920.05 989.65] 122.93] 89.39° 555.00)
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Contractual maturities of Trade Payables

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows: Amount in Lakhs

223.83
2684.74

Amount in Lakhs

Total

61.88
112341

(C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD, EUR and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future 1 and d assets and liabil d | d In a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable
foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The company’s risk management policy is to hedge around 80% to 90% of forecasted foreign currency sales for the subsequent 1 month. As per the risk management policy, forelgn exchange forward
contracts are taken to hedge around 40% to 50% of the forecasted sales.

The company while dealing with imports which are d In foreign currency which exposes it to foreign currency risk. To minimise the risk of imports, the company may use forward
contract to minimse the risk apetite due to foreign currency,

The company uses a combination of foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure in foreign currency risk. The company designates the spot element of forward contracts and the intrinsic value
of foreign currency forward contracts as the hedging instrument. The changes in the forward element that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) and the changes in time value that relate to the
hedged item (‘aligned time value’) are deferred in the costs of hedging reserve and recognised against the related hedged transaction when it occurs. The forward element and the time value relate to the
respective hedged item if the critical terms of the forward or the option are aligned with hedged item. Any residual time value and forward points (the non-aligned portion) are recognised in the statement of
profitand loss,

The forward Is ed with to relevant spot market exchange rates. The differential between the contracted forward rate and the spot market exchange rate is defined as the forward
points.
The intrinsic value of foreign forward isd d with to the relevant spot market exch rate. The diffe | between the strike rate and the spot market

exchange rate is defined as the intrinsic value. Time value of the option is the difference between fair value of the option and the Intrinsic value.
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(a) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars UsD
March 31,2024

Trade Receivables 5,150,814 429423

Bill Discounting (1,988,728) ~1658.00|

Advance from Customer (157,625)| -131.41]

Loan Packing Credit Foreign Currency (3.418,496) -2850.00
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (414,035
Particulars UsDh Total (Rs)
March 31,2023

Trade Receivables 964,165 792.74]

Bill Discounting (757,034) -622.43

Advance from Customer 175,344 163.72

Loan Packing Credit Foreign Currency (2,239,947) =1841.68)
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (1,857,473) -1507.66
(b) Foreign currency sensitivity
1% Increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:

2023-24 | 2022-23
1% Increase | 1% Decrease | 1% Increase
Net Increase/(decrease) in profit or loss -3.45 .45 ~15.08 15.08]

(i1) Interest rate risk
Interest rate can be either fair value interest risk or cash flow interest risk. Falr value interest rate risk is the risk of change in fair values of fixed interest rate bearing instruments because of interest rate
fluctuation In interest rate, Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of fMoating interest bearing will because of risk.

However, During the year presented in these financial statement, the company had primarily borrowed funds under fixed interest rate arrangments with banks and financlal institution and therefore the
company is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Price risk

(a) Exposure

Commodity price risk - The company is affected by the price volatility of certain d Its '3 require the ongoing purchase and manufacture of spices and therefore require a
supply of d Due to the d Ly of the price of the commodities, the company also entered into various purchase for various for which

there is an active market.

Equity price risk - The company is not exposed to other Equity price risk during the year in these financial.
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42, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpsoe of the pany's capital g t, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's
capital tis to maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% to 40%. The company
includes within debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, other
balances with bank excluding discontinued operations.

Amount in Lakhs
|Parl:lculars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Borrowings 3355.19 2573.18]
Trade payables 290857 1185.29
Other payables 31.14 27.92
Less: cash and cash equivalents -61.92 -231.61
Less: Other Balances with Banks -68.55 -64.78]
NetDebt 6164.43 348999
Equity 2777.04 2548.96
Total Capital 2777.04 2548.96
Capital and net debt 8941.47 6038.95
Gearing ratio 69% 58%
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital g t, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets

financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define capital structure requirements as follows :

- the gearing ratio must be not more than 75% and
- the ratio of net finance cost to EBITDA must be not more than 50%
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43. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are:
Amount in Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024  [March 31, 2023
CURRENT ASSETS
i. Financial Assets
First Charge
Trade Receivables 2769.42 1485.34
Investment - .60
cash and cash equivelant 61.92 79.69
Other Balances with Bank 68.55 223.54
Other Financial Assets 201.18 33547
ii. Non Financial Assets
First Charge
Inventories 4287.99 2885.59
Other Current Assets 465.45 288.21
Total Current Assets Pledge as Security 7854.51 5298.44
NON CURRENT ASSETS
First Charge
Office Premises* 246.12 251.17
Factory Building* 429.34 452.96
Total Non Current Assets Pledge as Security 675.46 704.12

*Its carrying amount of the assets after depreciation
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44. Netdebt Reconciliation

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows requiring disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities.

Amountin Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Current Borrowings 2985.19 1988.56
Non-current Borrowings 370.00 688,46
Lease liabilities 125.49 308.99
Net Debt 3480.68 2986.02
Pursuant to the di ts wheras discl e of information enabling users of financial statements to evaluate changes in

liabilities arising from financing activities however amendments do not define financing activities, instead they clarify that
financing activities are based on the existing definition of Ind AS 7, based on this we have reconciled financing activity wheras
amendments are first applied, entities are not required to present comparative information for earlier periods.

Non-Cash Changes
Particulars March3L, | cochFlows March 31, 2024
2023 Fair Value/ Other
Acquisition
Change
Current Borrowings 1988.56 965.52! 31.11 2985.19
Non-current Borrowings 688.46 -318.46 370.00
Lease liabilities 308.99 -183.51 125.49
Net Debt 2986.02 647.06 -183.51 31.11 3480.68
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45, INCOME TAX
Deferred Tax (Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Deferred tax Liabilities :
Accelerated Depreciation and amortization for tax purposes -221.44 -210.32
-221.44 -210.32
Deferred tax Assets :
Lease Liabilties & Provisions 77.77 3491
Gratuity 6.51 631
Expected Credit Loss - 39.60
Bonus 1.30 1.04
Leave Encashment 1.58 72
87.16 82.58
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) -134.28 -127.74|
Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Balance at the opening of the year -127.74 -94.16
Tax Income/(Expenses) during the period recognised in the statement of
profit or loss =654 a3l
MAT Adjustments recognised in the statement of profit or loss
MAT Adjustments through Balance Sheet
Closinibalance at the end of the year -134._38 -127.74

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liablities relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority

Considering the probability of availability of future taxable profits in the period in which tax losses expire, deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of tax lossses carried forward by the Company

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss (Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars 2023-24 | 2022-23
Current income tax charge 65.98( 60.52
Current tax expense relating to prior years 4.79 -
MAT Adujstment - -
Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 6.54 33.58
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 77.31 94.11]
Significant estimates

In calculating the tax expense for the current period, the company has treated certain expenditures as being deductible
for tax purposes. However, the tax legislation in relation to these expenditures is not clear and the company has
applied for a private ruling to confirm their interpretation.

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Profit before tax from continuing operations 312.05 269.75
Accounting profit before income tax 312.05 269.75
Enacted tax rate in India 25.168% 27.820%
Income tax on accounting profits 78.54 75.04
Effect of
Other non taxable income 35.82 59.26
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: -48.38 -73.78
Tax at effective income tax rate 60.52
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46: Additional Disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule 111

1) RATIOS
" s Explanation for
S.R No. [Ratio Numerator Denominator F.Y.2023- [F.Y. 2022- |Variance variance 25% &
24 23 (%)

More(+/-)
1|Current Assets Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.27| 1.62. -21.84%|Not Applicable
2|Debt Equity Total Debts Shareholder's equity 1.98 171 15.69%|Not Applicable
3|Debt Service CoveragE [Earning available |Debt Service 238 239 -0.42%|Not Applicable

for debt service
4|Return on Equity (ROE) |Net profit after Tax |Average 8.45% 6.89% 22.67%|Not Applicable
shareholders equity
5|Trade Receivable Revenue Average Trade 881 9.44 -6.65%|Not Applicable
Turnover Receivable
6|Trade Payable Turnover |Purchase of Goods [Average Trade 9.01 11.67 -22.81%|Not Applicable
L& Services Payables
7|Net Capital Turnover Revenue Working Capital 12.77 7.48 70.67%|Revenuc/Sales
increasesd vis a
vis working
capital
8|Net Profit Net profit Revenue 112 1.07 4.47%]|Not Applicable
9[Return on Capital Earning before Capital Employed 18.03%| 16.19% 11.40%|Not Applicable

Employed (ROCE) Interest & Tax

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

46: Additional Disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule 111

2 The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benami property.

3 The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck of

4 The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful
defaulter at any time during the financial year or after

5 The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

6 The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall;
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

7 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

8 The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

9 The provisions regarding CSR Expenses under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company,

10 The company has remitted Indian Rupees Rs.576.68/- Lakhs, equivalent to USD 6.91 Lakhs, for the purpose of acquiring
2540 shares out of 2640 in M/s Intra Metal Trading L.L.C, located within the free trade zone of the United Arab Emirates
and same has been disclosed in to financials “Non Trade investments”. as of the aforementioned date, both the issuance,
registration, and allotment of shares for M/s Intra Metal Trading L.L.C are still in process. The acquisition itself has not yet
been completed even on the date of the signing the financials. Due to the ongoing nature of this transaction, the
management has taken the decision to refrain from preparing the consolidated financial statements for the period ended
March 31, 2024. This decision is based on the uncertainty surrounding the completion timeline of the acquisition and
establish control over the entity

11 Compliance with regards to the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Companies (Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the Company
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CIN-L15122GJ1992PLC076277
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

47. Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified to confirm with the current years' presentation
wherever considered necessary.

For JMMK & Co. For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Earlier known as JMK & Co.) NHC Foods Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 120459W

P

Apoorva Shah Apar Shah
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN : 00573184 DIN:07125733
Shanu
’d Bhandari =

UDIN: 24151274BKEX|P1284 Archit Wahale Shanu Bhandari
Chief financial officer Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To,

»

The Members
NHC Foods Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NHC FOODS LIMITED (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the statement of Profit and Less (Including Cther Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Ind AS
financial Statements”).

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under sechion 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Compamy as at 31st March 2023, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and ite cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA%s) specified
under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statemenits section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAF) together with the
ethical requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of moat significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the cument pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statement as a whole, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

5. Mo, | Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

1. Trade receivables and other financial assets | Principal Audit Procedures:
and Impainmment
The Company has significant trade receivables | In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the
and other financial asssts at year end. Given the | following key audit procedures:

size of the balances and the risk thal some of the |« Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
trade receivables and other financial assstemay | design, implementation and operating effectiveness

not be recoverable, judgement is reguired to of the Company's key internal controls over the
evaluate whether any allowance should be made process of estimating the loss allowance for trade
to reflect the risk. receivables and other financial assets including

The Company recognizes loss allowance for adherence to the requirements of the relevant
trade receivables and other financial assets gt |  Aaccounting standards.

the expected credit loss ECL'). - Assgﬁ_sir_'lg the Company's methndnlugy far
Assesament of the recoverability of trade Eroms:l;nlng towards trade receivables and other
receivables and other financial assets is nancial assets.

inherently subjective and requires significant | * Understanding the key inputs used in the provisioning
management judgment (which includes model by the Company such as repayment history,
repayment history and financial position of entities | Overdue balances, market conditions.

from whom these balances are recoverable, [« As g part of substantive audit procedures, we tested
terms of underying amangements, overdus on sample basis the ageing of trade receivable having
balances, market conditions etc.) different overdue period and checked the computation

(53]
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of ECL is appropriate and in line with the Company's
policy.

In case of overdue debis inguired with management
for any dispute which may require additional provisions.
Aszessing the disclosures made againsat the relevant
accounting standards.

Accuracy and completeness of disclosure of
related party transaction and compliance with
the provision of companies act 2013 and SEEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended
{*SEEBI (LODR) 20157

Principle Audit Procedures:

We identified the accuracy and completeness of

disclosure of related party transactions as sst out

in respective notes to the Ind AS financial

statements as a key audit matter due to:

* The significance of transactions with related
parties during the year ended March 21, 2023

* Related party transactions are sulject to the
compliance requirement under the
Companies act 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 2015.

Owur audit procedure in relation to the disclosure of related
party trangactions included the following:

-

We chitained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested operating effectivensss of the controls
related to capturing of related party transactions and
mianagement’s process of ensuring all ransactions and
balances with related parties have besn disclosed in
the Ind AS Financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of the Companies
policies and procedurss in respect of evaluating armes-
length pricing and approval process by the audit
committee and the board of directors.

We agreed the amounts disclosed with underlying
documentation and read relevant agreements,
evaluation of ams-length by management, on a
sample basis, as part of our evaluation of the
disclozure.

We assessad management evaluation of compliancs
with the provision of section 177 and section 188 of
Companies act 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 2015.

We evaluated the dizclosures through reading of
statutory information books and records and other
documents obtained during the course of our audit.

Claims and exposures relating to taxation and
litigation

The company has disclosed in Note 31(b) Para
B of the Ind AS financial statements contingent
liabilities of Rs. 30.31 lakhs. In respect of disputed
claims f levies under various tax and legal matters
Taxation and litigation sxposurss have been
identified as a key audit matter dus to:

* Significance of these amounts and large
number of disputed matters with various
authorities.

+ Significant judgement and assumptions
required by management in assessing the
exposure of each case to evaluate whether
there is a need to set up a provision and
measurement of exposures as well as the
disclosure of contingent liakiliies.

Principle Audit Procedures:
Our audit procedures included the following:

-

We obtained understanding, evaluated the design, and
tested the operating effectivensss of the controls
related to the identification, recognition and
measurement of provisions for disputes, potential
claims and litigation, and contingent liabilites.

We obtained details of legal and tax disputed matters
and evaluation made by the management and
assessad management’s position through discussions
on both the probability of success in significant cases,
and the magnitude of any potential loss.

We read extemal legal opinions (where considered
necessary) and other evidence to corroborate
management’s assessment of risk profile in respect of
legal daims.
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We focus on this matter because of the [+ We assessed the relevant disclosures made in the
potential financial impact on the Ind &5 Ind AS financial statements for compliance In

financial statements. Additionally, the ceordan ith the irements of Ind AS 37
treatment of taxation and litigation cases = = A orin i

require significant judgement due to the
complexity of the cases, timescales for
resolution and involvement of various
authorities.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Govemance Report and
Shareholder Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

The Board's Report, Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Govemance Report and Shareholder Informiation is
expected to be made available to us afier the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial
Satements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Board's Report, Report on Corporate govemances and Business Responsibility report, if we conclude
that there is a materal misstatement thersin, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
govemance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements:

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financdial position, financial
perfiormance, including other comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other imegularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting polices; making judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
altemative but to do so.

The Beoard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporiing process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Shs will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arize from fraud or emor and are
considersd material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decizions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentifying and assess the rnsks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
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from fraud is higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
migrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtaining an understanding of intemal financial control relevant to the audit in order design awdit procedurss that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 14303)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
redated disclosures made by the management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obiained up to the date of cur auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue a5 a going conoamL.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incuding the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underying fransactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality iz the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable usar of the financial statements may be influsncad.

We consider guantitative materality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating

the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including amy significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify
during our audit.

We alzo provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with govemance, we detemmine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the cument period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Govermment of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A% a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicabls.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Acdt, based on our audit we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpeses of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of thoes books;

¢. The Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agresment with the
relevant books of account,

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. (On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2023 taken on
records by the Board Directors, none of the disqualified as on 31st March 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these Standalons Financial Statements and the operating effectivensess of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure B, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on adequacy and
operative effectiveness of the Company's intarmnal financial controls over financial reporting;;

g. With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of saction 197(16) of the Act, as amended, ©

In our opinion and to the best of curinformation and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
157 read with Schedule V' of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other detailz under
Section 197(16) which are required o be commenied upon by us.

h. With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinicn and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigaticns on its financial position inits standalone financial
statements as refemad to MNote 31(b) to Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivative contracts; as such the quesiion of
commenting on amy material foreseeable lozses thereon does not arise.

jii. There were no amounts, which, were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. [(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as dizclosed in
Motes to the standalone financdial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from bomowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to orin any other person or entity, including foreign entiies (CIntermedianies™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirecthy
lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Comipany (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantes, security or the: like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Motes the Standalone financial statement, no funds have been received by the Company from amy
persons or entities, including foreign entiies ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatzoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of
the Utimate Beneficiaries; and

(c] Basad on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our natice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The dividend has neither declared nor paid during the year by the Company.

vi. The Provizo to Rule 2(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable w.e.f. April 1,
2023 to the Comgpany and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable for the financial year endad March 31, 2023

For JMME & Co.

(Earier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firmn Registration Mo, 120459W

CA Hitesh Solanki

Fartner

Membership Mo: 136487

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19-05-2023

UDIM : 23136487BGYERGSS28
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Annexure A to the Independent Avditor's Report

{Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

of our report to the Members of NHC Foods Limited of even date)

(i) (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pariculars, including guantitative details
and situation of Property, plant and eguipment.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parficulars of Intangible assets.

(k) Al Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the yvear but
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of itz assets. No material discrepancies were noficed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management of the Company and based on
our examination of the books and records of the Comipany, We report thiat all immovable properties disclosed
in Ind &5 Financialzs SAatements are held in the name of the Company as NHC Foods Limited or in name of
NHC Industries Private Limited (Mame before Amalgamation).

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use
assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1985 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@) Theimnventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency
of such verification iz reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate.
Mo discrepancies were noticed on verification betwesen the physical stocks and the book records that were
10% or more in the aggregate for each dass of inventory.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupess, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of cument assets. Below details of the cument assets as per
quarterty statements filed by the company with such bank Vis-a-\is books of accounts on the respective
quarter ending. We have been explained that varance if any between theses figure due to timing differences
of tfransaction occuming between the two dates, data entry recording errors which occurs occasionally.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Current AssetsiQuarter Ending Amount As Per Amount as reported in
Books of Accounts Guarterly Statements

Inventories

30/D6r2022 324317 il

30/02022 322439 204980

IMMx2022 3464 64 3384 22

IMDW2023 288559 288558

Trade Receivables

30/D6r2022 2552.08 3037.05

30/ 2022 2508 .41 5775

IMMz2022 244132 T30 77

302023 2746 47 60412

(i} (a) Dwring the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, provided guarantee
or provided securnity to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b} Dwring the year the company has not made any investment and has not provided any guarantees, security
and not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firns, Limited Liakility Parnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause Jijb) of the order is not applicable to
company

{c} The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liakility Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on dauses i), 3dii)(d),
Hiiiye) and 3i)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(v} Acconding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the reconds,
the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to koans given and investments made.

(vl The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order iz not applicakile.

(vi} WWe have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company  pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government of India for the maintenance of cost records prescribed under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of manufacturing activities of the Company and are of the opinicn that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have however, not made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (&) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authornties undisputed statutory dues including goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, senvice tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and basad on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of thess statutony dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} Details of statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Sr. | Mature of the Mature of dues Forum where Period fo Dizputed | Amount paid
Mo. | Statue dizpute is pending which the armount as Appeal
amount (R=.in Fees
Relates Lakhs) |(Rs. in Lakhs)
1. | Cenfral Excise Excise Duty Custom, Excise Y. 1992-1985 227 -
Act 1962 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
2. | The Income Tax | Income Tax ITAT AN 2012-2013 28.04 561
1961

{viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not sumenderad or disclosad any transactions, previously unrecorded as income
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) {(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other bomowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to uz and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Comipany, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or finandal institution or
govemmeant or govemment authority.

(g} Tem loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

{d} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on shor-term basis
have been usad for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to mest the obligations of its subsidiares or joint ventures.
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{f) According fo the informiation and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in itz subsidiaries as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raized any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order iz not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertilzle debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x){l) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the courss of
the audit

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-secton (12) of Seclion 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 has besen filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govemment.

{c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanatons given to us, the Company is not a Midhi Comipany. Accordingly,
clauss 3xii) of the Order is not applicable.

[ XiijIn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of
the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards.

(¥iv)(a) Basedoninformation and explanations provided to us and our audit proceduras, inour opinion, the Company
has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(k) We have considered the intemal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the percd under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Compary.

(xvij(a) The provisions of section 45-1& of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Comipany. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicalde to the
Conmpany.

(b} The Company has not conductad any Mon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtained

a valid Cerlificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(g} The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clauss 3{xvijic) of the Order iz not applicable to the Company.

{d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group; hence, the requirement to report on Clause
2{xwi) {d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

[xvii) The Company has not incumred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(x0viil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clavse 3(xviii) of the Order
iz not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 46 (1) to the finandial statements, ageing and expected dates
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accomipanying the financial
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atatements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumpticns, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liahilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will gst
dizcharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) According to the informiation and explanations given to us, there is no liability for the company under provisions
of gection 135 of the companies Act, relating to corporate social responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xx) of the order are not applicable to the company.

For JMMK & Co.

(Eadier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Mo. 120459W

CA Hitesh Solanki

Partner

Membership Mo: 136487

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19-05-2023

UDIN - 23136487BGYERGS528
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of NHC FOODS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (f) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of HHC FOODS LIMITED (the “Compamny™) as
of 31* March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Comipany for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the
internal controed over financial reporting criteria established by the Company congidering the essential components of
imtermnal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issuwed by
the Institte of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Mote™). These responsibiliies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensauring
the orderdy and efficient conduct of ite business, including adhersnce to the respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and emors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit in accordance with the Guidance MNote and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 1430100
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote reguine
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the auwdit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abxout the adequacy of the intemal financial controks
system over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS Financial Statement and their operating effectivensss. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS Financial Statement, assessing the rsk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor.

We belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial confrols system over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statement.

Meaning of Intermal Fimancial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s intermal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonalble assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extenal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over fimancial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

(1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dizpositions of the assets of the company,;

(2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are reconded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and sxpenditures of
the comparny are being made only in accordance with authorsations of the management and directors of the
company; and
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(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
dizposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
Financial Statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management ovemide of contrels, material
misatatements due to emor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condiions, or that the degres of compliance with
the policies or procedures may detenorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial reporing and such intemal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based on the intemal financial
control over financial reporting critera establizhed by the Company considerng the essential components of intemal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemmal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAL

For JMMK & Co.

{Eadier known as JMEK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Mo, 1204 59W

CA Hitesh Solanki

Partrer

Memibership Mo: 136487

Place: Mumkbai

Date: 19-05-2023

UDHM - 23136487BGYERGSS28
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BALAMCE SHEET AS AT 215T MARCH, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS MNote As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A, ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 86706 Q3077
Right of use Assets 3(a) 7872 8072
Intangible Assets 4 234 81 270.59
Financial Assets
Investments 3 B0 B0
Oiher Financial Assets 6 3698 33547
Oiher Non Current Assets T 31.36 254 BS
Total Mon-Current Assets 1249.32 1873.00
2. Current Assets
Inventories a8 25885.59 225N
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 9 1981.69 148534
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 231.61 79.69
Crther Balances with Bank 11 8478 22354
Crther Financial Assets 12 2458 83 44 00
Crther Current Assets 13 288 21 454 80
Total Current Assets ST00.T2 4571.26
Total Assets Ga50.04 544497
BE. EQUITY AHND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 1185.50 1185.50
Other Bquity 15 136346 1175.38
Total Equity 2548 96 236088
2. Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Lizbilitie=
Bomowings 16 S84.62 S03.35
Lease Liabilities 11148 101.15
Long-Term Provisions 17 2202 4518
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Met) 18 127.74 9416
Oiher Mon-Current Liabiliies 19 710 1210
Total Non-Current Liabilities BE2.96 T55.95
Current Liabilities
Financial Lizbilitie=
Bomowings 20 1985.56 1685.60
Lease Liabilities 1401 540
Trade and other Payables 21
Total outstanding dues of mirco enterprises and
smiall enterprises 01.88 2.06
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 12341 1176.44
Short Term Provisions 2 3314 2534
Cither Current Liabilites 23 32713 428 60
Total Current Liabilities 3548.13 332T7.45
Total Liabilities 4401.09 4083.39
Total Equity and Liabilities Ga50.04 644427

The accomganying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

Az per our report of even date attached
For JMMEK & CO.

{Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Reg. Mo. @ 120453W

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
MHC Foods Limited

CA HITESH SOLANKI Apoorva Shah Apar Shah
(Partrer) Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No. 136487 DiN: 00573184 DIN: 7125733

Place: Havi Mumbai
Date: 19.05.2023
LUDIM:2313648TBGYERGSS2E
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 315T, 2023

{Amount in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Hote | For the yvear ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I. Revenue
Revenue from Operations 24 1635604 15292 87
Cther Income 25 253 112,70
Total Income 16411.34 15405.57
ll. Expenszes
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 265 247
Purchase of Stock in Trade 14428 52 1285011
Changes in Inventories 27 -534 14 -218.33
Employes Bensfits Expensze 28 196 87 20233
Finance Cost 29 280585 200.78
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 34 12060 119.06
Other Expenses 30 174613 1957 21
Total Expenszes 16141.59 15153.63
Profit Before Tax (1-Il) 269.75 251.94
Tax Expenzes
Current Tax 60.52 49 50
MAT Adjustment - 42 05
Tax Paidfadjustment of Earlier Year - 3644
Defemed Tax Expenses! (Income) 3358 -2344
Total Tax Expenzes o941 104.84
Profit For the Period 175.64 14710
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement
of Profit and Loss
Actuarial gain (less) on defined benefit cbligation -OC1 12.44 -13.05
12.44 -13.05
Balance camied to Balance sheet 188.08 134.05
Eamings Per Equity Share of Face Value of 10/- each
Basic Eamings per share [Rs.) 148 1.24
Diluted Eamings per share (Rs.) 148 124
Significant Accounting Policies and Notez Forming
Part of the Financial Statements. 1-47
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For JMMEK & CO,

(Earlier known as JMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Reg. Mo, : 120459W
CA HITESH SOLANKI]
(FPariner)

Membership No. 135487
Place: Mavi Mumbsai

Date: 19.05.2023
UDIN:23136487BGYERGES2E

Apoorva Shah
Chairman & Managing Direcfor
DIN: 005731584

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
MHC Foods Limited

Apar Shah
Whole Time Director
DiN- 07125733
Shivani Singh
Comipany Secretany
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Amownt in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year Ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before taxes 269.75 25194
Adjustments for:
Crepreciation and amortisation expense 120,60 119.06
Int=rest expense including Leaze 26330 175.81
Interest income -3.83 -11.76
Sundry Balance Written off and back -1.38 -20.90
Profit on =ale of Property, Plant and Equipment -10.50 -
Ind A= Effect on Re-measuremeant 1487 -
Ciher Adjustments incuding other comprehensive income 1244 -13.05
Effect of Expected Credit Loss -48.75 4148
Operating profit before working capital changes 616.49 h42.58
Changes In Working Capital :
{Increa=zeWDecrease in Inventories -631.49 -220.11
{IncreazeDecrease in Trade receivables 406 35 43277
{IncreazeDecrease in Loans and advances and other assets 250,89 -20.76
(Decreaze)increase in Trade payables, other liabilites and provisions 124.54 -280.26
Net Changes In Working Capital -T12.41 -B8.36
Cash generated fromé{used) in the ocperations -95.91 454 22
Income Tax(Met of Refunds) -69.26 -166.11
Net cash generated from'{usad) in the operations (A) 16517 28811
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment 218 -rar
Fixed Deposits 9722 -
Int=rest income 383 11.76
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipsments 12.50 -
Net Cash From {used in) investing activities (B) 109.38 379
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Feceived(Repaid) Liability-Bormowings (Mon cument) 91.78 -60.594
Feceived(Repaid) Liability-Cther Mon Current Liabilites -5.00 -
{Repayment) of bormowings to Bank / Bormowings (Current) 324 33 -29943
(Repayment) of Other Borrowings [ Cumment Liabilities -101.46 4269
Reversal of Financial Provission -12.44 -14.52
Interest expense -24823 -176.18
Net cash flow'{used) from financing activities (C) 4898 -5937T
Het increasel (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents { A+B+C) -6.83 -301.88
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 30322 44310
Cash and Cash Equivalentz at the end of the year 296.39 141.22
Eamarked Deposits with Banks* - 162.00
Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year 206,39 303,22

*Bank earmaked for the period June 2022

Mote: 1. The abowve Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set outin Ind AS 7,
“Statement of Cazh Flows.

As per our report of even date attached

For JMMEK & CO, For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Earlier known as JMK & Co.) MHC Foods Limited

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No. @ 120459W

CA HITESH SOLANK] Apoorva Shah Apar Shah

{Partner) Chaimman & Managing Direcfor Whole Time Director
Membership No. 136487 DN 00573184 LHNC OF 125733

Place: Havi Mumbai Shivani Singh

Date: 19.05.2023 Company Secretary

LIDIMN:2313648TBGYERGS525
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“ Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023"
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2023:
A, Equity Share Capital
7 in Lakhs (Except No. of Shares,!

Particualrs Mumber of Shares Amount
As at April 1, 2022 1.18,55,000 1,185.50
Changes in equity share capital
As at March 31, 2023 1.18,55,000 1,185.50
Changes in equity share capital
As at March 31, 2023 1.18,55,000 1,185.50

B. Other Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company {Amount in Lakhs)
Reserves Cher
& Comprehensive
Surplus Income (OCl) Total
Particulars Securties | Retained Remeasure-
Premium | eamings ments of net
Ressrves defined

As at April 01, 2021 174.29 BET.04 1041, 33

Profit for the year 00 147 10 147.10

Oither comprehensive income for the year 00 -13.05 -13.05

Tax adjustment of OCI itemes - -

Az at March 31, 2022 174.29 1014 .14 -13.05 1175.38

As at April 01, 2022 174.29 1014.14 -13.05 1175.38

Profit for the year 00 17564 175.64

Other comprehensive income for the year 1244 12.44

Tax adjustmnet of OCI items - -

As at March 31, 2023 174.29 1189.78 -61 1363.46
For JMME & CO. For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
{Earlier known as JMK & Co.) NHC Foods Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No. @ 120459W

CA HITESH SOLANKI Apoorva Shah Apar Shah
(Partner) Chairman & Managing Director Whale Time Director
Membership No. 136437 DIN: 00573184 DiN: 07125733
Place: Havi Mumbsai Shivani Singh
Date: 19.05.2023 Company Secretary

UMM 2313643 7BGYERGS528
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Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
1  Corporate Information

MHC Foods Limited (NHC) (“the Company™ (CIN : L15122GEJ1992PLC0TE2TT) is a public company domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.

The Company is engaged in the business of Whole & Ground Spices, Lentils, Pulses, Graing, Oil Seeds and various
other Agn - products and Assorted Food Products. Cumrently NHC Foods Limited is Exporting the above-mentioned
Commedities to more than 60 Countries World-wide.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on May 19, 2023
2 Significant Accounting Policies
21 Basis of preparation of financial statements

{a) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as
nofified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting.

Accounting policies have besn consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initalky
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy as mentioned in
note (b) below.

(b} Application of New Accounting pronouncements

Purzuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, Ind AS 116 — “Leazes™ (IndAS 116) supersedes Ind
AS 1T - “Leases™ The Companyhas adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach with effect from
1t April, 2019,

2.2 Usze of Estimates and Judgements:

The preparation of the finandal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates,
judgrnents and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the percd. The application of accounting
policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Mote 2 4. Accounting estimates could change from

period to pericd
2.3 Summary of significant Accounting Policies
{a) Foreign currency translation

(i} Functional and presentation currency

lterns incuded in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the curmency of the primary economic
envircnment in which the entity operates (the functional cumency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupes (IMR), which is entity’s functional and presentation currency.

{ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency fransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and lesses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign curencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange diferences regarded as an adjustment to bormowing costs are presented in the statement of profit
and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and
loss on a net basis within other gains!(losses).

Mon-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated u=ing the exchange rates at
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the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities camied at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
lo=ses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, bomowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly atributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an itemn of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item is depreciated separately. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific ussful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performmed, itz costis recognized inthe camying amount of the plant and eguipment a= a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and eguipment is added to its book value only if it
increases the future benefits from its previously assessed standard of perfformancs. All other expenses on existing
property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts,
are charged to the statemnent of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incumed.

Bomrowing costs directly attibutable to acquisition of property, plant and eguipment which take substantial period of
time to get ready for its imtended use are alzo included to the extent they relate to the perod till such assets are ready
to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, plant and equipment are disclosed as “Capital advances” under
Cithier Non Current Assets and the cost of assets not ready to be put to use as at the balance sheet date are disclosed
as “Capital work-in-progress’.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from itz use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cammying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the Property, plant and eguipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurmred during construction
penod is capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indireclly related to construction or is incidental thereto.
Cither indirect expenditure (including bormowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is neither related
to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

ic) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Drepreciation is calculated on siraight line basis using the useful lives estimatad by the management, which are equal
to those prescribed under Schedule || to the Companies Act, 2013,

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The asssts’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
perod. An asset's camying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's camying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

id) Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses,
if amy. Gains or losses arnising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and recognised as income o expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortization methods and periods

Intangible asssts comprizing of goodwill i= amortized on a siraight line basis over the useful life of twenty years which
iz estimated by the management.

i) Impairment of non financial assets
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The Company assesses, atl each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. F any
indication exists, or when annual impaiment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An assetl’'s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflowes that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the camying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash fliows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
dizcount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asssat.
Indetermining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised camying amount of the assst over its remaining usaful life.

fi Leases
(i} A= alessee

The Company, as a lesses, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing amangements. if the
contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified asset, and the Company has substantially all of the
economic enefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to the lease contract
existing on Aprl 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended
March 31, 2019 have not been refrospectively adjusted. The standard permits a choice on initial adoption, on a lease-
bylease basis, to measure the right-of-use (ROU) asset at either its cammying amount as if Ind AS 116 had been
applied since the commencement of the lease, or an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for accruals or
prepayments. The Company has elected to measure the right-of-use asset equal to the lease liability, with the result
of no net impact on retained eamings and no restatement of prior perod comparatives.

The company recognizes a right of use assst and a leass liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use
assat s initially measured at costs which comiprize the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made before the commencement date. The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line
method of the balance leass term. In addition, the right of use assetis periodically reduced by impairment loss, i any
and adjusted for certain Remeasurements of lease liability.

The lease liakility i initally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the leass or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental bomowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental bormowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comiprize the amounts expected to be payable over
the period of lease. The lease liability is measured at amorized cost using effective interest rate method. It is remeasured
whien there iz a change in future lease payments arising from change in the index or rate

Leasze liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments (including
interest) have been cassified as financing cash fiows

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Comgpany has elected not to recognize right-to-use assets and lease liabilities for short term lease that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognize the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease temm.

(ii) As alessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inceplion whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of
the rizks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underying asset. if this is the case, then the lease is a finance
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such
as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset. The Company recognizes lease payments
received under operating leases as income on a siraightline basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognised

Draft Letter of Offer Page | 163



NHC FOODS LIMITED

NHC FOODS LTD

as revenues in the period in which they are eamed.

The accounting policies applicable to the Company as a lessor in the comparative pericd were not different from Ind
AS 118

gl Inventories
Raw materials, Stores and spares and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, these items are considered to be realizable at cost if the finizhed products, inwhich they will be usad, are
expected to be =0ld at or above cost.

Work-in-progress, finished goods and stock-indrade are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Finished
goods and Work-in-progress indude costs of conversion and other costs incurmed in bringing the inventonies to their
present location and condition. Cost of inventores is calculated on FIFC basis.

{h] Revenue recognition

Revenue iz measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third paries including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products
or senices to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those
products or senices.

Effective Aprl 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Custorners® using the cumulative
catch-up transiton method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of Apnl 1, 2015, In accordance with the
curmulative catch-up transition method | the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on
adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:

a) Revenus from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been passed to the buyer.

h) Revenue from senvices are recognized as they are rendered based on agreements’ amangements with the
concemed parties.
Contract balances

Contract assets

A confract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfemred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or senvices to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of congideration that iz unconditional {i_e_, only the passage
of time is reguired before payment of the consideration is dus)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability i= the cbligation fo transfer goods or services fo a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment iz due (whichever iz earier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return
Right of return assets

Right of returm asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be retumed by customers. The
as=et i= measured at the former carmying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods,
including any potential decreases in the value of the retumed goods. The Company updates the measurement of the
as=et recorded for amy revisions to its expected level of retums, as well a= any additional decreases in the value of the
retumed products. This is disclosed along with imnventories.
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A refund liakility is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received {or receivalde) from the customer
and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to retum to the customer. The Company
updates itz estimates of refund liabilities (and the cormesponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting perod.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it iz probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Company and the

revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or dulies collected on behalf of the

govermment.

The Company collects taxes such as sales taxivalue added tax, senvice tax, etc on behalf of the Government and,
therefore, these are not economic bensfits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from the aforesaid
revenue/ income.

¢} Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized
using the effective interest rate method.

d)  Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the compamy's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
sharsholders approve the dividend.

2] Commission income is recognised as and when the terms of the confract are fulfilled.
fi  Otheritems of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.

(i} Taxes

(i1  Cument income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorties. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable incomes.

Curmrent income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity ). Current tax items are recognised in comelation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(i) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance shest approach, defemred tax is recognized on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assefs and liabilities and their camying amounts for
financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or

loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carmy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ulilized.

The camying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance shest date and reduced to the extent
that it iz no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defemred income tax
asset to be ufilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilifies are measurad at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date.

Defered tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to st off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the defermed taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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fiii} Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT payable for a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT
credit available in the statement of profit and loss as defemred tax with a comesponding asset only to the extent that
there is probable certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, ie., the perod for
which MAT credit is allowsd to be camied forward. The said asset is shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred
Tax. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company
does not have the probable certainty that it will pay nomnal tax during the specified period.

(i} Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments, which give rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or eguity of another entity.

Initial Recognition

Financial azsetz and financial liabilites are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable
to the acquisition or izsue of financial as=ets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to bomowings) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial asseiz or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initdal recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL?) on the basis of following:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial asssts and

- the contractual cash fiow characteristics of the financial asset

(i} Amortised Cost

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rize on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount ocutstanding,.

{ii} Fair Value through other comprehensive income
& financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCl if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and =alling financial azsets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rize on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

{iii} Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial as=et shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through Ol

All recognized financal assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities

Financial liabilites are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial iabilities’.

(i} Financial Liabilities at FWTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVYTPL when the financial liability iz held for trading or are designated upon
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initial recognition as FYTPL. Gains or Loases on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

{ii} Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including bormowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method iz a method of calculating the amortised cost of a fimancial ability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly dizcounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction coste and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liakility, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net camying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FWTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The Company recognises a loss allowance for expecied credit losses on financial assst. In case of trade
receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind A5 109 - Financial Instruments for recognition
of impaiment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the
basis of itz historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the confractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the fransfermred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an assodated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transfemead financial asset, the Comipany continues to recognise the financial asset and al=o recognises a collateralised
bomowing for the proceeds received.

On derscognition of & financial asset in its entirety, the differsnce between the asset's carmying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Derecognition of fimancial liabilities

A financial liability iz derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability iz replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original Eability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Equity investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The Company doss not have investmeant in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assocdates.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liakilities are offzet and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there iz a
cumrently enforceable legal right to offzet the recognized amounts and thers iz an intention to sette on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settie the liabilities simultaneousty.

(k) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Clazsification as debt or equity

Drebt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabiliies or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual amangeaments and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument_

Equity instruments
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An equity instrument iz any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
itz liabilities. Equity instrurments issusd by a Comipany are recognisaed at the procseds recsived.

(I} Convertible financial instrument

Convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On
izsuance of the convertible instruments, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for
an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost
(net of transaction costs) uniil it is extinguished on conversion or redemption_

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since
conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction cosis are deducted from equity,
net of assodated income tax. The camying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the converible instrument based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

(m) Employee benefits
(i} Short-term obligations

Liabilites for wages and salaries, including non-monetary bensfits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
meonihs after the end of the perod in which the employess render the related senice are recognised in respect of
employess' services up o the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liakilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as cument employes benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i} Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liahilites for eamed leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 1.2 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of sendces provided by employees up to the end of the reporting
period uzing the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period that have terms approximating to the terme of the related obligation.

The obligations are presented as cument liabiliies in the balance sheet if the entity doss not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual setiement
iz expected to occur.

fiii} Postemployment cbligations

The company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans viz. gratuity,

(b) defined confribution plans viz. provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liahility or asset recognised in the balance shest in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present valus
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected wnit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined bensfit obligation and
the fair value of plan asseis. This cost is included in employes bensfit expense in the statement of profit and koss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
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recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The
comipany has no further payment obligations once the confributicns have 2en paid. The confributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
{iv) Termination benefits

Temination benefits are pavable when employment is terminated by the company before the nomal retirement date,
or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

in} Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Prowisions are recognised when the Comipany has a present obligation (l=gal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outfiow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be reguired to seitle such an
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is materal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax dizcount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provigions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted
to refiect the curment best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it iz either not probable that an outfiow of resources will be
required to settle or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent
liabilities are also disclosed when there iz a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occumenes of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Claims againat the Comipany where the possibility of amy outflow of resources in setilement iz remote, are not disclosed
as contingent liakilities.
Contingent asseis are not recognised in financal statements since this may result in the recognition of income that

may never be realized. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.

(0] Borrowing costs
General and specific bomowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its

intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarnily take a substantial period of ime to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific bormowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the bormowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other bomowing costs are expensed in the
pericd in which they are incurred.

(Pl Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating
decision maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management
approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by geographic segments.

{q) Eamings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
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- the profit attributable to owners of the company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year

Dilluted eamings per share

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into
account:

-  the after income fax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

-  ihe weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(ry Current'non cument classification

The Company presents assets and liabiliies in the balance sheset based on current! non-cument classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

-  [Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consurmed in nomal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpese of trading
-  [Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

-  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-cument_

A liakility is current when:

- ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- ltis dus to be settled within twelve months after the reporiing peroed, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The company classifies all other liakilities as non-cument.

The operating cyde is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cyde.

(s} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents in the Balance Sheet comprize cash at bank and in hand and short-termn deposits with
banks having original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

it} Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whersby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of ransactions
of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash fliows. The cash fiows from operating, investing and
financing activies of the company are segregated.

{u) Dividends

Prowision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorsed and no longer at the
dizcretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
penicd.

(v} Rounding of amounts

All amounts dizclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee as per the
requirement of Schedule |, unless otherwise stated.
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(w)] Ewvents after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statementzs. Otherwise, events after the
Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

24 Key Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparabion of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind A5
requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of
assets and liabiliies, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounis of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underying assumptons are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the pericd in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financal statements, which may cause a material adjustment
to the camying amounis of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impaiment of non
current az=etz, usaeful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of defemed tax assets, provisions and contingent
liakilities and fair value measurement. etc are as under:

(i} Impairment of non - financial assets

Impairment existe when the camying value of an asset or cash generating unit excesds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value inuse. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset The value inuse calculstion iz based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activiies that the
Company iz not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's perfformance of the
CGL being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate weed for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant
to disclosure of fair value of investment property recorded by the Company.

(ii} Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The uzaful lives and residual values of Company’s aseets are detemmined by the management at the ime the assetis
acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as
well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product
or senvice output of the assst.

This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future pericd
(iii} Income Taxes

The company tax jurizdiction i india. Significant judgements are involved In estimating budgeted profit for the purpose
of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paidirecovered
for uncertain tax positions.

{iv) Valuation of deferred fax assets

The Company reviews the cammying amount of defermed tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for
the same has been explained under Mote (i) above.

(v} Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making varous assumpiions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due fo the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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{vi} Provizions

Provisionz and lizbilittes are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing
of recognition and quaniification of the liakility require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash ocuiflows can take place many years in the fuiure, the camying
amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewsed regulary and adjusted to take account of changing facts and
circumstances.

{vii}) Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market
guctes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as
far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information availalbie. Estimated
fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an am’s length transaction at the reporting date.

2.5 Recent accounting pronouncements

On 24th march 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA”) through a notification, amended schedule I Of companies
act 2013. The amendments revise Division 1L I of schedule |1l and are applicable from 1st april 2021, Key amendments
relating to division || which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with companies
({Indian Accounfing Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

*  |easze liabilties should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities”, duly distinguished as current
OF Mon current.

*  Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in eguity such as changes in equity share capital due
to pricr period ermors and restated balances at the beginning of the cument reporting perod.

*  Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

= Specified format for ageing schedule of rade receivables, frade payables, capital work in progress and intangible
assest under development

*  |f a company has not wsed funds for the specific purpose for which it was bomowed from banks and financial
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

*  Spedfic dizsclosure under ‘additional regulatory reguirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, compliance with numiber of layers of companies, tite deeds of immovable property not held in
name of company, loan and advances to promoters, directors, key managernial personnel(KMP) and related
parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of Profit and Loss:

= Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Sodal Resposibility (CSR), undisclosed income and Cryplo or virtual
currency specified under the head © addiional information’ in the notes forming part of the financial statements.
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 34, 2022

Hote 5 Mon - Current Financial Assets - Investments
Hon - Trade Investments
In Government and Other Securities

Unquoted

Mational Saving Cerfificates *(6 Units of INR 10,000 each) 0.60 0.e0
Total 0.60 0.60

Hote 6 Mon Current - Other Financial Assets

Export incentives receivables*® 3698 33547
Total 36.98 33547

Note T: Other Non - Current Assets

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Security Deposits 1476 11.06

Loans to Employess® B0 246

Cither Loans & Advances 16.00 241.33
Total 3,36 254.85

*Current year loan due from KMP NI, previuos year loan due from KMP was Rs. 45K

Hote B: Inventories

Raw Material - 236

Work in Progress - 0.86

Packing matenial 2528 25.57

Finizhed Goods — 017

Stock in Trade 286031 222514
Total 2,885,509 2,254 11

Hote 9: Trade Receivables

{Unsecured)

Un=secured & Considered Good™ 1,981.69 148534
Total 1,981.69 1.485.34

*Net of bill discounting & provisions of expected credit loss -refer nofe note-41

Hote 10: Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents

Balance with banks:

In current account 22317 7291

Cash in hand 8.44 6.78

231,64 79,69

Hote 11: Other Balance with Bank

Other Bank Balances

Fixed Deposits* B64.78 162.00

Recuming Deposits - 651.54
Total G4.78 223,54

nciudes accrued inferest

Hote 12: Other Financial Assets

Export incentives receivable 24583 A4 00
Total 248.83 44,00
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Az at Az at
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Hote 1.3: Other Current Assets

{Unsecured, Considered good)
Advance Given to Suppliers 7661 6772
Other Loans and Advances 11.59 269.50
Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities® 17565 1237
Prepaid Expenses 2437 35.00
Total 288.31 484.60

"Includes indirect taxes receivable (TDS, GST ete )
Mote 14: Equity Share Capital

{Rs=. in lakhs except No. of shares)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Mame of Shareholders Mo, of Amount No. of  Amount
Shares Shares

Authorised

2,40 00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 2.40,00,000 240000 24000000 240000
2,40,00,000 2,400.00 2,40,00,000  2,400.00

Issued Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

11,855,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10~ each fully paid 1,18,55,000 1,185.50 1,18,55000  1,18550
1,18,55,000 1,185.50 1,18,55,000  1,185.50

{a) Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Mo, of Amount Mo, of Amount
Shares Shares
Equity Share Capital
Af the beginning of the year 1,18,55,000 1,185.50 1,18,55000 1,18550
Add : Issued during the year - - - -
1,18,55,000 1,185.50 1,18,55,000  1,185.50

(b) Termsirights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10d- per share. Each holder of eguity

shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of iquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enfitied to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number

of equity shares held by the sharsholders.
(c] The Company does not have a holding company.

(d) Details of Share holders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Az at March 31, 2023 Az at March 31, 2022

Hame of Shareholders Mo, of %% of Mo. of % of
Shares Holding Shares  Holding

Equity Shares
Alpa Shah 10,233,682 B.T2% 10,33 682 BT2%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 39,19, 365 33.06% 39,19 365 33.06%
49,53,050 41.78% 49.53 42%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Shares held by shareholders % of
As at 3st March 2023 change
Shareholders Mame MNo. of % of during
Shares Holding  the year

Equity Shares
Alpa Shah 10,333,682 8.72% 0.00%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 39,19, 368 33.06% 0.00%
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Apoorva H Shah Huf 8,155 0.07% 0.07%
Apar Apoorva Shah 27,650 0.23% 0.00% —
Aneri Apoorva Shah 19,300 0.16% 0.00%
50,08,155 42.24% 0.07%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 iz as follows:

Sharegholders Mams

Shares held by shareholders 2, of

As at st March 2022 change

Mo, of

% of during

Shares Holding the year

Equity Shares
Alpa Shah 10,33,6582 &72% 0.00%
Apoorva Himatlal Shah 349,19,3568 33.06% 0.00%
Apar Apoona Shah 27,650 0.23% 0.00%
Anen Apoorva Shah 19,300 0.16% 0.00%
&0,00,000 42.17% 0.00%:

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

HNote 15: Other Equity
Securities Premium

Retained Eamings

Opening Balance

Add: Profit for the year

Cther Comprehensive Income

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans
Opening Balancs

Total

Hote 16: Non-Current Borrowings
Secured

MSME Loan from banks*

Less: Current Maturity of Loan

Total

Unzsecured

From Others -

Loan From Related parties

Less: Current Maturity of Mon Current Bormrowing

Loan From Cihers (Long Terms Maturities)
Less: Cument Maturity of Mon Curment Bormowing

Total
Lease Liabilities
Total

{Refer Note No. 42)

174.29 174.29
174.29 174.29
1,014.64 367.54
175.64 14710
1,190.28 1,014.64
-13.55 -0.50
12.44 -13.05
-1 -13.55
1,363.46 1,175.38
326.02 23333
103.85 89.60
22217 13373
391.51 3872
64.51 7022
327.00 327.00
117.51 136.69
82 36 9407
3545 42 B2
H84.62 503.35
11145 10115
111.48 101.15

Page | 176



NHC FOODS LTD

@NHC

@NHC

AHNUAL REPORT 2022 - 23

(a) *Details of Security for current and non current borrowings

(i) MSME loan from axizs bank
Entire curent assets of the comipany.

Dist. \Valsad, Gujrat 396173

mo @op

Perzonal Guarantee

1. Apoorea Shah

2. Alpa Shah

3. Apar Shah

(i) Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid -Secured car loan.

Factory land and building at survey no 777, Mauje Umarsadi, Umarsadi-Desaiwad Road, Taluka Pardi,

Cffice Premises of 2/13 in Swagatham CHS Lid. MHC House, Anand Magar, Santacnuz East, Mumbai 400055,

(i) Un=secured loans from others camying rate of interest prevailing at the time of borrowing the loan and subject to

approval board of directors.
(iv) For Repayment Schedule refer Mote Mo 38 (B) (i)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 34, 2022

Mote 17: Long Term Provisions

Prowvision for Gratuity

Prowision for Tax (Earlier Years)
Total

Mote 18: Deferred Tax Liability (Met)
Deferred Tax Liability
On Fixed Assets

Deferred Tax Asset
Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred Tax Liability/Asszets (Net)
Income Tax Reconciliation - Refer Mote Mo, 43

Mote 19: Other Non-Current Liabilites
Cither Libilities - Rent Deposites
Total

Hote 20: Short-Term Borrowings

(a) Loans

Secured®

Working Capital Borrowings from Banks
Unsecured

Loans from Bank

Loan from Related parties

Total

Lease Liabilities

Total

*Refer note no 16(a), #FNBFC and others

MHote 21: Trade Payables

Trade Payables (Refer Note 31)

Total outstanding dues of mirco enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and amall enterprises

Total

Draft Letter of Offer

2202 34.45
- 10.73
22.02 4518
21032 22334
2032 223.34
8258 129.18
8258 129.18
127.74 94.16
710 12.10
7.0 12.10
1,841.68 1,412.13
8236 207.25
£4.51 70.22
1,988.56 1,689.60
14.01 5.40
14.01 5.40
£1.58 208
1123.41 1,176.44
1185.29 1,178.50
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{Amount im Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Note 22: Short-Term Provisions

Prowvision for Gratuity 0.66 0.67
Prowision for other Expenses 040 -
Prowision for Tax (Met of Advance Tax, TDS & TCS) 25.74 14 52
Prowision for Leave Encashment 260 247
Bonus Payable 373 7.69
Total 3314 25,34
Note 23: Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturties of Long-Term Debts 103.85 193.67
Interest Accrued but not due on bomowings 112 149
Advances From Customers 194 25 141.91
Cither Payables* 2792 91.53
Total 32713 428.60
* Includes Statutory dues Rs. 9.95 Lakhs & Emoluments payable.
Note 24 : Revenue from Operations
Sale of Ready to eat and Bulk Agriculture products 16,214.67 15,013.85
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentives 14137 279.02
Total 16,556.04 15,292.87
Note 25: Other Income
Interest Income :
On Deposite & Others 383 11.88
Other than Interest Incoms
Mon Operating Income 51.4a8 24 88
For=ign Exchange fluctuation (Gain) - 7593
Total 56,31 11270
Note 26: Cost of Raw Material Consumed
Raw Material
Az at beginning of the year 2.36 0.82
Add © Purchase - 079
Add : Direct Expense - 233
Less - Az at end of the year - (2.36)
2.36 1.58
Packing Material Consumed
Packing Material
As at beginning of the year 25.57 2533
Add - Purchase — 1.12
Less - As at end of the year 25.28 (25.57)
29 0.89
Total 2.65 2.47
Note 27: Changes in Inventories
Inventories as at the end of the year
Work in progress - 0.86
Finished goods - 017
Stock in Trade 288031 2.225.14
2,860.31 2,226.18
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(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Inventories as at the beginning of the year

Work in progress 0.6 091
Finished goods 017 0.12
Stock in Trade 222514 2.,006.81
2,226.18 2,007.85
MNet Decrease ! (Increase) in Inventories (634.14) {218.33)
MNote 28: Employee Benefits Expenze
Salaries, Wages and Bonus* 18066 189.74
Contribution to Provident and Other funds 11.02 10.56
Staff Welfare Expenses 5.19 203
Total 196.87 202,33
Mote 29:Finance Cost
Interest Expense 24823 163.22
Other Bomowing Costs 17.65 2497
Interest on Leasze liability 15.07 12.60
Todal 280.95 200,78
Mote 30 :
Freight, Clearing, Forwarding Expenses 1378.75 158349
Travelling Expenses 26.53 12.13
Sales promofiion expenses 18.74 388
Commission & Brokerage Expenszes 64 16 81.58
Eleciricity Expenses 8.59 10.19
Legal and Professional Fees 5540 65.65
Bank Charges 67.92 1927
Forsign Exchange Loss{Gain) 2537 -
Repairs and Maintenance
Builiding, Plant and Machinsny 3.26 323
Computers & Cthers 18.37 T
Rates, Taxes, Listeeg Fees 21.08 18.00
Payments to auditors
Statbutory Audit Fees 345 345
Tax Audit Fees a5 25
Oiher services 05 A3
Insurance Expenses 12.28 963
Office Expenses 2885 10.92
Expected Credit Loss 4876 41.48
Mizcellansous Expenses 61.55 8395
Todal 1746.13 1957.21

Mote 31: Commitments and Contingencies
3{a)] Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of
Advances) Rs. Nil (2021: Ra. Nil)

Hib) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: {Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
A Bills discounted and outstanding 6.22 1255
B. Disputed Demands Cutstanding:®
Income Tax 28.04 35.82
Excise Duty 227 227

*  Baszed on the decision of Appellate Authority and interpretation of other provision, the Company has legally
advised that demand is likely to be either deletted or substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has
besn made.
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32. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes has been determined to the extent such parties

have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

{Amount im Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprizes and
small enterprises :

a) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid*® 61.88
b} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, -

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appeointed day.

c) Interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment -

{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period)
but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Act, 2006

d} Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 00.53

each accounting year

&) Interest remaining due and payalkle even in the succeeding years, unil -

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the amall
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

206

* Interest due on the outstanding amount will ke considerad on actual basis i.e. payment basis.

33. Company operates in a single business segment. However it operates both in Indian and intemational markets.
Accordingly information required under Ind AS — 108 “Segment Reporting” periaining to gecgraphical segment is

as under.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group's peformance and allocates resources based

on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes:
Secondary Segment Information

{&mount in Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Segment Revenue- External Turnowver
Within India 265976 4050.53
Quitzide India 13696.28 1124204
Total Revenue 1635604 16529287
Segment Assets
Within India B157.30 630642
Cutzide India 79274 4784
Total Assets &050.04 G444 37
Segment Liability
Within India 4401.09 4083.39
Cutside India - -
Total Liability 4401.09 4083.39
Capital Expenditurs
Within India 416 7.a7
Cuitside India -
Total Expenditure 416 T7.97
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M. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 33 — Eamings Per Share

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

iy Total Comprehensive Income (Amount in Lakhs) 175.64 147.10
(i) Meominal Value of Ordinary Shares (Rs)) 10 10
(i) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares (No's) 1,18,55,000 1,15,55,000
(iv] Weighted Average Number of Diluted Share | Mo's ) 1,18,55,000 1,18,55,000
(v) Basic Eamings per Ordinary Shares (Rs.) 148 124
(vi) Diluted eaming per Share (Rs.) 148 124

35, Tranmsition to IND AS 116 ‘Leases’
a. The movement in lease liabilities during the year:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Lease liabilities as on 31.03.2021 111.98
Finance costs incumsd during the year 12.60
Payment of lease liabilites and interest -18.00
Lease liabilities as on 31.03.2022 106.56
Finance costs incumsd during the year 15.07
Re-measurement 29.06
Payment of lease liabiliies and interest -25.20
Lease liabilities as on 31.03.2023 125,49

b. The carrying value of the Right of use and depreciation charged during the year:

Particulars Amount
Right to use asset as on 31.03.2021 a94.17
Deductions during Fy 2021-22
Depreciation charged during the year -13.45
Reversal
Right to use as=et az on 31.03.2022 80,72
Deductions during FY 2022-23
Depreciation charged during the year -15.74
Fe-measurement 1374
Right to use asset az on 31.03.2023 78.72

c. Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss:

Particulars Amount
Depreciation on Right of use asset 15.74
Finance costs incumsd during the year 15.07
Total amounts recognised in the statement of profit & loss 30.81
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36. Related Party Disclosure:
Dizclosures as required by the Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosure® is given below:
List of Key Management Personnel and Relatives
Key Management Personnel

Mr. Apoorva H. Shah - Managing Director
Mr=. Apar Shah - Whole time Director
Mr. Awdheshkumar Kannujia - Chief Financial Officer
Miz=s. Shivani Singh - Company Secretary

Relatives of KMP Key Management Personnel

Miss_ Aneri Shah — (Daughter of Managing Director)

Mr. Alpa Shah - (Wife of Managing Director)

Company over which key management personnel are able to exercize significant influence:

MNHC Owverseas Private Limited (Formerly known as NHC Mercantile Pt Lid)

a) Transaction with related Parties (Amount im Lakhs)

Mature of transactions Key Company over which key Relatives of Key
Management management personnel is able Management
Personnel toexercise significant influence  Personnel

1. Loan Taken 942 65 - -
(1,31.31) =} -
2. Repayment of Loans taken 948 37 - -
(192.25) =) -]
3. Remuneration 7965 - 1268
(2047 =) (12.68)
4. Royalty -] 0.3
{0_10) {—)
5. Sale of Motor Car 1283
-} - -
6. Received back Loans and 0.45
Advances given {1.35) - -
7. Loan Payable - - 16.50
(=) = {16.11)
8. Interest on Loan 26.45
{38.36) — —
{Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures)
Related Party Disclosure: (Amount im Lakhs)
Balance payable at the end of year
1. Loan Payable 391.51
(397.21)
2. Loans and Advances again il — -
{0.45)
2. Remuneration Payable 319 - 00.89
(28.52) {(1.72)
4. Professional Fess 225
{3.00)

37. Employes Benefit Obligations (as per Ind AS 19 “Employes benefits") :
a) Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity for employess in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Employees
who are in continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity
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payable on retirement! termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by number of years of senice.

The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

The amount recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
the pericd are as follows

Change in Present Value of Obligation

A. Change in Present Value of Obligation (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)
2022-23 M21-22
Present Value of the Olbligation as at the beginning of the year 351 46.60
Interest Cost 252 216
Current Senvice Cost 225 273
Benefits Paid - (29.43)
Remeazurement - Due to Assumptions & other (17.21) 13.04
Present Value of the Obligation as at the end of the Year 2268 5.1

B. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) {Unfunded)
2022-23 M21-22
Present Value of the Obligation as at the end of the year 2268 5N
Fair value of plan assets - -
Un-funded Liahility 2268 BN
Unrecognized actuarial gains/ losses - -
Un-funded liability recognized in Balance Sheet 2268 BN

C.  Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) {Unfunded)
2022-23 M21-22
Interest Cost 252 216
Current Sernvice Cost 225 273
Past Service Cost - -
Expected Retum on Plan Assets - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (12.43) 1304
Total expense recognized in the Profit and Loss Account 763 17.594

0. Changes in Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligation (Amount in Lakhs)

Actuarial {Gain) / Loss on Dbligation - Due to Demographic Assumpiions -
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss on Dbligation - Due to Financial Assumpticns -

Actuarial {Gain) / Loss on Obligations - Due to Experience (12.43)
Actuarial {(Gain) / Logs on Obligations — Total (12.43)
E. The Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations are as follows

Particulars Gratuity Gratuity

2022-23 2021-22

Dizcount Rate 7.38% T.19%
Expected Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.00% 5.00%
Expected Rate of retum on plan Assets M.A. MLA.
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Sensitivity Analysis
Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal Rate are significant actuarial assumptions. The change in
the Presant “Value of Defined Benefit Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Points from the assumed assumption

is given below:
Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions
Gratuity 2022-23 Gratuity 2021-22
Scenario DB Percentage DBO Percentage
Change Change
Uinder Base Scenario 2288 0.0% 351 0.0%
Salary Escalation - Up by 24 9.0% aT.25 6.1%
Salary Ezcalation - Down by 2094 -8.0% 329 -6.2%
Withdrawal Rates - Lp by 24 45 8.0% 3593 2.3%
Withdrawal Rates - Down by 2055 -9.0% 13 -2.8%
Discount Rates - Up by 2018 -11.0% 3233 -7.9%
Discount Rates - Down by 277 14 0% 3849 9.6%
Expected Cash flow for following year
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations {Amaount in Lakhs)
Year Gratuity 2022-23 Gratuity 2021-22
Year 1 66 B6
Year 2 G4 T3
Year 3 . 60 865
Year 4 B3 1913
Year 5 65 27
Year 6 TO 10 359 1.62

The weighted average durafion of the defined benefit obligation is 22.75

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment markret.

38. Thecompany also has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees
at rate of the decided by the board. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the
government. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has neither contractual nor
any consiructive obligation. The expense recognized during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR
11.02 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 IMR 10.55 Lakhs).

3%, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

i.  Financial Instruments by Category {Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 022 2023 2022
Amortized cost
Investments G0 B0 &0 60
Trade Receivables 2124.03 1676.28 198169 14854
Cash and Cash Equivalents 23161 To.69 23181 7969
Ciher Balances with Bank 64.73 2234 54,78 22304
Other Financial Assets 28581 3803 285.81 380.31
Total 2706.04 236042 256450 216947
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Amortized cost

Borrowings 2573.18 219295 257218 219295
Lease Liabilities 12549 106.56 12549 106.56
Trade Payables 1185.29 1178.50 118525 117850
Total 3883.96 Mo 388396  3478.01
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The management assessaed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables,
and other cument financial assets and liabilities approximate their camying amounts largely due fo the short term
maturities of these instruments.

ii. Fair Value Measurement
Level 1 - Leval 1 hierarchy includes finandal instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
enfity-specdfic estimates. If all significant inputs required fo fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

iii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotss for similar instruments

- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments iz defermined using discounted cash flow analysis
iv. Waluation processes

The accouts and finance department of the company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial
aszsets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports
direcity to the chief financial officer (CFO) and the audit committte. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held bebween the CFQ, AC and the valuation team regulary in line with the company’s reporting
requirements.

40, FINANCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT

The company’s activity expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order o minimise any adverse
effects on the financial perfiormance of the company, dervative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange
forward contracts, foreign cumency oplion contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign cumency risk exposures
and interest rate swaps o hedge variable interest rate exposures. Dervatives are used exclusively for hedging
purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments. This note explaing the sources of risk which the entity is
exposad to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements.

{A) Credit risk
i.  Credit risk management

The company assesses and manages credit risk based on intemal credit rating system. Intermal credit rafing is
performed on a group basis for each class of financial instruments with different charactenistics.

The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assst and whether there has besn a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughouwt each reporting pericd. To assess whether there
iz a significant increase in credit risk the company compares the risk of a default occuming on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

Adefault on a financial assetis when the counterparty fails to make confractual payments within 20 days of when
they fall due. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity
operates and other macro-economic factors.

Draft Letter of Offer Page | 185



@NHC

NHC FOODS LIMITED

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Ageing for trade receivables — outstanding as at March 31, 2023 iz as follows:

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 month 1to 2-3 More Than Total
& Month fodyear 2year Year 3 Years

I} Undisputed Trade receivable

Considered Good 241232 107.22 13951 143 266049
Il Undizsputed Trade Recsivables —

Which have significant increass

in credit rizk - - - - - 00
I} Undisputed Trade Recsivables —

Credit Impaired - - - 85.98 - §5.98
I'V) Dizputed Trade Receivables—

Considersd good - - - - - 00
W) Dizputed Trade Receivables —

Which have significant increase

in credit rizk - - - - - 00
W) Dizputed Trade Receivables —

Credit impaired - - - - - 00

Total Amount 241232 107.22 13951 &7.41 274647

Expected Credit Loss - - - - - —142.34

Bill discounted 52243

Net Reported - - - - - 1981.69
Ageing for trade receivables — outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 month 1to 2-3 Maore Than Total
& Month fod1year 2year Year 3 Years

' Undisputed Trade receivable

Considersd Good 1,260.13 10.32 - - 1,590.45
I} Undisputed Trade Recsivables —

Which have significant increase

in credit risk - - - - - -
I} Undisputed Trade Recsivables —

Credit Impaired - - 8598 - - 35.98
I') Disputed Trade Receivables—

Considersd good - - - - - 00
W) Dizputed Trade Receivables —

Which have significant increase

in credit rizk - - - - - il
W1} Dizputed Trade Receivables —

Credit impaired - - - - - 00

Total Amount 1,580.13 10.32 8598 - - 1,676.43

Expected Credit Loss - - - - - (191.10)

Net Reported - - - - - 1,485.33

* Net of bill discounted for the year endsd

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Particulars {Amount in Lakhs)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 149,62
Changes in loss allowance 4148
Loss allowance on March 34, 2022 194.10
Changes in loss allowance (458.76)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 14234
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(B} Ligquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to mest obligations when due and to close
out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underying businesses, company maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
company’s liquidity position (comprizing the undraan bormowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the
basiz of expected cash flows. In addition, the company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash
flows in major cumencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessarny to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidity rafios against intemal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining dekbt financing plans.

{ij Maturitiez of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the company's financial liabiliies into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities for,

The amounis dizclosed in the table are the confractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance due within 12 months
equal their cammying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturitiez of financial liabilities {Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 103 3 months Between 1 Between 3
1 month months to1year and3dyears and?5 years

March 31, 2023

Financial Liabilities S20.05 8965 12293 89.39 555.00
Total liabilities 920,05 989.65 122.93 89,39 55500
March 31, 2022
Financial Liabilities 553.51 771.30 15845 176.35 327.00
Total liabilities 953.51 77.30 158.45 176.35 327.00
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 iz as follows: {Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1to 2 2-3 More than Total
1 month years years J years
iy MSME 61.88 61.85
if) Cthers 112238 1.03 1123.41

(i) Disputed duss - MSME - -
(iv) Disputed - others — —

Aqgeing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 iz as follows: {Armount in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1to 2 2-3 More than Total
1 manth years Vears 3 years
(il MSME
il) Cthers 1176.83 1.68 1178.50

(i) Disputed duss - MSME
(iv) Disputed - others

(C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
change in market prices. Market rnisk comprises three types of risk: forsign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk such as eguity price risk and commaodity risk.
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(i} Foreign currency rigk

The company operates intemationally and iz exposed to foreign exchange risk arizing from foreign currency
transactions, primarily with respect to the USD, EUR and GBP. Foreign exchange risk anses from future
comimercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a cumency that is not the
comipany’s functional cumency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probalbie foreign
curmency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly
probable forecast transactions.

The company’s fisk management palicy is to hedge arcund 80% to 30% of forecasted foreign cumancy sales
for the subsequent 1 month. As per the risk management palicy, foreign exchange forward contracts are
taken to hedge around 40% to S0% of the forecasted sales.

The company also imports certain materials which are denominated in EUR which exposes it to foresign
currency risk. To minimise the risk of imports, the company hedges around 60% of forecasted imports up to
9 months in advance by entering into foreign exchange forward contracts.

The company u2es a combinaticn of foreign curmency option confracts and foreign exchange forward confracts
to hedge its exposure in foreign currency risk. The company designates the spot element of forwrard confracts
and the intringic value of foreign curmrency opfion contracts az the hedging instrument. The changes in the
forward element that relate to the hedged item (“aligned forward element’) and the changes in time value that
relate to the hedged item ("aligned time value') are deferred in the costs of hedging reserve and recognised
against the related hedged transaction when it occurs. The forward element and the time value relate to the
respective hedged item if the critical terms of the forward or the option are aligned with hedged item. Any
residual ime value and forward points {the non-aligned portion) are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

The spot component of forward contracts is determined with reference to relevant spot market exchange
rates. The differential between the contracted forward rate and the spot market exchange rate is defined as
the forward points.

The infrinsic value of foreign exchangs option contracts is determined with reference o the relevant spot
market exchange rate. The differential between the contracted sirike rate and the spot market exchange rate
is defined as the intrinsic value. Time value of the option is the difference between fair value of the option and
the infrinsic value.

(a) Forsign currency risk exposure (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars UsD Taotal (Rs)
March 31, 2023
Trade Recsivables 964,165 9274
Bill Dizcountng (7,27, 034) £2243
Advance from Customer 1,75,344 163.72
PCFC {22,39.947) -1841.68
Met exposure to foreign currency risk (18.57,473) -1507.66
Particulars UsD Total (Rs)
March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables 17,584,264 1,305.24
Bill Discounting {17,16,058) (1,255.40)
Advance from Customer (1,88 282) (141.76)
PCFC {(18,62,797) (1,412.13)
Met exposure to forsign currency risk (19.82,871) i1,506.04)
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ib} Foreign currency sensitivity

1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:

2022-23 2021-22
1% 1% 154 1%
Decreaze Increase Decrease Increase
Met Increase/{Decrease) in profit or loss (15.08) 15.08 (15.06) 15.06

{ii} Interest rate risk

Interest rate can be either fair value interest risk or cash flow interest risk. Fair value interest rate rigk is the
rizk of change in fair values of fixed interest rate beanng instruments because of interest rate fluctuation in
interest rate. Cash flow interest rate risk iz the rigk that the future cash flow of ficating interest bearing
instruments will fluctuate because of fluctuation risk.

However, During the year presented in these financial statement, the company had primarily bormowed
fund= under fixed interest rate armangments with banks and financial insttution and therefore the company is
not exposed to interest rate risk.

{iii} Price risk
{a) Exposure

Commedity price risk - The company is affected by the price volatility of cerlain commeodities. Its operating
activities require the ongoing purchass and manufacture of spices and therefore require a continuous supply
of commedities. Due to the significantty increased volatility of the price of the commedities, the company
al=o entered into vanous purchase contracts for vanous commodities for which there is an active market.

Equity price risk - The company is not exposed to other Equity price risk during the year presented in these
financials statement.

42, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference
shares, share premium and all other equity reserves atinbutable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary
objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company
mionitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company’s
policy is o keep the gearing ratio between 20% to 40%. The company includes within debt, interest bearing lcans
and bormowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank excduding
dizcontinued operations.

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Bomrowings 2573.18 2192 95
Trade payables 118529 1178.50
Other payables 2r a2 9153
Less: cash and cash equivalents -231.61 -79.69
Less: Cther Balances with Banks -54. 78 22354
MHet Debt 3439.99 J606.83
Equity 254896 236088
Total Capital 2548.96 2360.68
Capital and net debt 6038.95 5067T.71
Gearing ratio Y 60%
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43,

44,

In order to achieve this overall objeclive, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims fo
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the bomowings that define capital structure requirements as

folbows.

- the gearing ratio must be not more than 75% and
- the rafio of net finance cost to EBITDA must be not more than S0%

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY (Amount in Lakhs)
The camying amount of assets hypothecated as security for cument and non cument bomowings are:
Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
CURREMNT ASSETS
i. Financial Azsets
First Charge
Trade Receivables 1981.69 148534
Investment .60 &0
cash and cash equivelant 231.61 T9.69
Other Balances with Bank 64.78 2354
Other Financial Asssets 285.81 33547
ii. Hon Fimnancial Assets
First Charge
Inventories 2885.59 241
Other Current Assets 288.21 484 60
Total Current Assetzs Pledge as Security 5738.30 4363.34
HOM CURRENT ASSETS
First Charge
Office Premises 25117 256.20
Factory Building 452 96 476.51
Total Non Current Assets Pledge as Security 704,12 732. ™

Het debt Reconciliation

Thiz ==ction setz out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented
(Armount in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Current Bomowings 1.988.56 1,714.10
Mon-current Borrowings 1708.03 67252
Het Debt 3596.58 2,386.62

(Amount in Lakhs)
Liabilities from financing activities
Particulars Non Current Current Total Interest Total
Bomowings Borrowings on Bormowings
Het Debt as at March 31, 2022 67252 1,741.10 149 238812
Cash Inflow - Taken B86.76 323.33 411.09
Cash Out Flow - Repaid Q4875 (101.48) 84729
Interest Expensze [(248.23) (248.23)
Het Debt as at March 31, 2023 1708.03 1936.97 (246.74) (3398.26)
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{Armount in Lakhs)
Liakilities from financing activities

Particulars MNon Current Current Total Interest Total
Borrowings Borrowings on Borrowings
Met Debt az at March 34, 2020 466.13 1,498.85 254 1,967 .51
Cash Inficw —Taken 663.92 18,833.62 19,407 54
Cash Out Flow —Repaid (435.96) {158,285.53) - (18,724.49)
Interest Expense - - 166.75 166.78
Interest Paid - - (167 .46) (167 .46)
MHet Debt as at March 31, 2021 691.09 2,0456.94 1.86 2,735.89
45, INCOME TAX
Deffered Tax {Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023  March M, 2022

Particulars Mon Current Current Total Interest Total
Borrowings Borrowings on Borrowings

Met Debt as at March 31, 2021 691.09 2,045.94 1.86 2,739.69
Cash Inflow - Taken 426.78 24 265 .92 24 B35.70
Cash Qut Flow - Repaid (4435.33) (24.601.78) - (25,047.11)
Interest Expense 200.78 200.78
Interest Paid (201.15) {201.15)
Met Debt as at March 31, 2022 G72.52 1,741.10 1.49 238812

{Ammount in Lakhs)

Liabilities from financing activities

Deferred tax Liabilities :

Accelerated Depreciation for tax purposes -131.61 (200.88)
Right o use -r8.F2 (ZX2.48)
-210.32 (223.34)

Deferred tax Assets :
GGratuity 6.31 L=
Lease Liabilies & Provizions 3491 2964
Expected Credit Loss 39.60 8594
Bonus 1.04 214
Leave Encashment T2 0.69
82.58 129.18
Het Deferred Tax Assets [ [Liakilities) A27.74 (94.16)

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance at the opening of the year (94.185) 6.32
Tax incomefiexpense] during the period recognised in statement of profit or loss 3358 (23.44)
MAT Adjusiments recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss - 42.05)
MAT Adpsiment through Balancs Shest - {34 99)
Closing balance at the end of the year (60.58) {94.16)
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The Company off sets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cument tax
assefs and cumment tax liabiliies and the deferred fax assets and deferred tax liablities relate to income taxes

levied by the same tax authority.

Considering the probability of availability of future taxable profits in the period in which tax losses expire, defermed
tax assets have not besn recognised in respect of tax lossses camied forward by the Company.

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are az

follows:

i.  Income tax recognised in profit or loss

(Armount in Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Current income tax charge 60.52 4930
MAT Adjustment - (78.48)
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 3358 2344
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 9411 104.84

Significant estimates

In calculating the tax expense for the curment perod, the company has treated cerain expenditures as being
deductble for tax purposes. However, the tax legislation in relation o these expenditures iz not clear and the

company has applied for a private nuling to confirm their interpretation.

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2023 and

March 34, 2022

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounting profit before Income tax 269,75 251.94
Enacted tax rate in India 27 82% 27 82%
Income tax on accounting profits Th.04 T0.049
Effect of
Ctiher non taxable income 2926 63.50
Due to Temporary Difference 3358 [23.44)
MNon-deductible expenses for tax purposes: -72.30 (42.05)
Ciher non deductible expenses -1.48 35,44
Tax at effective income tax rate 94.10 104.64

46, Additional Disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amendead Schedule [

RATIOS:
5.R Ratio Mumerator Denominator FY FXY  Variance Explanation
Mo. 2223 21-22 (%) for 25% more
Variance
1 Current Assets Curent Assets  Curment Liabilities 162 138  17.13% HHA
2 Debt BEquity ratio Total Debts Shareholder's equity  1.71 1.72 0.31% HMNA
3 Debt Senvice Eaming available Debt Service 2.38 285 -16.10% HNA
Coverage Ratio for debt servics
4  Retum on Equity Met profit after Average share- 6.89% 6.23% 10.60% HNA
{ROE) Tax holders equity
5 Trade Receivable Revenue Average Trade 944 8T8 T44% MA
Turmower ratio Receivable
6 Trade Payable Purchase of Average Trades 11.67 885 3198% Purchase and
Turmover Ratio Senvice Payables associate cost
& Ciiher increased
Expesnses during the year
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T Met Capital Revenus Working 7448 1204 -37.86% Sale
Tumowver Capital increased for
Ratio the year vis a
vis working
capital
& Met Profit Ratio Met profit Revenus 1.07 098  1164% HNA
9 Retum on Capital Eaming before — Capital 16.19% 14.53% 11.54% HMA

Employed (ROCE)  Interest & Tax Employed

2 The Company do not have any Benami property, where any procesding has been iniiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.
3 The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck of

4  The Compamy has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any lender who has powers fo declare a
company as a willful defaulter at any time during the financial year or after

5 The Company have not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virlual Cumrency during  the financial year,

6  The Company have not advanced or lcaned or invested funds to any other personis) or entity(ies), including
foreign enfiies (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:a) directly or indirectly
lend or imvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) orb) provide any guarantee, security or the like fo or on behalf of the Ulimate
Beneficiaries,

7 The Company have not received any fund from any personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entiies (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall{a) directhy
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatzoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Bensficiaries) or(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries,

& The Company have no such fransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has besn
sumrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(=uch as, search or sunvey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

9  The provisions regarding CSR Expenses under Section 135 of the Comipanies Act, 2013 are not applicalde
to the Company,

10 Compliance with regards to the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies
Act 2013 read with Companies (Restricions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the

Company.

47. Previous years figures have been regrouped or reclassified to confirm with the current years' presentation
Owherever considered necessary.

For JMME & CO. For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Earlier known as JMK & Co.) MHC Foods Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. Mo. @ 120459W

CA HITESH SOLANKI Apoorva Shah Apar Shah
(Pariner) Chairman & Managing Direcfor Whaole Time Direclor
Membership No. 136487 DIN: 00573784 DIN: 07125733
Place: Mavi Mumbai Shivani Singh
Date: 19.05.2023 Company Secretany

UDIM:23136487BGYERGS528
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS
The following tables present certain accounting and other ratios computed on the basis of amounts derived from the Audited

Financial Statements included in "Financial Statements" as above:

- On Standalone Basis

@NHC

Particulars 30-06-2024 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Net Profit for the period/year ended on (A) (X in lakhs) 158.40 228.09 188.08
Net worth at the end of period/year ended on (B) (X in lakhs) NA 2,777.04 2,548.96
No. of equity shares outstanding at the period/year ended on (C) (in lakhs) 1,185.50 1,185.50 1,185.50
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.36 1.98 1.48
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.36 1.98 1.48
Return on Net Worth (%) (A/B) NA 8.21 7.38
Net Asset Value per Share (in ) (B/C) NA 2.34 2.15
EBITDA (% in lakhs) 297.14 787.33 671.30
- On Consolidated basis
Particulars 30-06-2024 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Net Profit for the period/year ended on (A) (R in lakhs) 197.66 NA NA
Net worth at the end of period/year ended on (B) (% in lakhs) NA NA NA
We_lghted average no. of eqwty shares for basic EPS outstanding at the 1,185.50 NA NA
period/year ended on (C) (in lakhs)

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.68 NA NA
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.68 NA NA
Return on Net Worth (%) (A/B) NA NA NA
Net Asset Value per Share (in %) (B/C) NA NA NA
EBITDA (% in lakhs) 336.40 NA NA

Formula used:

1. Earnings Per Share (): Net Profit after tax for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders divided by the weighted average

no of equity shares outstanding during the year.

2. Return on Net Worth (%): Net Profit after tax for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders divided by Net Worth at the

end of the period multiplied by 100.

3. Net Asset Value Per Share (%): Net Assets as at the year-end/ period end divided by total number of equity shares outstanding

at the end of the period.

4. EBITDA R in lakhs): Profit before tax plus finance costs plus depreciation and amortisation expense and interest income.

M/s. IMMK & Co.

(Earlier known as IMK & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 120459W

Sd/-

CA Jitendra Doshi

(Partner)

Membership No: 151274

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 05/09/2024

UDIN No: 24151274BKEXKS3441
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion is intended to convey management’s perspective on our audited financial condition and results of
operations for the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 30.06.2024. One
should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with the
section titled “Financial Information” beginning on page 83 of this Draft Letter of Offer. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements and reflects our current views with respect to future events and our financial performance and involves
numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those described in the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning
on page 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Actual results could differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking
statements and for further details regarding forward-looking statements, kindly refer the chapter titled “Forward-Looking
Statements” beginning on page 17 of the Draft Letter of Offer.

Unless otherwise stated, the financial information of our Company used in this section has been derived from the Audited Financial
Results of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2024 and Annual Report of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2023
and Limited Reviewed Un-audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Result for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 and Limited
Reviewed Un-audited Standalone Financial Result for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 Our financial year ends on March 31 of
each year. Accordingly, unless otherwise stated, all references to a particular financial year are to the 12-month period ended
March 31 of that year. In this section, unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to “NHC
Foods Limited”, our Company.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For Detailed information on our business, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” beginning from page no. 70 of this Draft
Letter of Offer

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE LAST AUDITED PERIOD

Other than as disclosed below and in this draft Letter of Offer, no circumstances have arisen since March 31, 2024 that could
materially and adversely affect or are likely to affect, our operations or profitability, or the value of our assets or our ability to pay
our material liabilities within the next 12 months:

1. On April 24, 2024, our Company acquired a 96.21% equity stake in Intra Metal Trading LLC-FZ for a consideration of
USD 691,616.60 (equivalent to INR 5.77 Crores). This acquisition resulted in Intra Metal Trading LLC-FZ becoming a
subsidiary of our Company. As a result, the financial figures of Intra Metal Trading LLC-FZ have been consolidated in
the accompanying quarterly financial results for the quarter ended June 30, 2024.

This development aligns with our strategic growth plans, and we are confident that this acquisition will contribute
positively to our company's future performance on a consolidated level.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATION

Our business is subjected to various risks and uncertainties, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factor” beginning
on page 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our results of operations and financial conditions are affected by numerous factors
including the following:

Adequate availability of key raw materials at the right prices is crucial for the Company;

Intense competition from unorganized sector offering products in loose unbranded form.

Occurrences of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which we have operations;

Any disruption in our sources of funding or increase in costs of funding;

Our ability to obtain certain approval and licenses;

Our ability to manage our operations at our current size or to manage any future growth effectively; and
Exchange rate fluctuations and exchange controls and policies.

The spices industry faces challenges related to price volatility, primarily driven by fluctuations in raw material costs and global
market dynamics.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our significant accounting policies are described in the section entitled “Financial Information” beginning from page 83 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.
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The following discussion on results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Limited Reviewed Unaudited

Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter Ended June 30, 2024:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 30-06-2024 % of Total Revenue
(1) Revenue
Revenue from Operation 7366.12 99.17%
Other income 61.77 0.83%
Total Revenue (1) 7427.89 100.00%
(2) Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed - -
Purchase of Stock in Trade 5216.33 70.23%
Changes in Inventories 1092.36 14.71%
Employee Benefits Expense 62.20 0.84%
Other Expenses 720.59 9.70%
Total Expenses 7091.48 95.47%
(3) Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (1-2) 336.41 4.53%
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 40.85 0.55%
(4) Profit/(Loss) before Interest and Tax 295.56 3.98%
Finance Cost 76.36 1.03%
(5) Profit/(Loss) before Tax 219.20 2.95%
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 12.10 0.16%
Current Tax expense related to the prior year - -
Deferred Tax Expenses/ (Income) 6.20 0.08%
Total Tax Expenses 18.30 0.25%
Profit/(Loss) for the period/ year 200.90 2.70%
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit obligation -OCI (3.22) (0.04%)
(6) Profit/(Loss) for the period/ year 197.68 2.66%

For the Quarter ended June 30, 2024

Revenue from Operation

The Revenue from Operations of our company for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 was %7,366.12 lacs.

Other Income

The other income of our company for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 was X61.77 Lacs.

Total Revenue

The total income of our company for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 was ¥7427.89

Expenditure
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Purchase of Stock in Trade

For the quarter ended June 30, 2024, our Company incurred Purchase of Stock in Trade of X 5216.33 lacs.
Changes in Inventories

For the quarter ended June 30, 2024, our Company had Changes in Inventories of 1,092.36 lacs.
Employee Benefit Expenses

For the quarter ended June 30, 2024, our Company incurred for employee benefit expenses 362.20 lacs.
Finance Cost

The finance costs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 was 376.36 lacs.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

The Depreciation and Amortization Expenses for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 was 340.85 lacs.
Other Expenses

For the quarter ended June 30, 2024, our other expenses were 3720.59 lacs.

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Our Company had reported a profit before tax for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 of 2219.20 lacs
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

Profit after tax for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 was at ¥197.68 lacs.

The following table sets forth selected financial data from Audited Standalone Profit and Loss accounts for the financial year
ended on 31% March 2024 and 31% March 2023 and Limited Reviewed Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the quarter
Ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.

Rs. In Lakhs

Draft Letter of Offer

(1) Revenue
Revenue from Operation 6734.43 99.09% 4203.85 98.46% 20924.40 99.03% 16356.04 99.66%
Other income 61.76 0.91% 65.96 1.54% 205.71 0.97% 55.31 0.34%
Total Revenue (1) 6796.19 100.00% 4269.81 100.00% 21130.11 100.00% 16411.35 100.00%
(2) Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed - - - - 25.28 0.12% 2.65 0.02%
Purchase of Stock in Trade 4630.94 68.14% 3904.83 91.45% 19846.72 93.93% 14428.52 87.92%
Changes in Inventories 1092.36 16.07% (225.23) (5.27%) (1427.67) (6.76%) (634.14) (3.86%)
Employee Benefits Expense 58.79 0.87% 57.1 1.34% 236.24 1.12% 196.87 1.20%
Other Expenses 716.96 10.55% 360.14 8.43% 1662.22 7.87% 1746.13 10.64%
Total Expenses 6499.05 95.63% 4096.84 95.95% 20342.79 96.27% 15740.03 95.91%
(3) Profit/(Loss) before Interest, o o
Depreciation and Tax (1-2) 297.14 4.37% 172.97 4.05% 781.32 3.73% 671.32 4.09%
Depreciation and Amortization
Expenses 40.85 0.60% 30.48 0.71% 144.36 0.68% 120.60 0.73%
(4) Profit/(Loss) before Interest o o
and Tax 25620 | 377% | 14249 |  3.34% 642.96 3.04% 5%0.72 3:36%
Finance Cost 76.36 1.12% 84.47 1.98% 330.92 1.57% 280.95 1.71%
(5) Profit/(Loss) before Tax 179.93 2.65% 58.02 1.36% 312.04 1.48% 269.77 1.64%
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Tax Expences

Current Tax 12.10 0.18% 9.75 0.23% 65.98 0.31% 60.52 0.37%
CL_Jrrent Tax expense related to the 4.79 0.02% _

prior year - - - -

Deferred Tax Expenses/ (Income) 6.20 0.09% 7.38 0.17% 6.54 0.03% 33.58 0.20%
Total Tax Expences 18.30 0.27% 17.13 0.40% 77.31 0.37% 94.1 0.57%
Profit/(Loss) for the period/ year 161.63 2.38% 40.89 0.96% 234.73 111% 175.67 1.07%

Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial gain (loss) on defined
benefit obligation -OCI (3.22) (0.05%) (1.00) (0.02%)

(6.65) (0.03%) 12.44 0.08%

(6) Profit/(Loss) for the period/
year 158.41 2.33% 39.89 0.93%

228.08 1.08% 188.11 1.15%

COMPARISON OF THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
WITH JUNE 30, 2023

Total Income:

Our total income increased by 59.17% to X 6,796.19 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from % 4,269.81 Lacs for the quarter
ended June 30, 2023 due to the factors described below:

Revenue from operation

Revenue from operations was increased by 60.20% to X6734.43 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from 34,203.85 Lacs for
the quarter ended June 30, 2023

Other Income

Other Income was decreased by 6.37% to X61.76 Lacs for the six months period ended June 30, 2024 from 265.96 Lacs for the
quarter ended June 30, 2023

Total Expenditure:

Our total expenditure increased by 58.64% to %6,499.05 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from %4,096.84 Lacs for the
quarter ended June 30, 2023 due to the factors described below:

Purchase of Stock in Trade

The Purchase of Stock in Trade increased by 18.60% to 34,630.94 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from %3,904.83 Lacs
for the quarter ended June 30, 2023

Changes in Inventories

The changes in Inventories increased by 585.00% to X 1,092.36 lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from X (225.23) lacs for
the quarter June 30, 2023.

Employee Benefits Expense

Employee Benefits Expenses increased by 2.96% to X 58.79 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from X 57.10 Lacs for the
six months period ended June 30, 2023.

Other Expenses

Other Expenses Increased by 99.08% to 716.96 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from 360.14 Lacs for the six months
period ended June 30, 2023

Profit before Tax
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Our Profit before Tax increased by 210.12% to X 179.93 Lacs for the quarter period ended June 30, 2024 from X 58.02 Lacs for
the quarter ended June 30, 2023

Profit after Tax

Our Profit after Tax increased by 297.12% to X 158.41 Lacs for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 from 39.89 Lacs for the quarter
ended June 30, 2023

COMPARISON OF THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 31, 2024 WITH MARCH 31,
2023

Total Income:

Our total income increased by 28.75% to X 21,130.11 Lacs for the FY 2024 from X 16,411.35 Lacs for the FY 2023 due to the
factors described below:

Revenue from operation

Revenue from operations was increased by 27.93% to 320,924.40 Lacs for the FY 2024 from X16,356.04 Lacs for the FY 2023.

Other Income

Other Income was increased by 271.92% to X205.71 Lacs for the FY 2024 from X55.31 Lacs for the FY 2023.

Total Expenditure:

Our total expenses increased by 29.24% to 320,342.79 Lacs for the FY 2024 from X15,740.03 Lacs for the FY 2023 due to the
factors described below:

Cost of material consumed

The Cost of material consumed increased by 853.96% to %25.28 Lacs in FY 2024 from %2.65 Lacs in FY 2023.

Purchase of Stock in Trade

The Purchase of Stock in Trade increased by 37.55% to 219,846.72 Lacs in FY 2024 from 14,428.52 Lacs in FY 2023

Changes in Inventories

The changes in Inventories increased by 125.13% to % (1,427.67) lacs in FY 2024 from X (634.14) lacs in FY 2023.

Employee Benefits Expense

Employee Benefits Expenses increased by 20.00% to X 236.24 Lacs in FY 2024 from % 196.87 Lacs in FY 2023
Other Expenses

Other Expenses decreased by 4.81% to 1,662.22 Lacs in FY 2024 from 1,746.13 Lacs in FY 2023

Profit before Tax

Our Profit before Tax increased by 15.67% to X 312.04 Lacs for the FY 2024 from X 269.77 Lacs for the FY 2023
Profit after Tax

Our Profit after Tax increased by 21.25% to X 228.08 Lacs for the FY 2024 from 188.11 Lacs for the FY 2023
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CASHFLOWSTATEMENT

(Amount ¥ in lacs)

Net Cash from Operating Activities (222.08)
Net Cash from Investing Activities (596.46)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 652.63
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (165.92)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 296.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 130.48

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities for the year ended 31st March 2024, was X (222.08) lacs as compared to the Profit Before Tax
at 3 312.04 lacs.

Cash Flows from Investment Activities

Net cash from investing activities for the year ended 31st March 2024 was  (596.46) lacs due to purchase of tangible assets and
investment and Fixed Deposit

Cash Flows from financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities for the year ended 31st March 2024 was X 652.63 due to the repayment of borrowing.
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SECTION VIII: LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding litigations involving our Company and our Subsidiary whose financial
statements are included in the draft letter of offer, either separately or in a consolidated form including, suits, criminal or civil
proceedings and taxation related proceedings that would have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial position or
future revenues. In this regard, please note the following:

>

In determining whether any outstanding litigation against our Company, other than litigation involving issues of moral
turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings relating to economic offences against
our Company, would have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial position or impact our future revenues,
we have considered all pending litigations involving our Company, other than criminal proceedings, statutory or regulatory
actions, as 'material’;

For the purpose of determining materiality, the threshold shall be determined by the issuer as per requirements under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Unless stated to the contrary, the information provided below is as of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OF OUR COMPANY

a. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23
A. Disputed Demands Outstanding:
Income Tax* 28.04 28.04
Excise Duty** - 2.27

*Based on the decisions of the Appellate authority and interpretation of other provision, the company has legally advised
that demand is likely to be either deleted or substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has been made.
**during the year “CUSTOMS, EXCISE & SERVICE TAX APPELATE TRIBUNAL” set aside demand order

b. Bill Discounted/ Factoring Payables netted off to the receivables.
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23
A. Bills discounted and outstanding 16.58 06.22

A. LITIGATION INVOLVING THE COMPANY

(a) Criminal proceedings against the Company

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated against the Company.

(b) Criminal proceedings filed by the Company

There are no outstanding actions criminal proceedings filed by the Company.

(c) Actions by statutory and regulatory authorities against the Company

The Company has received an email dated 22" February, 2024 from the BSE Limited referring to non-compliance of
Regulation 6(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherein the company is
advised to refer to Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 (Chapter-VII(A)-Penal
Action for Non-Compliance), issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) with respect to penal actions
prescribed for non-compliance of certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and Standard Operating Procedure for suspension and revocation of trading of specified securities of listed
entities. The Stock Exchange has imposed a penalty of Rs.44840/- on the Company for the said non-compliance.
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Company vide its email dated 23" February, 2024, replied that some incorrect details were inadvertently entered during the
upload of the “Reconciliation of share capital audit report” for the quarter ended December 31, 2023, particularly in the
section pertaining to the Compliance Officer. They have attached the necessary documentation regarding the resignation of
Ms. Shivani Singh and the appointment of Ms. Shanu Bhandari as the new Compliance Officer, as reported to the BSE. The
rectified report was submitted with acknowledgement number 23022024785387, dated February 23, 2024. No further action
has been taken by BSE Limited till date.

(d) Tax Proceedings:

() Direct Tax: As mentioned below:
AY. Section Code Date of Demand Amount Particulars
2012-13 147 17-12-2019 28,24,796 The Company/assessee has

received a notice under
section 148 of the Income
Tax Act, dated 30.03.2019.
The Assessing Officer cited
the information received
regarding high-value
remittances and  debits,
allegedly from a party
involved in  providing
accommodation entries. This
led to the mentioning of the
assessee as one of the
beneficiaries in a transaction
with M/s. Induja Traders Pvt.
Ltd., involving a significant
amount of Rs.1,55,59,948/-.
However, the Assessee's
stance on these purchases
was that they were genuine
transactions in the regular
course of business, supported
by corresponding  sales
related to the goods.

The  Assessing  Officer
sought to disallow the
aforementioned amount as
unexplained income under
section 69A of the Income
Tax Act, contending that the
purchases were allegedly
bogus. The company
contested these  claims,
asserting that the
transactions were genuine
and that the reasons assigned
by the Assessing Officer
were contrary to the Income
Tax Act.

Additionally, the company
disputed the charging of
interest under sections 234A,
234B, 234C, and 234D of the
IT Act and the initiation of
penalty proceedings under
section 271(1)(c) of the Act.
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Aggrieved by the Company
has filed an appeal with the
CIT Appeals on 01.01.2020.
The matter is pending.
2014-15 263 07-12-2019 68,796 For the said demand, the
Company has opted for a
settlement availing Vivad Se
Vishwas Scheme and paid
the amount on 27.01.2021.

2022-23 154 14-03-2023 32,395 Rectification  request s
pending with the Income Tax
Department.

TOTAL 29,25,987

(i) Indirect Tax: Nil
(e) Other pending material litigations against the Company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no other pending material litigations initiated against the
Company.

(f) Other pending material litigations filed by the Company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding actions other pending material litigations filed by
the Company.

a) Criminal proceedings against the Promoters & Directors of the company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated against the Promoters
& Directors of the Company.

b) Criminal proceedings by the Promoters & Directors of the company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated by the Promoters &
Directors of the Company.

c) Actions by statutory and regulatory authorities against the Promoters & Directors of the company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
initiated against the Promoters & Directors of the company.

(d) Tax Proceedings against the Promoters & Directors
(i) Direct Tax:

1) APOORVA HIMATLAL SHAH

2011-12 147 29-12-2018 53,167 For the said demand, the
Assessee has opted for a
settlement availing Vivad Se
Vishwas Scheme and paid
the amount on 16.12.2020.
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(ii) Indirect Tax Liabilities: Nil
(e) Other pending material litigations against the Promoters & Directors of the company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding litigations initiated against the Promoters and
Directors,

(f)  Other pending material litigations filed by the Promoters & Directors of the company

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding litigations initiated by the Promoters and Directors,

(a) Criminal proceedings against the Subsidiaries

There are no criminal actions initiated against the subsidiaries of the company.

(b) Criminal proceedings filed by the Subsidiaries

There are no outstanding criminal pr